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ORDINARY MEETING
OF

COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS

AGENDA
Time: 9:30 am
Date: Wednesday, 12 April 2017
Venvue: Wellington Museum

von Kohorn Room
3 Jervois Quay

MEMBERSHIP

Mayor Lester
Councillor Eagle
Councillor Lee
Councillor Marsh
Councillor Woolf (Chair)

Have your say!

You can make a short presentation to the Councillors at this meeting. Please let us know by noon the working day
before the meeting. You can do this either by phoning 803-8334, emailing public.participation@wcc.govt.nz or
writing to Democratic Services, Wellington City Council, PO Box 2199, Wellington, giving your name, phone
number and the issue you would like to talk about.




COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS ~ {bsolutely Positively

12 APRIL 2017 Me Heke Ki Poneke

AREA OF FOCUS

The Council-Controlled Organisations Subcommittee is responsible for communicating the
Council's priorities and strategic outcomes to CCOs and ensuring delivery by CCOs through
the development of Statements of Intent and integration of CCO outcomes with the Council's
Long-term Plan and Annual Plan funding processes and decisions. The Subcommittee is
also responsible for monitoring the financial performance and delivery on strategic outcomes
of the Council's CCOs.

Quorum: 3 members
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1 Meeting Conduct

1.1 Apologies

The Chairperson invites notice from members of apologies, including apologies for lateness
and early departure from the meeting, where leave of absence has not previously been
granted.

1.2 Conflict of Interest Declarations

Members are reminded of the need to be vigilant to stand aside from decision making when
a conflict arises between their role as a member and any private or other external interest
they might have.

1.3 Confirmation of Minutes
The minutes of the meeting held on 22 March 2017 will be put to the Council Controlled
Organisations for confirmation.

1.4 Public Participation

A maximum of 60 minutes is set aside for public participation at the commencement of any
meeting of the Council or committee that is open to the public. Under Standing Order 3.23.3
a written, oral or electronic application to address the meeting setting forth the subject, is
required to be lodged with the Chief Executive by 12.00 noon of the working day prior to the
meeting concerned, and subsequently approved by the Chairperson.

1.5 Items not on the Agenda
The Chairperson will give notice of items not on the agenda as follows:

Matters Requiring Urgent Attention as Determined by Resolution of the Council
Controlled Organisations.

1. The reason why the item is not on the agenda; and

2.  The reason why discussion of the item cannot be delayed until a subsequent meeting.

Minor Matters relating to the General Business of the Council Controlled
Organisations.

No resolution, decision, or recommendation may be made in respect of the item except to
refer it to a subsequent meeting of the Council Controlled Organisations for further
discussion.
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2.

General Business

DRAFT STATEMENTS OF INTENT FOR COUNCIL CONTROLLED
ORGANISATIONS

Purpose

1.

To receive and consider the draft 2017/18 Statement of Intent (SOI) for the following
Council Controlled Organisations (CCOs).

o Basin Reserve Trust

o Karori Sanctuary Trust

o Wellington Cable Car Limited
o Wellington Museums Trust

o Wellington Zoo Trust

Summary

2.

Officers have reviewed the draft SOI for each CCO and assessed that each draft SOI
has addressed the issues raised by the respective letter of expectation. Some
changes are recommended to the sub-committee and, subject to its approval of
these changes and any further items raised by the sub-committee, the sub-
committee’s views will be communicated to each CCO so it can prepare its final
SOl to be presented to this sub-committee at its meeting on 24 May 2017.

Recommendations

That the Council Controlled Organisations Sub-committee:

1.
2.

Receive the information.

Note any items raised by the sub-committee to be addressed by the Council Controlled
Organisations in a final Statement of Intent.

Agree that the Basin Reserve Trust, the Karori Sanctuary Trust, Wellington Cable Car
Limited, the Wellington Museums Trust and the Wellington Zoo Trust will develop a
final Statement of Intent for 2017/18 so as to address the items raised in this report and
any further items raised by the committee and will work with Council officers to achieve
this.

Background

3.

Under the Local Government Act 2002, CCOs are required to submit a draft SOI to the
Council by 1 March in the previous financial year. As a matter of good practice, the
Council precedes this with a letter of expectation to each entity, which outlines the
Council’s expectations in respect of the SOI it will receive.

The draft SOI process provides both the Council and the CCO with an opportunity to
fine-tune respective expectations ahead of submitting a final SOI for approval.
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5.  The letter of expectation for each entity was agreed by this sub-committee on 14

December 2016 and a draft SOl has been received from each CCO.

6. The draft 2017/18 SOI for Wellington Regional Development Agency Limited was
considered by this sub-committee on 22 March 2017 and subsequently the Wellington
Regional Strategy Committee on 28 March 2017.

7.  The draft 2017/18 SOI for Wellington Water Limited will be considered by the
Wellington Water Committee.

8.  The Wellington Regional Stadium Trust will provide its draft SOI to officers in May 2017
and will present its draft SOI to the sub-committee at its meeting on 24 May 2017.

Discussion

9.  Officers have reviewed the draft SOI received from each entity and acknowledge that
they respond constructively to the respective letter of expectation.

10. Officers will work with individual CCOs to address items raised in this report and any
further items raised by the sub-committee in each entity’s final SOI which will be
presented to this sub-committee at its meeting on 24 May 2017.

11. The following pages include summary details of each entity’s draft SOI plus, where
appropriate, recommendations for certain points to be addressed in the final SOI.

12. Draft SOls are appended to this report.

ltem 2.1 Page 8
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13. Basin Reserve Trust

OFFICER SUMMARY

The Basin Reserve Trust has presented its draft Statement Of Intent for 2017/18 (SOI) and it
responds positively to the sub-committee’s letter of expectations. The SOI identifies the Trust's
alignment with Council as one of its core strategic priorities.

The Trust observes the progress achieved by Council to date in terms of the Master Plan for the
Basin Reserve and anticipates the completion of various work programmes within the Master Plan
during 2017/18 and beyond. At the time of writing the draft SOI, planning a range of individual work
programmes was about to begin. It is expected that the final SOI will have more details on the
Master Plan works to be undertaken in 2017/18 and beyond.

In the winter months the ground will continue to be used by Wellington Rugby, now with a focus on
junior sport rather than senior rugby, which improves the grounds usage while improving preparation
of the cricket wickets in the off-season.

The Trust continues to work with complimentary partners outside cricket to increase the utilisation of
the Basin Reserve and in February 2017 the ground hosted the Winery Concert Tour which was very
favourably received. The ground is expecting to host a wine and food festival in December 2017 and
the Trust is working on other complimentary (non-cricket) events for 2018. The SOI targets reflect a
steady increase in utilisation for non-cricket events.

To date, the Trust has not secured a naming rights sponsor for the Basin Reserve and this is
contrary to some of its earlier commitments. Council’s strong expectation is that a suitable sponsor
will be secured in response to the delivery on the early Master Plan work programmes. The first
significant programme to be delivered is the refurbishment of the RA Vance stand which is due to be
completed prior to the 2017/18 season cricket events.

The Trust’s financial forecasts show further strengthening of its financial position. The SOI does not
anticipate the financial impacts likely to result from Council taking over from the Trust the future
maintenance and renewals of the Basin Reserve assets as the maintenance and upgrade works are
completed. This will be picked-up in the Council’s 2018-28 Ten Year Plan and mirrored in the Trust’s
next SOI.

Key Performance Indicators are refined in this draft SOI to focus on the utilisation of the Basin
Reserve and Officers consider these are appropriate for this purpose.

The SOI does not make reference to the Trust's stakeholder relationships and would be improved by
acknowledging the ‘no surprises’ policy that is expected between Council and the Trust.

SUMMARY FINANCIALS ($000)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

($000) Actual Forecast Draft SOI Draft SOI Draft SOI
30 JUNE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Total Revenue 859 n/a 910 915 1,043
Opex before Depreciation 779 n/a 743 774 849
Depreciation 92 n/a 120 130 150
Net Surplus (Loss) (12) n/a 48 11 43
FINANCIAL POSITION

Total Assets 901 n/a 840 811 862
Total Liabilities 241 n/a 125 85 92
Equity 660 n/a 715 726 769
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SUMMARY FINANCIALS ($000)

CASH FLOWS

Total Net Cash Flows 61 n/a 56 13 46
Opening Cash 48 n/a 24 80 93
Closing Cash 109 n/a 80 93 139

Baseline forecast financials to 30 June 2017 will be included in the final SOI.

The forecast financial position of the Trust remains sound showing a build-up of cash reserves and
corresponding strengthening equity position. The Trust delegates the daily operation of the Trust to
Cricket Wellington under a management agreement between the parties.

In future, the Trust will ‘hand back’ to Council the ongoing maintenance and renewals responsibility
for Council’s assets located at the Basin Reserve. This transition will align with Council’s delivery of
various work programmes within the Master Plan and the related funding impacts between the Trust
and the Council will be addressed in Council’s upcoming Ten Year Plan (2018 — 2028).

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Actual Forecast Draft SOI Draft SOI Draft SOI
30 JUNE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Number of event days
Cricket events (days) 49 n/a 38 38 43
Other sports events (days) 25 n/a 20 22 24
Practice facility usage (days) 101 n/a 85 87 90
Community events (days) 36 n/a 13 15 15
Functions (days) n/a n/a 17 19 21
Numbers attending events 49,778 n/a 40,000 42,000 44,000

Key Performance Indicators are refined in this draft SOl to focus on the utilisation of the Basin
Reserve. Officers consider the KPIs to be satisfactory for this purpose. The Trust has also introduced
a KPI to measure the Basin Reserve’s utilisation as a functions venue.

The baseline KPIs to 30 June 2017 will be included in the final SOI.
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14. Wellington Cable Car Limited

OFFICER SUMMARY

The Wellington Cable Car Limited has presented its draft Statement of Intent for 2017/18 (SOI) and it
responds positively to the sub-committee’s letter of expectations.

The company is entering a period of significant change to one of its core activities, with the cessation
of trolley bus services scheduled in late 2017. Upon the services terminating, the overhead network
will be decommissioned over the ensuing twelve month period.

Overhead Network. Procurement and other negotiations are still a work-in-progress, so the draft SOI
contains assumptions relating to the financial impact on the company. The final SOI should reflect the
financial position with a higher degree of certainty including the potential for restructuring costs as a
result of the overhead network side of the business winding down.

Cable Car. The company is undertaking a business case to ascertain the feasibility of the Cable Car
operation becoming part of the Metlink public transport network. The SOI notes that the company is
planning to qualify for central and local government public transport subsidies as part of the Metlink
network. The final SOI should include expected timeframes or cost/benefit discussions and further
details regarding this strategic initiative for the company.

The company’s SOl is succinct and informative focussed on the ongoing operation of the Cable Car
and on the overhead network decommissioning project. The Council’s letter of expectation invited the
company to discuss strategic issues and opportunities and the final SOl should respond to the
following points.

The company should discuss ways that it can contribute to telling its stories and to promote
Wellington as a place to live, work and play.

The company was invited to discuss its strategic options in a future state that does not include
the trolley bus network. The potential to become part of the Metlink public transport network is
an important strategic initiative intended to address the future costs of maintaining the transport
infrastructure. The Cable Car is an iconic part of Wellington’s activities and tourist attractions, it
serves as a gateway to an important visitor precinct, and a ride on the Cable Car is one that
many visitors to Wellington will experience. The final SOl should expand on the future
recognising the importance of the Cable Car to the Wellington visitor economy and visitor
experience. In recent years, the visitor experience has been enhanced with the development of
the Cable Car terminus in Kelburn, the addition of tunnel lights and the refurbishment of Cable
Car lane. The company could discuss opportunities to leverage these investments and further
enhance the visitor experience.

The company should acknowledge its intention to consider opportunities to utilise the Council’s
shared service capabilities which are fit for the purpose and scale of the company’s activities,
as and when these opportunities are presented.

In terms of the board’s approach to governance, the ‘no surprises’ policy is Council’s enduring
expectation of the company and it should be acknowledged.
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SUMMARY FINANCIALS
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
($000) Actual Forecast Draft SOI Draft SOI Draft SOI
30 JUNE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Total Revenue 8,984 7,555 9,072 5,465 3,420
Operating Surplus/Deficit (70) 543 390 673 744
Tax & Subventions Payments (21) 96 116 149 216
Surplus/(Loss) (49) 447 274 524 528
FINANCIAL POSITION
Total Assets 11,878 11,448 11,438 11,965 12,558
Total Liabilities 2,528 1,650 1,366 1,369 1,435
Equity 9,350 9,798 10,072 10,596 11,123
CASH FLOWS
Total Net Cash Flows 722 (351) 1,192 675 477
Opening Cash 1,084 2,100 1,748 2,940 3,615
Closing Cash 1,806 1,748 2,940 3,615 4,091

AOpening cash includes bank deposits plus the company’s self-insurance fund.

The company’s Statement of Financial Performance notes that the company will incur
decommissioning costs of $4.84m in 2018 and $1.89m in 2019 but that these figures are still subject
to a business case with GWRC. The assumptions are a result of the ongoing discussions with GWRC
concerning the decommissioning project, and the final SOI is expected to reflect the agreed position.

The company’s total assets recognise that the overhead trolley bus network assets were fully
impaired (i.e. written off) in the financial year ended 30 June 2016. No further impairment is expected
in relation to the decommissioning of the network.

The ratio of shareholders’ funds to total assets as at 30 June 2015 (78%) needs to be updated.

KPI DASHBOARD

The tables contain a selection of KPIs and not a complete list.

Actual SOl SOl SOl SOl
30-Jun-16  30-Jun-17 30-Jun-18 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-20
Passengers Target | 1,010,905 927,646 1,091,928 1,121,417 1,150,928
Actual | 1,047,000 -- -- -- -
*Fare income ($000) Target n/a 2,889 3,177 $3,345
Actual 2,731 -- -- -- --

Passenger Satisfaction
Local passengers: use Cable Target n/a 50% - - .
Car at least 1x per year Actual n/a -- -- -- --
Tourist passengers: rate Target n/a 90% - - .
experience >6 on scale of 1 — 10 Actual n/a -- -- -- --

* This is not a KPI.
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KPI DASHBOARD

The SOI table for Cable Car passengers and revenue does not include the baseline (FYE2017)
estimate for revenue and while this is not a KPI, the data would help to complete the picture and is
recommended.

The company has introduced a Cable Car customer satisfaction measure (KPI) to replace the
Council's Residents Awareness Survey. The satisfaction survey is a welcome move by the company
toward understanding more about its performance in delivering this core activity. The SOI implies this
target is for the 2017/18 year. Officers recommend that a passenger satisfaction measure is forecast
for 3 years.
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15. Karori Sanctuary Trust

OFFICER SUMMARY

The Karori Sanctuary Trust (trading as Zealandia) has presented its draft Statement of Intent for
2017/18 (SOI) and it responds positively to the sub-committee’s letter of expectation. The SOl is a
comprehensive document that clearly articulates the Trust’s intentions to continue to meet the
enduring expectations of Council and to maintain the Trust’s alignment with relevant Council policies
and strategies.

The Trust is building on its Memorandum of Understanding with the Woodlands & Wetlands Trust in
Canberra with a number of staff and trustee exchanges which have led to a number of new
opportunities including joint promotion through the Intercontinental Hotel group, growing research
relationships with the Australian National University and further staff exchanges. Its relationship with
the Woodlands & Wetlands Trust in Canberra provides key opportunities for Zealandia to tell its
Wellington stories in Canberra and to leverage the Capital Express initiative.

The scope of Zealandia’s activities has a strong focus on education and the Trust notes that its MOU
with Victoria University of Wellington underpins a growing programme of multi-disciplinary research.
The Trust will continue its efforts to establish a research centre with VUW, based at Zealandia. The
provision of programmes for lower decile schools will also continue to develop, along with
Zealandia’s other school-age programmes.

Zealandia is a strong supporter of the Council’'s Predator Free Wellington project, in which Council is
partnering with Greater Wellington Regional Council and NEXT Foundation to make Wellington, New
Zealand'’s first predator-free city. The Trust has built many partnerships and networks in achieving its
successes to date which align with Predator Free Wellington and is very keen to support the
Council’s project wherever it can.

Last year Zealandia welcomed over 125,000 visitors, helped by Wellington’s very warm and dry
summer as well as Sirocco’s visit which brought an additional 2,900 visitors specifically to see the
celebrity bird. Zealandia expects to host over 106,000 visitors in the current financial year ended 30
June 2017. Forecast visitor numbers beyond the current year show steady but modest year on year
growth but are tempered below the current year and last year’s achievements. Officers agree with the
Trust that the SOI forecasts are an acceptable balance given the recent and rapid increases on prior
year’s visitation figures.

The Trust has made some minor refinements to its conservation KPIs but there are no concerns
regarding the refined measures. The satisfaction rating KPI in the draft SOl will be replaced in the
final SOI with a clearer measure of visitor satisfaction.

In recent years the Trust’s financial performance has improved markedly in response to its improved
operational performance and this is demonstrated by the growing strength of the Trust's cash
reserves. This marks a significant turnaround in the overall financial sustainability of the Trust and
positions Zealandia well to deliver on its own programmes and its strategic alignments with Council.

ltem 2.1 Page 14
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SUMMARY FINANCIALS
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
($000) Actual Forecast Draft SOI Draft SOI Draft SOI
30 JUNE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Total Revenue 4,223 4,305 3,788 3,873 3,953
Opex before Depn 3,550 3,757 3,470 3,549 3,628
EBITDA* 673 548 318 324 325
Net Profit (Loss) 108 (304) (338) (267) (189)
FINANCIAL POSITION
Total Assets 15,322 6,485 5,883 5,589 5,359
Total Liabilities 11,251 916 643 616 575
Equity 4,072 5,577 5,239 4,973 4,783
CASH FLOWS
Total Net Cash Flows (148) 468 12 276 285
Opening Cash 389 241 709 721 997
Closing Cash 241 709 721 997 1,282

*Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation & Amortisation.

Revenue forecasts from 2018 are tempered along with the Trust’s visitor number forecasts as the
Trust consolidates upon its recent strong performances in 2016 and the current FYE2017. This is a
pragmatic response to the recent turnaround achieved by Zealandia and it is appropriate. That said,
the Trust is forecasting EBITDA exceeding $300k per annum which is achieved by careful
management of its operating costs and marks the significant turnaround in its financial sustainability.

KPI DASHBOARD

The tables contain a selection of KPIs and not a complete list.

Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
30 JUNE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Non-financial
Visitors 125,849 106,574 96,500 99,300 102,200
Individual members 10,572 11,110 10,600 10,800 11,000
Students & education visits 9,478 8,500 8,650 8,800 8,800
Satisfaction rating » 99% n/a >94%" >95%" >95%"
Volunteer numbers 417 >400 >430 >450 >470
Financial
Full cost per visitor* $11.34 $16.91 $16.51 $16.11 $15.79
Average subsidy per visit** $6.95 $9.35 $9.07 $8.80 $8.54
Average revenue per visit*** $26.03 $25.96 $26.22 $26.48 $26.74
Non-Council donations & funding $402,608 $250,000 $265,000 $270,000 $275,000

* incl. WCC costs

** total WCC operating grant/visitors

*** axcl. grants & interest

Iltem 2.1 Page 15
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KPI DASHBOARD

N The Trust's draft SOI currently applies a customer satisfaction measure which proposes that
Zealandia will achieve satisfied visitors at a rate of 5% above the city benchmark. This KPI will be
replaced in the final SOI with the metrics contained in the table above.

Conservation Measures

30 June 2017 2018 2019 2020

Restore species to the wild in accordance with the restoration strategy

Number of new animal species transferred 0 0 1 0

Number of transferred animal species being actively
managed in the wild 11 11 11 11

Number of animal species in the wild being actively
monitored 10 11 12 12

Percentage of transferred animal species regarded as self-
sustaining 79% 79% 75% 75%

Maintain or Improve the population status of nationally threatened species present

Number of threatened species present and breeding
successfully 4 4 4 4

Manage species held for captive breeding purposes to ensure they remain healthy and breed successfully

Number of species breeding in captivity 2 2 2 2

Monitor animal pest status, control mice & successfully respond to any incursions

Mice maintained at levels below or similar to previous years <10 <10 <10 <10

Percentage of pest animal incursions successfully
eradicated 100% 100% 100% 100%

Monitor plant pest status and reduce distribution of environmental weeds (currently 123) within and near the
fence perimeter

Number of pest plant species actively controlled or
surveyed 44 44 44 44

Number of pest plant species where control has achieved a
decline to low levels of infestation in the sanctuary 52 53 53 53

Zealandia updated its conservation KPlI measures two years ago and has refined them slightly this
year. The core measures are unchanged and they remain meaningful and measureable and support
Zealandia’s core purpose and strategic visions for the sanctuary.

The translocation of rifleman to the sanctuary that was scheduled for March 2017 was unfortunately
postponed when it was discovered that the population in the Wainuiomata/Orongorongo source site
was considerably lower than previously thought.
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16. Wellington Museums Trust

OFFICER SUMMARY

The Wellington Museums Trust (now trading as Experience Wellington) has presented its draft
Statement of Intent for 2017/18 (SOI) and it responds positively to the sub-committee’s letter of
expectations. The SOI provides a well presented and concise outline of Experience Wellington’s key
focus areas and performance measures.

Experience Wellington is forecasting a break-even financial outcome (excluding Space Place) after
accounting for depreciation. Some Key Performance Indicators are proposed to change slightly and
will provide a more meaningful measure of the performance of its heritage collections. This is a
welcome addition to the other measures that the Trust reports against and will help inform the public
of the efforts to develop the city’s heritage collections and the accessibility of them, as well as the
growth in its collections.

Experience Wellington plans to benchmark visits by children and young people and first-time
Wellington city resident visits during 2017/18 with a view to introducing a new KPI in 2018/19. The
first-time visitor KPl would replace the current repeat visitation measure and help to measure
Experience Wellington’s performance in attracting new audiences while the repeat visitation measure
will be maintained as a management reporting item. Officers are supportive of these changes.

While the SOI is succinct and informative, Experience Wellington’s final SOI should respond to the
following points.

Space Place. Experience Wellington is forecasting a deficit for Space Place in 2016/17 of
$149,000 which is in-line with the last SOI. In the draft SOI the trading deficit at Space Place is
forecast to improve slightly in 2017/18 to a deficit of $130,000 and again in 2018/19 to
$125,000. The forecast losses align fairly closely with the forecast losses in the last SOI.

The current business model for Space Place has been in place for almost two years and while
visitation numbers are broadly in line with expectations, the challenge has been improving
revenues and minimising the trading deficit at this activity. Note: Council underwrites any
trading deficits at Space Place.

The SOI states that the new Space Place operating model will be fully evaluated during the
2017/18 year. It is appropriate that this activity is reviewed closely and that Council is involved
in the review. The final SOI should note the review and that a full range of options will be
considered together with Council.

The SOl includes reference to a number of strategic investment opportunities including a Cable
Car Precinct — Technology and Science Hub. The SOI notes that Experience Wellington will
investigate the viability of establishing within the Cable Car precinct a technology and science
hub as it develops options for the upgrade and potential expansion of the Cable Car Museum
and the continual updating of the Space Place experience. The Trust intends to start by
reviewing how it can improve on this under-developed part of the Wellington story.

Experience Wellington also intends to present its plans to Council for new visitor experiences
at Wellington Museum which will include its earthquake strengthening and developing plans for
Capital E’s future.

These projects do not currently have funding and officers recommend that the final SOI reflects
that work on scoping these projects be undertaken in conjunction with Council with a view to
them being considered as part of the 2018-28 Long Term Plan.
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SUMMARY FINANCIALS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

($000) Actual Forecast Draft SOI Draft SOI Draft SOI
30 JUNE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Total Revenue 12,162 12,730 11,911 12,715 12,349
Opex before Depreciation 11,432 12,443 11,631 12,430 12,042
Depreciation 467 436 410 410 427
Net Surplus (Loss) 262 (149) (130) (125) (120)
FINANCIAL POSITION

Total Assets 7,173 5,957 5,680 5,470 5,330
Total Liabilities 2,435 1,220 1,073 988 968
Equity 4,738 4,737 4,607 4,482 4,362
CASH FLOWS

Total Net Cash Flows (1,344) (657) (185) (51) (90)
Opening Cash 3,066 1,722 1,065 880 830
Closing Cash 1,722 1,065 880 830 740

The financial forecasts present a break-even budget for Experience Wellington’s activities excluding
Space Place which is expected to operate at a trading deficit of $130k to 30 June 2018. Overall, the
Trust is forecasting a continuation of its sound financial position with adequate levels of cash on
hand.

KPI DASHBOARD

The tables contain a selection of KPIs and not a complete list.

* Museums Wellington includes the Wellington Museum, the Cable Car Museum and Nairn Street Cottage
Museum. As is now standard practice, quarterly reporting will include the fully costed subsidy per visit.

Actual Forecast Draft SOI Draft SOI Draft SOI
30 JUNE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Council subsidy per visit
City Gallery $11.53 $12.87 $12.50 $12.65 $12.80
Museums Wellington* $4.29 $5.34 $5.18 $5.00 $4.95
Capital E $16.02 $14.36 $14.53 $14.91 $14.61
Space Place $8.89 $10.59 $9.89 $9.69 $9.60

Council subsidy per visit is a measure of Council’s operating grant per visitor. Council’s operating
grant is a bulk grant to Experience Wellington and the allocation between institutions is done by the
Trust.

The final SOI will include the table of the forecasted full cost per visitor (which is consistent with
Wellington Zoo and Zealandia). Full cost per visitor is a measure of the full cost to Council including
property ownership and other overhead costs in addition to the operating grant. This measure is
effectively ‘owned’ by Council and cannot be influenced by the Trust. The forecast figures will be
available to be included in the Trust’s final SOI.
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KPI DASHBOARD

Actual Forecast Draft SOI Draft SOI Draft SOI
30 JUNE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Non-Council Revenue
City Gallery 610 1,284 607 645 650
Museums Wellington* 672 573 666 680 690
Capital E 1,023 1,534 1,279 1,658 1,285
Space Place 540 588 600 620 637
Sub Total 2,844 3,979 3,152 3,603 3,262
Sub-letting, Interest & Other 205 165 0 0 0
Total Non-Council Revenue 3,049 4,144 3,152 3,603 3,262

Non-council revenue figures from FYE2018 do not appear to include sub-letting, interest or other
revenue. The final SOI should address this.

Actual Forecast Draft SOI Draft SOI Draft SOI
30 JUNE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Spend per visit
City Gallery $1.18 $4.67 $1.57 $1.53 $1.53
Museums Wellington* $1.97 $1.30 $1.41 $1.36 $1.42
Capital E $3.20 $5.48 $3.84 $5.14 $3.90
Space Place $8.39 $10.38 $10.12 $10.10 $10.14

Actual Forecast Draft SOI Draft SOI Draft SOI
30 JUNE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Visitation
City Gallery 178,228 150,000 143,000 170,000 175,000
Wellington Museum 133,470 134,000 137,000 140,000 143,000
Capital E 79,120 105,000 90,000 110,000 95,000
Cable Car Museum 241,638 220,000 237,000 237,000 237,000
Space Place 52,838 46,800 52,000 53,000 54,000
Nairn Street Cottage 2,875 3,200 2,500 2,500 2,700
TOTAL 688,169 659,000 661,500 712,600 706,700

Visitation targets have been set in response to expected interruptions such as the anticipated
redevelopment of the City Gallery’s entrance and foyer planned to take place in 2017/18.

Capital E visitation reflects the impact of the biennial Capital E National Arts Festival.

ltem 2.1
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17. Wellington Zoo Trust

OFFICER SUMMARY

The Wellington Zoo Trust has presented its draft Statement of Intent for 2017/18 (SOI) and it
responds positively to the sub-committee’s letter of expectation. The SOl is a concise document that
clearly articulates the Trust’s intentions to continue meeting the enduring expectations of Council and
to maintain the Trust’s alignment with relevant Council policies and strategies.

The Zoo is in a sound financial position and is forecasting to steadily grow its annual visitation with a
break-even budget. The SOI forecasts continue with a ‘normalised’ growth in visitation following a
particularly strong year in 2016 on the back of Wellington’s exceptional summer.

The Zoo expects to continue host over 10,000 students participating in Learning Experiences Outside
The Classroom. This comfortably exceeds the Ministry of Education expectations which support this
programme and which is due to be renewed in December 2017.

The Zoo’s partnership with The Warehouse continues to bring students from low decile schools in the
Wellington and Tasman regions to the Zoo for learning sessions (Zoofari). Around 1,600 students
plus parents and teachers travel each year to visit the Zoo and participate in a range of educational
programmes.

Bush Builders is another ongoing unique environmental literacy programme aimed at students from
urban schools and has involved over 4,000 students in the region. This programme and Zoofari
demonstrate the ongoing commitment by Wellington Zoo to environmental education for young
people in this region.

The Zoo is closely aligned to the Council’s strategic direction and the SOI discusses how the Zoo’s
actions and activities contribute to Council’s Towards 2040 strategy; specifically Connected City, Eco
City, People Centred City and Dynamic Central City strategies. The Zoo refines its four core
strategies toward ‘igniting a zoo revolution’ which aims to leverage its reputation and leadership in
the sector and deliver 21st century conservation and sustainability programmes and actions, and
help to reverse the loss of global biodiversity. This is deliberately ambitious but it represents the
culture that underpins how the Zoo approaches its day to day activities to achieve the continuous
improvement needed for such goals.

In response to the now completed 10 year Zoo Capital Programme, the Trust has outlined its desired
programme of capital projects for the Zoo over the next 10 years. The table is headed Proposed
Capital Spend for New Capital Projects. These projects do not have funding and officers recommend
that the final SOI reflects this position and that work on scoping these projects could be undertaken
with a view to them being considered as part of the 2018-28 Long Term Plan.

SUMMARY FINANCIALS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

($000) Actual Forecast Draft SOI Draft SOI Draft SOI
30 JUNE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Total Revenue 7,201 7,256 7,105 7,270 7,455
Total Expenses 6,817 7,256 7,105 7,270 7,455
Net Surplus 384 0 0 0 0
Total Assets 3,842 2,880 1,954 1,864 1,886
Total Liabilities 1,516 1,540 1,014 924 946
Trust Funds 2,326 1,340 940 940 940
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SUMMARY FINANCIALS

Net Cash Flow -134 -800 -912 0 22
Opening Cash 3,456 3,456 2,656 1,744 1,744
Closing Cash On Hand 3,322 2,656 1,744 1,744 1,766

The Trust is forecasting a break-even budget while continuing to deliver its activities and services to
the high standards which we have become accustomed to.

Vesting (to Council) of the funding received for capital projects (held on the balance sheet as
restricted funds) is the reason for the decline in the Trust Funds. In 2017 this is forecast to be $821k
and in 2018 a further $400k, which combines to account for the forecast reduction in Trust Funds
from $2.3m to $940k over the period. This programme is also behind the reduction in cash reserves
over the same period.

KPI DASHBOARD

The tables contain a selection of KPIs and not a complete list.

Draft Draft Draft

Actual Forecast SOl SOl SOl
30 JUNE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Non-financial
Visitors 260,809 242,000 244,420 246,864
No. Students participating in LEOTC sessions 11,413 10,500 10,750 11,000
Contact animals meeting visitors in Zoo 1,286 1,100 1,100 1,100
People participating in close encounters 3,677 4,000 4,000 4,000
Financial
% Operating costs generated by the Trust 60%
Ratio Trust generated income as % Council grant 138% 116% 116% 116%
Income per visitor from Trust generated revenue $14.90 $15.79 $15.98 $16.22
Council subsidy per visitor $10.79
Full cost per visitor $19.01 TBA TBA TBA TBA

The Trust did not include baseline KPIs to 30 June 2017 in the SOI but these will be included in the
final SOI.

The Trust has previously reported on the quantum (as a percentage) of its operating costs that are
met by Trust generated revenues. The draft SOl does not include this KPI but it is recommended that
this KPl is retained and included in the final SOI.

Average Council subsidy per visitor represents the council’s operating grant per visitor. While this can
be measured by Council, it is useful that the Trust continues to report this KPI and it is recommended
that this is retained in the final SOI. The KPI has some consistency in its reporting between other
CCOs and it is important that it is retained.

Full cost per visitor is a measure of the full cost to Council including property ownership and other
overhead costs in addition to the operating grant. This measure is effectively ‘owned’ by Council and
cannot be influenced by the Trust. The forecast figures will be available to be included in the Trust's
final SOI.

The SOI does not include quarterly visitor number forecasts. These are generally provided to Council
on request. However, the Zoo’s SOI will be improved by including its quarterly visitor forecasts.
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SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Engagement and Consultation
The organisations in this report consult with the Council on a wide range of matters as part of
our “no surprises” relationship.

Treaty of Waitangi considerations

This report raises no new treaty considerations. Where appropriate the entities do consult
with the Council’s Treaty Relations unit, and with the Tenths Trust, as part of normal
operations.

Financial implications
The CCOs work within the context of the Council’s overall Long Term Plan and Annual Plan
framework.

Policy and legislative implications
This report complies with the legislative requirements of the Local Government Act (2002)
and is consistent with existing Council policy.

Risks / legal
Not applicable.

Climate Change impact and considerations
The CCOs work with the Council and other organisations in considering the environmental
sustainability of their operations, including with the Council’s Our Living City programme.

Communications Plan
Not applicable.

Health and Safety Impact considered
Not relevant.
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Draft Statement of Intent 2017-18
Basin Reserve Trust

Presented to the Wellington Council Controlled Organisations Sub-Committee
pursuant to Scheduie 8 of the Local Government Act (2002)

Attachment 1 Basin Reserve Trust draft SOl 2017/18
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Introduction

The Basin Reserve Trust continues a busy programme of activity as befitling the premier
Test cricket ground in New Zealand, the Basin Reserve. In coordination with the Westpac
Stadium Trust, the Basin has played host to a busy international calendar in 2016-17,
including two Test Matches against Bangladesh and South Africa. Complementing this has
been a full schedule of Domestic Cricket capped off by the Wellington Firebirds successful
run to the Super Smash Twenty20 title. Outside of cricket, the Basin again played host to a
music concert, but this time on a smaller scale to Robbie Williams in 2016-17. The Winery
Tour concert was a very popular event and provided a good model for the type of events
capable at the Basin Reserve,

Looking ahead, international cricket is already locked in for the 2017-18 season and a
bidding process will soon begin for matches in the following three seasons. The Trust is
working with the WREDA's events team to ensure a steady stream of non-cricket event
bookings that compiement an already busy schedule. In the winter months, the ground will
continue to be used by Wellington Rugby, now with a focus upon junior sport rather than
seniors. By doing so, usage of the Basin will be increased significantly, while at the same
time improving preparation of the cricket wickets in the off-season.

Momentum continues to build for the Basin Reserve Masterplan and the Trust is pleased to
note that the RA Vance Stand has undergone significant works to date. Over the winter
months, it is expected the stand will become fully functional and present at a high standard.
As planning for the remaining major works progresses, the Trust looks forward to several
smaller projects being completed over the winter. While it will take several years for the
Masterplan project be considered complete, the Trust anticipates a venue that looks
significantly improved in 2017-18.
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Strategic Direction

Core Purpose

The objectives of the trust are stated in the Trust Deed as agreed between the Wellington
City Council and the Basin Reserve Trust and are highlighted below:

1.

to contribute to the Wellington City Council's vision of Creative Wellingten - Innovative
Capital - positioning Wellington as an affordable, interationally competitive city.

to manage, administer, plan, develop, maintain, promote and operate the Basin
Reserve for recreation and leisure activities and for the playing of cricket for the
benefit of the inhabitants of Wellington

to establish a long term policy for the further development of the value of the Basin
Reserve as a recreational facility and as a facility for the playing of cricket, other
sports and as a venue for other community based activities;

to enter into management agreements and other confracts that are necessary or
desirable to achieve the objects of the Trust,

to promote and co-ordinate the raising of funds to assist the management,
administration, maintenance planning, promotion and further development of the
Basin Reserve - in a manner consistent with the achievement of council objectives;

generally to do all acts, matters and things that the Trustees consider necessary or
conducive to further or attain the objects of the Trust set out above for the benefit of
the public of Wellington;

to operate as a successful undertaking, managed on a not-for-profit basis;

to preserve and enhance the significant and recognised heritage value of the Basin
Reserve;

to comply with all legislative and regulatory provisions relating to its operation and

performance including statutory and general Council objectives for Council controlied
organisations, and to acknowledge the Councils contribution where appropriate;

Basin Reserve Trust — Stelement of Intent 2017/18
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Nature and Scope of Activities

The Basin Reserve Trust (the Trust) is a charitable trust, and operates on a not-for profit
basis. The Trustees are appointed by Cricket Wellington (2} and the Wellington City Council
(2).

The Trust operates under the Basin Reserve Trust Deed, which has the following objectives:

* Manage, develop and promote the Basin Reserve for recreation, leisure and cricket
games

» Preserve the heritage value of the Basin Reserve and its assets

+ Organise fundraising to help promote and further develop the Basin Reserve,

Attachment 1 Basin Reserve Trust draft SOl 2017/18
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Board’s Approach to Governance

The Trustees are responsible for setting the strategic direction for the Trust, and approving
the Statement of Intent and Annual Business Plan. The Trustees monitor the organisaticnal
performance and ensures that the ongoing viability of the organisation is maintained.

The Trust delegates the daily operation of the Trust to Cricket Wellington Incorporated,
pursuant to a Management Agreement between the two parties.

Trust Membership
* Sir John Anderson KBE (Chair)
* Mike Horsley
¢ Cr Simon Woolf

¢ Mr John Greenwood

Trust Operations

The Trust meets bi-monthly, and considers a Management Report submitted by Cricket
Wellington as Manager. Additional meetings are called as required.

Performance Management

The performance of the Trust is measured in part by achievement of agreed KPI's, in regards
to operational activities. The Chair of the Board will undertake an annual evaluation of
Trustee performance. Further, the individual performance of Trustees is monitored by the
Wellington City Council (in respect of the two Council- appointed Trustees), and Cricket
Wellington (in regards to the two Cricket Wellington-appointed Trustees).

The Trust acknowledges the need for ongoing professional development opportunities for
Trustees, and encourages the undertaking of specialist training for identified needs. The
Board will on an annual basis implement a programme that supports the identified needs.
This may include programmes such as that offered by the NZ Institute of Directors (or
similar) or specialist knowledge building from appropriate agencies.

Basin Reserve Trust — Statement of intent 2017/18
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Operating Environment Update

Events

The Basin Reserve continues to deliver a calendar of high quality events that balance the
needs of both cricket and non-cricket alike. In terms of cricket, the ground is half-way
through a two-year contract cycle that has New Zealand Cricket locked into three Test
Matches and a One Dayer. Shortly, New Zealand Cricket will look to engage with the Trust,
Westpac Stadium Trust and Wellington City Council on another three year contract cycle.
This next period will see the high profile Indian and Australian teams touring. which
underlines the importance of the city presenting a strong regional case. Below the
international level, domestic cricket sees the resurgence of the Twenty20 format at the Basin
Reserve, moving to a more fan friendly window in the season.

Outside of cricket, the Trust has been actively working with several key partners to make the
ground available in a way that is complimentary to the cricket season. In February 2017, this
saw the ground host the Winery Tour Concert which was met very favourably by the public.
Looking ahead to 2017-18, the venue will host a Wine and Food Festival in December and
we are currently working towards more events in early 2018.

Masterplan Project Rollout

The Trust is supportive of the continued Masterplan work, both in terms of the planning
phase and interim refurbishment of the RA Vance Stand. By the completion of 2016-17, it is
expected that the works will be completed with both the exterior and interior fit outs bringing
the RA Vance Stand back up to a high level. As this part of the project nears completion, the
Trust is anxious to see momentum continued into the next phase. Smaller projects have
been identified for action over the winter of 2017 that should see the ground presenting well
in the following cricket season.

Operational Maintenance Work

Working closely with the Masterplan project, the Trust has endeavoured to complement its
rollout with general repairs, maintenance and small improvements to the functionality of the
venue. Of particular note is the addition of a CCTV security system that improves both its
event operations and the monitoring of after-hours vandalism. This addition has been well
received so far and has enabled police to more accurately identify trends in the area.
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Performance Measurements

Non-financial Performance Measures 2017-20

Measure Frequency Measurement 2017- | 2018- | 2019-
18 19 20

Number of event days Quarterly

* Cricket Events Cricket days 38 38 43

o Other Sports Events Sports days 20 22 24

» Practice facility usage Practice days 85 87 90

o Community Events Other days 13 14 15

* Functions Function days 17 19 21
Numbers attending events Attendance figures 40,000 | 42,000 | 44,000
Non-financial Performance Measures 2017-18
Measure Frequency | Measurement - g * ¢ "

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total

Number of event days Quarterty

o Cricket Events Cricket days o 21 7 o s

e Other Sports Events Sports days 8 2 2 8 1 20

o Practice facility usage Practice days 15 35 35 0 | 85

« Community Events Other days 2 3 3 5 | 13

* Functions Function days 4 3 3 6 ! 17
Numbers attending events Attendance figures | 1,500 |25,000 {12,000 1.5004%'36.“0667‘

Basin Reserve Trust — Statement of intent 2017/18
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Financial Performance Measures
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Additional Information

Response to other specific Letter of Expectation matters (if applicable)

Maintenance Responsibilities for the Basin Reserve

The Trust acknowledges the Councils desire to ensure ongoing maintenance of the
venue is carried out by the Council's own team and will work to ensure that this is a
successful arrangement. At the same time, the Trust believes it is important that the
governance and responsibility for operational management of the Basin Reserve remains
untouched. The Trust has built the venue's capability and credibility over the past 12
years, due in large part to its appreciation of the ground’s unique status and heritage. It
is important that this work continues, particularly as the Masterplan work unfolds.

Naming Rights Sponsor

With the Masterplan timetable close to being confirmed, the Trust now has a greater
degree of certainty on what benefits can be provide to a Naming Rights Sponsor. The
Trust remains confident that a new Naming Rights partner will be recruited ahead of next
summer. In the short term, the Trust will engage a third party specialist to assist in
identifying suitable partners. This third party will work with the Trust in developing
sponsorship collateral for prospective partners, and pursue targets on a commission
basis.

Performance Review

The Trust acknowledges the Council's expectation that a review of the Trustees
performance be undertaken. The Trust will work with Council to ensure this expectation
is addressed through the course of 2017-18

Health and Safety

The Basin Reserve Trustees are very cognisant of their obligations under the new Health and
Safety legislation, and are committed to ensuring the Trust complies with requirements in a best
pracfice approach. The Trust has made significant strides in the past 12 months, particularly in
respect of Emergency Management Planning and compliance of third party contractors at events.
The Trust is continuing to monitor and evaluate best practice in the area of Health and Safety,

Ratio of trustee equity to total assets
0.84:1.00

Basin Reserve Trust — Statement of intent 2017/18
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Estimate of amount intended for distribution

There is no intention to pay out reserves to stakeholders.

Acquisition procedures

There is no intention to make any acquisitions,

Activities for which the board seeks compensation from a local
authority

None.

Estimate of commercial value of stakeholder’'s investment

The net value of the Stakeholder's investment in the trust is estimated to be valued at
$766,000 as at 30 June 2017.

Other matters (if applicable) e.g. water supply services LGA
requirements

None.

Supplementary information the entity wishes to include

None.
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Organisational Health, Capability and Risk Assessment

The Trust undertakes the following measures to manage identified risks.

Financial and Legal Risks

External audit and review of financial accounts
(undertaken by Audit NZ)

Interests Register documented at each Trust meeting
Fraud Policy adopted by the Trust (detailing the Trust's
policy for fraud prevention)

The Trust's financial matters are managed by an
external Accountant, whom also sits on Trust meetings
and partakes in business discussions and decision-
making (as a non-voting member of the Trust's
Executive)

| Health & Safety Health & Safety policy in place, reviewed bi-annually
Evacuation Procedures in place
Meet all building WOF requirements and act in the
required manner on QP reports

;hOperating Risks . Routine Maintenance Plan in place to ensure facility

meets a necessary standard
For cricket-specific events, the Trust meets or exceeds
NZC and/or ICC set criteria

Basin Reserve Trust — Statement of intent 2017/18

Attachment 1 Basin Reserve Trust draft SOl 2017/18

Page 35

ltem 2.1 AHachment 1



ltem 2.1 AHachment 1

COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS
12 APRIL 2017

Absolutely Positively
Wellington City Council

Me Heke Ki Poneke

Appendix: Accounting Policies
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8. APPENDIX: ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIN RESERVE TRUST
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Board has elected to apply PBE SFR-A (PS) Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting -

Accrual (Public Sector) on the basis that the Trust does not have public accountability (as defined) and has
total annual expenses of less than $2 million.

All transactions in the financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.

The financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the Trust will continue to operate in the
foreseeable future,

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with Tier 3 standards, using accounting peficies that are
consistent with those adopted by the Board in preparing these financial statements.

GOODS AND SERVICES TAX
The Trust is registered for GST. All amounts in the financial statements are recorded exclusive of GST,
except for debtors and creditors, which are stated inclusive of GST.

INCOME TAX

The Trus! is registered with the Charities Commission and is thus exempt from income tax under the
Income Tax Act 2007. The Trust is not exempt from the need to comply with indirect tax obligations such as
Goods and Services, Fringe Benefit and Entertainment and accordingly complies with those obligations

that are applicable.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Revenue

Grants

Council grants are recognised as revenue when the funding is received unless there is an obligation to
return the funds if the conditions of the grant are not met ("use or return condition"). If there is such an
obligation, the grant is initially recorded as a fiability and recognised as revenue when conditions of the
grant are satisfied.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are sold to the customer.

Sate of services
Revenue from the sale of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the services
delivered at balance date as a percentage of the total services to be provided,
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BASIN RESERVE TRUST
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Donated Assels
Revenue from donated assets is recognised upon receipt of the asset if the asset has a useful life of 12
months or more, and the value of the asset is readily obtainable and significant.

interest revenue
Interest revenue is recorded as it is earned during the year.

Administration and overhead costs
These are expensed when the related service has been received.

Bank accounts and cash
Bank accounts and cash comprise cash on hand, cheque or savings accounts, and deposits held at call
with banks.

Debtors
Debtors are initially recorded at the amount owed. When it is likely the amount owed (or some portion) will
not be collected, a provision for impairment is recognised and the loss is recorded as a bad debt expense.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Donated assets are recognised upon receipt of the asset if the asset has a useful life of 12 months or more,
and the current value of the asset is readily obtainable and significant. Significant donated assets for which
current values are not readily obtainable are not recognised.

For an asset to be sold, the asset is impaired if the market price for an equivalent asset fails below its
carrying amounts,

For an asset to be used by the Trust, the asset is impaired if the value to the Trust in using the asset falis
below the carrying amount of the asset.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis at rates that will write off the cost of the assets over their
useful lives. The useful lives and associated depreciation rates of major classes of assets have been

estimated as follows:

Leasshold Improvements - 1.5 t0 45.5 years (2.20% to 66.70%)
Drainage works 14 to 18 years (5.50% - 7.20%)
Furniture & fittings 25085 years {12.00% - 48.00%)
Plant 3106.5 years (16.20% - 33.00%)
Creditors and accrued expenses

Creditors and accrued expenses are measured at the amount owed.
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BASIN RESERVE TRUST
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Budget figures

The budget figures are derived from the statement of intent as approved by the Board at the beginning of the
financial year. The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with Tier 3 standards, using
accounting policies that are consistent with those adopted by the Board in preparing these financial
statements,

Tier 2 PBE Accounting Standards applied
The Trust has not applied any Tier 2 Accounting Standards in preparing its financial statements.
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND TRANSITION TO THE NEW PBE SFR-A (PS) STANDARD

This is the third set of financial statements prepared using the new PBE SFR-A (PS) standard, and
and there have been no changes in accounting policies from the previous financial year.
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9. APPENDIX: FORECAST FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BASIN RESERVE TRUST
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEARS ENDING
30 June 30 June 30 June
2018 2019 2020
$'s $'s $'s
Revenue
Coungcil funding 628,993 656,900 686,043
Sales of goods and services 278,000 255,000 353,000
Interast revenue 3.500 3,500 3,500
Total Revenue 910,493 915,400 1,042,543
Expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 120,000 130,000 150,000
Costs retated to providing goods and services 608,300 639,000 708,800
Other expenses 134,625 135,125 140,625
Total Expenses 862,925 904,125 999,425
Surplus for the year 47 568 11,275 43,118
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BASIN RESERVE TRUST
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
30 June 30 June 30 June
2018 2019 2020
$'s $'s $'s
Assets
Current Assets
Bank accounts and cash 79,633 92,898 138616
Debtors and prepayments 166,137 194,057 223637
Total Current Assets 245,770 286,955 362,253
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 594,429 524,429 499429
Total Non-Curront Assets 594 429 524,429 499 429
Total Assets 840,199 811,384 861,682
Liabilities
Current Liabilitios
Creditors and accrued expenses 125,360 85,270 92 450
Total Current Liabilities 125.360 85270 92.450
Total Liabilities 125,360 85,270 92,450
Total Assets less Total Liabllities 714,839 726,114 769,232
Trust Equity
Contributed capital 100 100 100
Accumulated surpluses 714,739 726,014 768,132
Total Trust Equity 714,839 726,114 769,232
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BASIN RESERVE TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDING

30 June 30 June 30 June
2018 2019 2020
$'s $'s $'s
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts of council funding 578.993 601,800 626,043
Receipts from sale of goods and services 178,000 155,000 253,000
Interest receipts 3,500 3,500 3,500
Payments to supphers and empioyees (612,925) (638,125) {709,425)
GST (net) (42,060) (48.010) (52,400)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 105,508 73,265 120,718
Cash Flows from Investing and Financing
Activities
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment (50,000) (60,000) {75,000)
Net Cash Flows from Investing and Financing
Activities (50,000} (60,000) (75,000}
Net Increasel/(Decrease) in Cash for the Year 55,508 13,285 45718
Add opening bank accounts and cash 24125 79,633 92,898
Closing Bank Accounts and Cash 79,633 92,898 138,616
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9. APPENDIX: FORECAST FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BASIN RESERVE TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018

st Qir 2nd Qir ~3rd Qir ath Qir Total
Revenue
Council funding 274,497 50,000 240,496 55,000 628,993
Sales of goods and services 24,000 133,000 98,000 23,000 278,000
Interest revenue 1,400 600 800 600 3,500
Total Revenue 260,607 183,600 348,306 76,600 $10,493
Expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 30.000 30,000 30,000 30,000 120,000
Costs related to providing goods and services 155,800 183,550 165,500 103,650 508,300
Other expenses 20.280 36,270 35270 43,805 134,625
Total Expensos 205,880 248,820 230,770 177,455 862,625
Surplus (Deficit) for the year S4.017 {65,220) 717,626 {98.855) 47,568
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BASIN RESERVE TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

15t Qtr 2nd Qir 3rd Qir 4th Qtr Yotal

Assets

Current Assets <

Bank accounts and cash 166,850 19,000 111,456 79633 76,833

Debtors and prepeyments 122,500 172,839 163,260 188,137 188,137

Total Current Assets 279,350 191,639 274,725 245770 248770

NonCurrent Assets

Praperty, plant and aquipment 634,429 620429 824,429 584,429 504,429

Total Non-Current Assets 834,420 629.429 624,429 594 429 £94.429

Total Assets 913,779 821,268 899,154 840,199 840,199

Liabilities

Current Liabllities

Crediiors and accrued expenses 152,491 125,200 85,460 125.360 125,360

Total Current Liabilitios 152,491 125,200 85 480 128 360 125 380

Total Liabilities 152,491 125,200 85460 125,360 125,380

Total Assots 1065 Total LIabilities 761,208 506,068 813,604 714,839 714,830

Trust Equity

Contributed capdal 100 100 100 100 100

Accumulated surpiuses 761,188 605,968 813,504 714,730 714,739

Total Trust Equity 761,268 696,068 £13,684 714,839 714,839

Attachment 1 Basin Reserve Trust draft SOl 2017/18 Page 44



COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS Absolutely Positively

Wellington City Council
12 APRIL 2017 Me Heke Ki Poneke
BASIN RESERVE TRUST
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018
1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities .
Receipts of council funding 220487 62,110 228,986 58,400 578,883
Recaipts from sale of gcods and services 18,100 38,500 52250 68,150 178,000
Interest receipls 1.400 800 00 600 3.500
Payments 10 suppliers and employees (127,412) (175,600) (182.500) (127,413) (612,825)
GST (nef) o 11,150 (38,480) 17.810 %&g%L _142,080)
Net Cash Flows from Oporating Activities 132,725 (112,850) 117,456 {31.823) 105,508
Cash Flows from Investing and Financing
Activities
Payments lo acquire property, plant and equipment - (25,000) (25.000) . (50,000)
Net Cash Flows from Investing and Financing
Activities - (25.000) (25,000) - (50,000)
Net increase/(Decrease) in Cash for the Year 132,725 (137,850) 82 456 (31,823) 55,508
Add opening bank accounts and cash 24,125 156,850 15.000 111,456 24126
Closing Bank Accounts and Cash 156,850 19,000 111,456 79,632 79,633
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Statement of Intent 2017-2018
Karori Sanctuary Trust

Presented to the Environment Committee
pursuant to Schedule 8 of the Local Government Act (2002)
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1. Introduction

Our 2016/17 Statement of Intent spoke about the consultation underway to develop our second
generation strategy — ZEALANDIA's next 20 years of endeavour. In December 2016 we launched
Living with Nature: Tiaki Taiao, Tiaki Taonga - our strategy for 2016-2035.

Living with Nature articulates our vision for nature-rich communities where people and nature
flourish and the wider Wellington region is internationally recognised as the most nature connected
urban area in the world.

Picking up the ‘beyond the fence’ theme highlighted in the 2016/17 SOI, ZEALANDIA will harness its
knowledge, energy and connections, working with others to transform how we live with nature, and
to reshape the places in which we live, We will do this by focussing on four major themes:

= Treasuring: with a focus on the continued restaration of the sanctuary valley, and the
further strengthening and development of our organisation and people.

= Engaging: it is through collaboration and partnerships outside our sanctuary fence, along
with a greater depth of interaction with our visitors, that we will be able to achieve the
range of impact desired over the next 20 years.

= Learning: continuing to extend the breadth and depth of learning that takes place at
ZEALANDIA and as a consequence of our outreach programmes, from early school
education levels to high level academic¢ research programmes.

= Empowering: equipping everyone who has contact with us to take their own actions to
improve the way we live with nature,

Next steps in 2017/18

Our partnership with Wellington City Council remains an essential and central component of all our
activity and ZEALANDIA aims to enhance significantly our cantribution to Wellington’s reputation as
a liveable and living city. ’

This Statement of Intent sets out our proposals for how this partnership, along with other key
relationships with, for example, Victoria University of Wellington, will be expressed in 2017/18.
Whilst aligning with the Council's 2015-25 Ten Year Plan overall, we will also focus on our
contribution to Our Natural Capital: Wellington's Biodiversity Strategy, the Our Living City Project,
and the Wellington Region Economic Growth Agenda.

Internationally, we will continue to build strong strategic relationships with like-minded
organisations, Qur MOU with the Woodlands and Wetlands Trust in Canberra is one of those and we
will continue to seek ways of leveraging the Capital Express facility through our links in both
Canberra and Singapore.

We are excited at the opportunities presented by the Predator-free Wellington initiative and will
continue working closely with the project to facilitate the eradication of pest species and grow
‘backyard biodiversity’, creating nature-rich communities in Wellington. Major, multi-year projects
such as Sanctuary to Sea and Enhancing the Halo which are already being planned will contribute to
this objective.

Our work across all levels of education and learning remains one of our core areas of activity, as
highlighted in our Living with Nature strategy. Through strong and growing partnerships we will
continue to develop and grow opportunities at all levels. Our provision of programmes for lower
decile schools will continue to develop, along with other school-age programmes. Our MOU with
Victoria University underpins a growing programme of multi-disciplinary research and we are
progressing the establishment of a research centre based at ZEALANDIA.
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We recognise the importance of robust and sustainable infrastructure, and welcome the Council's
support in assisting ZEALANDIA in developing and maintaining fit-for-purpose infrastructure. We are
working on planning documents to present to Council for developments in the 2017/18 year and
beyond. Aligned with this is maintaining and growing strong organisational capability, another key
element highlighted in Living with Nature.

There are multiple opportunities for ZEALANDIA to grow its influence and positive impact, and tell
our stories for the benefit of our city, and we look forward to working with the Council and all our
other key partners to deliver a range of exciting initiatives in 2017/18.

Denise Church Paul Atkins
Chair, Karori Sanctuary Trust, Chief Executive, Karori Sanctuary Trust
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2. The Strategic Partnership with Wellington City Council

During 2016, the Karori Sanctuary Trust {(KST) formally became a Council Controlled Organisation
(CCO}. Wellington City Council (WCC) is a key strategic partner of the Trust and is a major funder, its
grant comprising approximately 21% of total revenue, The Council also owns the land and Visitors
Centre on which the Trust Board operates ZEALANDIA. The strategic priorities of the City form an
important part of the strategic context for ZEALANDIA and our goals are closely aligned to meeting
many of the City’s priorities as described later in this document

The ZEALANDIA Visitors Centre ownership transfer to WCC was completed on 7 October 2016. The
transfer is an important step in deepening the practical partnership with WCC and ensuring that
ZEALANDIA is well positioned as a sustainable, long term contributor to Wellington's continued
growth as an exciting, vibrant and liveable city,

In December 2016, we launched our strategy for 2016-2035, Living with Nature: Tiaki Taiao, Tiaki
Tangata. We were delighted that Hon Nicky Wagner and Mayor Justin Lester were able to attend as
our guest speakers, and many of our key partners from across Welington were there. The launch
was the culmination of many months of workshops and conversations with members, volunteers,
Board, Guardians, staff, and our key stakeholders from partner organisations. The relationship with
conservation and parks staff at WCC remains strong and continues to grow as ZEALANDIA and WCC
staff worlk increasingly closely together to develop new projects.

Already we have a powerful platfarm in Wellington with our partners, a biodiversity action plan and
committed councils, communities, schools and universities, ZEALANDIA is now seeking to enrich
urban biodiversity across an ever-expanding landscape in the context of New Zealand’s 2050
predator-free goal. This is an uncharted journey forall, and the learning opportunities we actively
build into everything we do, and new knowledge generated, will be of national and international
significance. '

Through our deepening relationship with Council and other partners our impact and influence
beyond the fence will be leveraged for the benefit of our community and further afield. Our strategy
will enable us to continue to contribute significantly to Wellington as a great place to live, work, visit,
and learn — a nature rich city that is globally influential in restoring people’s connection with our
natural heritage,

As a CCO, we will implement the living wage policy for our employees as required by WCC, and
anticipate that the Council will support funding the additional cost associated with this.

2.1 Wellington City 2015-2025 Ten Year Plan

Under its 2015-2025 Ten Year Plan, the Council commits to part fund ZEALANDIA as a conservation
visitor attraction. The rationale for this investment is that ZEALANDIA will inform and educate people
on the importance of conservation and biodiversity, attract visitors, and restore and protect native
flora and fauna.

Amongst Council’s outcome indicators in the Ten Year Plan, those of most relevance for ZEALANDIA
are:

= residents’ usage of the city’s open spaces

= high value biodiversity sites are covered by integrated animal pest control or weed
control

= the success of Council’s investment in visitor attractions:
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2016-17
f 2017-18 ' 2018-19 : 2019-20
ZEALANDIA visitors 106,577 96,500 99,300 102,200

2.2 Wellington Towards 2040: Smart Capital

Wellington’s Strategic Vision, “Wellington Towards 2040: Smart Capital” is supported by four goals —
people-centred city, connected city, eco-city and dynamic central city. The eco-city goal recognises
the importance of Wellington taking an environmental leadership role.

Research has shown that Wellingtonians have a deep appreciation of nature, The city currently has
over 4,000 hectares of reserve lands, including parks and reserves for recreation, wildlife, and
scenery. Wellington also has over sixty community conservation groups which participate in planting
native species in reserve lands, weed work, clearing and maintaining waterways, and pest control.

ZEALANDIA makes a significant contribution to the city through not only our unique amenity value,

but increasingly as the source of the resurgence of native fauna now being experienced throughout
the city and suburbs. Additionally, many of our programmes further the environmental leadership

role through, for example:

= Education, teaching and learning: These have always been key programmes for
ZEALANDIA. Our annual programme of school visits is delivered in partnership with the
Ministry of Education’s Learning Experiences Qutside the Classroom programme
(LEOTC). Youth engagement with nature is funded through numerous community
organisations including the Mana Trust and Rotary. Another significant and growing arm
of learning is through access to our sanctuary by academic researchers, locally and
nationally. .

* Research: An integrated programme of multi-disciplinary, long-term research is being
developed with multi-organisational input. Victoria University of Wellington is a
principal partner in this, under our Memorandum of Understanding with the university.
We are working towards the establishment of a research centre located at ZEALANDIA as
a nationally and internationally recagnised centre of research excellence. Through
cutting-edge research we will generate the data, information, knowledge and
understanding required to transform how we live well with nature and reshape the
places in which we live.

2.3 Our Living City

Biophilic cities contain abundant nature. They care about, and seek to protect, restore and grow this
nature, and strive to foster deep connections and daily contact with the natural world. In a biophilic
city nature is not something optional, but essential to living a happy, heaithy and meaningful life.

Over 50% of the world’s population lives in urban areas and from United Nations projections this is
expected to reach 70% by 2050. Our challenge as urban centres become increasingly populated is
how to ensure that we don’t lose our connection to nature.

There is now a significant body of research demonstrating how human health can benefit from
exposure to green environments, nature and wildlife, in relation to both physical and psychological
wellbeing. Much of the research shows the direct positive effect of nature on the health and
happiness of people, reduced stress and improved work performance.

A recent survey of ZEALANDIA members revealed that a significant benefit derived from their annual
subscription was the pursuit of better health and well-being.
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The “Our Living City” programme is being developed by the Council's biophilic city team, to improve
Wellington’s quality of life by strengthening urban-nature connections throughout the city, and
building economic opportunities from a healthy environment.

Council has identified three goals for Our Living City:

= Growing and enjoying our natural capital - making sure that projects are carried out in a
way which protects and develops our urban nature, biodiversity and resilience.

*  Transforming our economy and reducing impact - attracting people, ideas and
investment to the city; promoting green research, technologies and services; investing in
smart infrastructure; reducing emissions from stationary energy, transport and waste.

= Showing leadership - encouraging community action; establishing partnerships, including
research partnerships.

To achieve these goals, Council has committed to a range of partnerships to grow its reputation as a
centre of excellence for urban planning, resilience and ecological sustainability.

ZEALANDIA and its programmes are at the core of Wellington as a living city, and closely aligned with
the Council’s way of working, We represent a unigue model of global significance. The protection of
such a large space within close proximity to the central business district of a capital city is a model
that can be looked to from around the world as an example of how to balance urban environments
with natural spaces. Other ways in which we make a significant contribution ta the “Our Living City”
programme include:

= Partnering with organisations which engage the community with nature-based activities
and provide a platform to raise awareness and open the debate around the connection
between well-being and nature, thereby positioning the conservation of the natural
envirpnment at the centre of national life. We play a leading role in the Nature
Connections network and the exciting programmes developed through this to engage
young people such as “Wild Things”. Our Nature Connections partners include
Wellington Zoo and Otari Wilton's Bush. Other key partnerships include Te Papa and the
Department of Conservation.

= Qur partnership with Victoria University of Wellington continues to develop and
provides a basis for outstanding research.,

»  Engaging at a community level with groups including Hutt Valley Disability Resources
Trust, Thumbs up and the Sustainability Trust. This has included partnering for activities
to mark special days in the calendar and staff using their newly introduced volunteer
days to help out at other community groups.

= Qur partnership with the Woodlands and Wetlands Trust (Canberra} continues to grow
and in 2016/17 we had a number of trustee and staff exchanges which have led to a
number of new opportunities including joint promotion through the Intercontinental
Hotel group, growing research relationships with ANU, and further staff exchanges. The
Capital Express supports Zealandia in its relationship with the Woodlands & Wetlands
Trust in Canberra and provides key opportunities for ZEALANDIA to tell its Wellington
stories in Canberra and to leverage the Capital Express initiative. ZEALANDIA hosted
senior representatives from Canberra and Wellington as part of the Canberra in
Wellington initiative in early 2017.

As indicated in the next section, our vision for the next 20 years puts partnerships at the centre of
the way we work,

2.4 Our Natural Capital: Wellington’s Biodiversity Strategy
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Wellington’s Biodiversity Strategy, completed in 2015, aims to protect and restore the city’s
indigenous biodiversity. In order to protect indigenous biodiversity Council recognises the need to
connect people to it, and to carry out research so it can be better managed.

Council has identified four themes for its work to implement the Biodiversity Strategy:

= We will aim to protect the ecologically significant areas on both private and public land.

*  We will restore these areas, create safe buffer zones around them and connect them
together. We will reduce pest numbers throughout Wellington City to a point where our
native species can survive and expand.

= Throughout the urban environment, we will focus on raising awareness of the issues
facing indigenous biodiversity and connecting people to their natural environment,

= We will enable our community to continue restoration work across all of our reserves
and we will support them in these efforts.

There is an increasing awareness worldwide of the need to pratect our natural environment.
Wellington is uniquely positioned to grow as a nature capital with ZEALANDIA at its heart as a nature
destination and a site for urban ecology research and community learning.

There is very close alignment between the Council's Biodiversity Strategy and the purpose, strategy
and themes by which ZEALANDIA works and will work in future.

=  ZEALANDIA recognises and rejoices in people’s growing awareness of, and desire to
reconnect to, the natural world.

*  ZEALANDIA plays an impartant role in the restoration of natural biodiversity in
Wellington and in a range of Councll led and supported initiatives. We are firmly
committed to the Nature Connections and Halo projects that expand environmental
programmes and enhance visitor experiences in the Wellington region.

*  Ongoing support of other conservation and research programmes will continue and
cement ZEALANDIA's leadership as a model for fenced mainland sanctuaries running
restoration projects, as well as significantly contributing to conservation of threatened
species by successful transfers to the sanctuary and to other sites.

= The science of urban ecology is emerging as increasingly influential, and ZEALANDIA is
well-placed to help grow momentum for this important work across the Wellington
region. Qur urban location, education programme, connection to the community,
- proximity to Victoria University, and the visible effect upon the city’s birdlife is helping to
‘nurture a generation of Wellingtonians who treasure New Zealand's indigenous flora
and faupa.

2.5 Our Capital Spaces Framework

The Council’s Open Spaces and Recreation Framework for Wellington 2013-23 includes three
priorities that are directly relevant to ZEALANDIA:

* Enhancing the Halo project and biodiversity - expand pest management and native
planting; and work with partners to deliver the Halo project buffer zone to expand the
safe habitats for birds flying in and out of ZEALANDIA.

= Accessible information - Provide on-site signs and information {on paper, online and for
mobile devices) that can be accessed by everyone, including people with physical,
hearing or sight impairments.

* Partnerships - Help expand partnerships, recognising that partnership requires
resourcing from both sides.
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Working with Council on these priorities aligns closely with our purpose of restoring our connection
with our unique natural heritage, inspiring and enabling people to take action.

2.6 The Wellington Regional Economic Growth Agenda

The Wellington City Economic Development Strategy 2012 aims to attract business, talent and
investment to the Wellington region. It includes four key platforms - Destination Wellington, The
Smart Capital, The Connected Capital, and Open for Business. Destination Wellington is about
building on the city's tourism marketing successes, expanding the story we tell to celebrate and build
the city’s economy.

Tourism is an important contributor to economic growth in Wellington and New Zealand.
Wellington has a strong domestic tourism market with 75% of visitors to the city coming from other
parts of New Zealand. Domestic visitors typically cite their reasons for travel as for a specific event,
business or to have an urban experience,

International travellers from Germany, Scandinavia, and Canada are boosting Wellington
significantly. Chinese tourism has also seen large growth over the last two years. The way Chinese
tourists travel in New Zealand is changing, moving away from organised tours to more self-organised
trips.

ZEALANDIA works closely with the relevant agencies in Wellington to position itself firmly at the
centre of the tourist trail in the city. In 2015/16 ZEALANDIA:

= Attracted over 125,000 visitors to the sanctuary.

= Featured consistently in the top 5 Wellington ‘must do’ visitor experiences on Trip
Advisor.

In 2017/18 we will explore opportunities to work increasingly closely with the Wellington Regional
Economic Development Agency (WREDA) which has been set up to advance the prosperity and
liveahility of the Wellington region, including through tourism.
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3. Strategic Direction for 2017/18 and beyond

In December 2016 we launched our new strategy covering the period 2016 to 2035. Entitied Living
with Nature, the document presents the four key themes around which our work will be centred, as
follows:

3.1 Living with Nature: Our strategy for 2016-2035 / Tiaki Taiac, Tiaki Tangata: Te Rautaki 2016-
2035

In ZEALANDIA’s first generation from 1995 to 2015, a courageous and clever group turned a bold
idea into reality — a sanctuary which is now teeming with New Zealand wildlife returned to the
mainland and communities reconnected with nature.

With 480 years of our journey still to go, there is much work yet to be done in the sanctuary. The
continuing restoration of flora and fauna alongside the maintenance of a bio-secure environment
remain core priorities. The intergenerational nature of ZEALANDIA underscores the importance of
kaitiakitanga, our responsibility of stewardship for the long term.

As we enter our second generation, it is clear our context and opportunities have evolved since the
founding years, A local writer has described ZEALANDIA as...the valley that managed to transform a
city. The resurgence and abundance of k3ka, tieke, kerera and tdi has changed not only the
sanctuary but also the city, reaching those who live, work; visit and learn in Wellington.

This success provides the springboard for our next 20 years, enabling ZEALANDIA to sustain and
strengthen Te Mara a Tane, our sanctuary valley, and reach aut in partnership to actively restore a
nature-rich environment beyond our fence. We are now challenged to harness our knowledge,
energy and connections, working with others to transform how we live with nature in our cities and
towns - to reshape the places in which we live. Aiready we have a powerful platform in Wellington
with our partners, a biodiversity action plan and committed councils, communities, schools and
universities.

Adding Impetus to this is the Government's commitment to make New Zealand predator free by
2050 and the Predator-Free Wellington programme. We are up for the challenge - ZEALANDIA can
play a central role in transforming our communities to be nature-rich.

In our second generation, we will focus our actions on the four drivers of transformation, and apply
Our Way In tackling these. We will take a joined-up approach to achieve our ambitious goals. Our
major projects and actions will simultaneously progress the four themes of treasuring, engaging,
learning and empowering.
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4. The nature and scope of our activities in 2017/18

The following sections set-out our high level objectives, scope of business, key performance
indicators and the budget for 2017/18. It is supported by the ZEALANDIA business plan for 2017/18
and a range of other operational plans that are approved by the Board from time to time,

The KP1 Scorecard (section 5.1) brings together a set of Key Performance Indicators to enable
ZEALANDIA management, the Trust Board and the Council to focus on the most important measures
of success for 2017/18.

4.1 Objectives

The 2017/18 work programme is presented in the following sections, grouped according to our key
objectives for 2017/18:

*  Restoring Te Mara a Tane and its extending halo of biodiversity.
= Building our organisation’s capacity to drive transformation,
»  Creating inspiring, accessible experiences.

= Forming strong and enduring local, national and international partnerships based on
shared goals.

= Embracing Matauranga M3ori and other knowledge frameworks,

* Being a hub where people of all ages can lgarn, create new knowledge and share their
insights and understanding.

*  Equipping people with experience and skills for 3 nature-rich future.
= Inspiring change through example and shared passion for action.

4.2 Restoring Te Méra a Tane and its extending halo of biodiversity

We will continue to undertake conservation activities to restore the valley's ecosystems and
processes as closely as practicable to their indigenous character, Integral to this is a need to manage
threats to native species in the sanctuary and also beyond the perimeter fence. We will continue to
waork closely with Predator Free New Zealand and Predator Free Wellington, our Nature Connections
partners, Wellington City Council, Greater Wellington Regional Council and other community-based
groups o strengthen pest management efforts outside the fence and expand the effective impact of
the halo.

Current (ongoing) programmes

= Maintain the perimeter fence so that it ensures the area within the fence is secure from
mammalian threats.

= Undertake effective monitoring and management of threats (plant and animal pests).

* Manage and monitor indigenous plants and animals, especially those recently
transferred to the sanctuary or requiring support, for example, through provision of
supplementary food or nest boxes.

* Manage the welfare of species held in captivity to ensure successful breeding outcomes
where appropriate.

= Support nationally and locally led species recovery programmes and restoration work
where possible.
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Strategic Initiatives

= Assist in the restoration of healthy landscape scale ecosystems through active
collaboration in community partnerships wherever appropriate.

* Update the Restoration Strategy to set out the objectives till 2027.

= Establish 2 new monitoring protocol for populations that have now established in the
sanctuary.

* Review the biosecurity strategy for the sanctuary to utilise new technologies emerging
from the Predator Free movement.

Key performance indicators

= Restoration Strategy 2027 updated and revised.
*  Biosecurity Strategy updated and revised.

*  Project based on the restoration of the lower valley streams, wetland and lake
established.

* Identify and draw-up initial plans for the next species translocation consistent with the
revised Restoration Strategy.

4.3 Bullding our organisation’s capacity to drive transformation.

ZEALANDIA’s vision is all about connecting nature and people. In 2015/16 year new landmarks were
set with nearly 126,000 visits to the sanctuary, up more than 25% on the previous high point, and
our highest ever membership numbers. At the same time we achieved a surplus of over $107,000
after depreciation, a healthy level of working capital, and a 34% increase in ZEALANDIA earned
revenue. These all point to a heaithy and resilient organisation. The organisation is in a strong
position, with sound systems and processes in place to support our activity and future plans.

We will build our continuous improvement culture which has been pivotal in driving recent
successes. Investing in staff development {including our volunteers and interns), providing tools and
infrastructure which allows the teams organisation-wide to evolve and optimise best practice will be
key In our long term sustainable development. As a lean organisation, the teams will also endeavour
to maximise the partnerships which offer win-win opportunities for all those involved.

Current programmes

We will continue to develop plans to utilise the Visitor Centre and our other buildings to maximum
effect and to support our research and education programmes, our visitor experiences, our strategic
partnerships, and our commercial activities.

We will continue to provide high quality commercial services that connect visitors with nature
through:

= Highly attractive visitor experiences

= Premium and custom tours

*  Annual membership

= The Rata Café

» Corporate and private functions held within our facilities
= Qur retail store and retail offerings

=  Exhibitions and events
Page 15
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= Marketing and communications
= We will continue to develop new commercial products and services to drive revenue.
Strategic Initiatives

=  Prepare a Long Term Capital Plan 2017-2026 with the support of WCC that fully fits the
valley, visitor centre and staff accommodation to our purpose over the period of our 2nd
generation strategy.

= Develop smart initiatives to grow our people (staff, volunteers and interns), support
systems and enduring financial vitality.

=  Reform our communications channels to actively support experiences, programmes,
partnerships and impact - to tell our stories.

*  Maintain our Carbon Zero accreditation,

* Improve awareness around sustainable practices internally and for visitors by strategic
uses of signage and messaging.

*  Encourage uptake of Electric Vehicles through exploring further opportunities in our own
operation,

*  Focus on driving down waste through auditing waste and identifying opportunities to
reuse and recycle. We will continue to make sustainability a cornerstone of our thinking
and practice in all that we do and endeavour to continue to reduce our Carbon footprint
and impact on the environment generally.

Key performance measures/indicators 2017/18
= Anet surplus before depreciation and tax of $318,200

= Commercial revenue equating ta 50% of overall budget
= 10,600 members

*  Membership subscriptions $306,000

*  Full cost per visitor (including WCC costs) $16.51

»  Average WCC subsidy per visitor $9.07

= Average revenue per visit $26.22

*  Non-Council Donations/Funding $265,000

4.4 Creating inspiring, accessible experiences and change through example and shared passion for
action.

We will provide experiences for our members, volunteers, partners and visitors that will inspire
them to engage with nature, and we will continue to develop the range of experiences that we can
offer. By giving visitors an understanding of ZEALANDIA's goals in the urban and rural environment
and the value of the work that we do, they are more likely to engage with us and act as ambassadors
for our message. This level of engagement will encourage more people to visit the sanctuary and
spread the message of the significant role ZEALANDIA plays in restoring our natural heritage to
Wellington city and beyond. It will also encourage people to initiate action in other local, national or
international restoration work

Current programmes
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= Provide experiences that increase people’s understanding of New Zealand’s natural
heritage, and conservation challenges and successes here and elsewhere,

= Provide world-class facilities for visitor experiences and opportunities for an enhanced
connection with nature.

= Provide high quality volunteering experiences that increase our connections and
engagement with the community.

= Provide a diverse range of experiences for members and volunteers; researchers and
academics; community and corporate groups; local Wellingtonians; and visitors from
across New Zealand and other countries (both independent travellers, and those on
tours and cruise ships).

= Work in partnership with Be_Accessible and through a process of continuous
improvement make ZEALANDIA as accessible as possible to any visitor regardless of
ability.

*  Play an active part in the Nature Connections network in order to maximise the
opportunity for people to learn about and engage with our natural heritage.,

Strategic Initiatives

= Improve the signage, including interpretation and way-finding in the valley to enhance
the visitor experience.

= Explore technological options for enhancing the visitor experience, with wi-fi as a
platform.

= Expand our influence beyond the fence to support the broader community in their
restoration efforts. ’

Key performance measures/indicators 2017/18
*  Visitor numbers - 96,500 separate visitations with breakdown of visitor demographics
* 8,650 education visitors
*  Visitor experience ~ ZEALANDIA achieves a satisfied visitor rating of 92% or greater
*  Continue ta improve accessibility and work to attain the Be.Accessible Gold rating.

*  Maintain > 430 volunteers, with the establishment of new avenues for people to
volunteer

= »80% of volunteers are satisfied with their relationship with ZEALANDIA
4.5 Forming strong and enduring local, national and international partnerships based on shared
goals.

Partnerships are critical for all aspects of our activity. They provide the foundations for our
conservation, education and corporate presence in Wellington.

Our most important strategic partner, at many levels, is the Wellington City Council. We also rely on
and value partnerships with Victoria University of Wellington, Greater Wellington Regional Council,
the Department of Conservation, and organisations such as Te Papa, Wellington Zoo and Otari
Wilton’s Bush plus other Wellington CCQ’s, the Tenths Trust, other mainland sanctuaries, and many
others.

Integrating our plans with the vision and plans of others is essential to the achievement of our vision,

Current programmes
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We will continue to recognise the strategic priorities of the Council as an important part
of the strategic context for ZEALANDIA, and to align our strategies and priorities closely
with those of Wellington City. (See earlier section 2 in this document The Strategic
Partnership with Wellington City Council)

We will continue to be an active partner in Predator Free Wellington.

We will continue to recognise the central importance of our members and volunteers
and provide opportunities for them to contribute to, and benefit from, a close
relationship with ZEALANDIA.

We will continue to engage with our neighbours in the local community, and the wider
Wellington community, to seek and foster community support for ZEALANDIA, and
encourage participation in our activities.

We will continue to work closely with our many research partners to develop evidence-
based practice across our organisation and further afield.

Strategic Initiatives

We will undertake our kaitiakitanga responsibilities through enhanced partnerships with
Maori. A strong and comprehensive relationship with M3ori, at mana whenua, iwi and
national level, remains of primary importance to ZEALANDIA and we will develop closer
relationships during 2017/18 through building on the recommendations from the 2016
ZEALANDIA cultural audit. We recognise that Matauranga Maori, indigenous knowledge,
is a key part of the evidence base that will be needed to underpin our work far into the
future.

We will continue to play an active role in a Predator Free Wellington, with a particular
focus on our ability to facilitate the creation of a nature-rich city.

We will develop collaborative projects with ather sanctuaries nationally to address key
conservation management issues as appropriate.

We will grow and develop our core partnership with Wellington City Council to make an
outstanding biophysical, community, learning and economic contribution to Wellington.

We will cement our emerging International networks that help strengthen New
Zealand's influence in the world in restoring people’s connection with our natural
heritage.

Key performance indicators

Capability developed to enable closer partnerships with iwi and integration of
Matauranga Maori in line with the cultural audit report recommendations.

New researchers across multiple disciplines engaged with the sanctuary.
Plans for future translocations into ZEALANDIA and predator free suburbs advanced.

4.6 Embracing Matauranga Maori and other knowledge frameworks.

As indicated above, a cultural audit has now been completed and presented to the December 2016
meeting of the Board, The recommendations from the report are now being progressed and form a
central element to this goal.

We will continue to develop our long term programme of research to provide an evidence base to
inform all our other programmes and activities. Victoria University of Wellington remains a principal
partner under our joint MOU, along with a number of other universities nationally and
internationally expressing interest in closer collaborations. We aim to attract a growing number of
national and international researchers and students to Wellington.
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Current programmes

* Undertake and support research that will increase our understanding about the flora,
fauna, and the habitats and ecological processes that threaten or sustain them, and that
can inform and benefit restoration initiatives elsewhere in New Zealand.

* Undertake and support research that will increase our understanding of the benefits of
living closer to nature.

* Create a supportive environment for staff, volunteers and researchers to ensure
research and learning are encouraged and embraced.

Strategic Initiatives
* Develop a plan to ensure ZEALANDIA's knowledge and practice are increasingly suffused

with Matauranga Maori, New Zealand's indigenous knowledge base based on the
cultural audit recommendations.

= Implement a long-term programme of research and research partnerships to provide an
evidence base for our future activity and advice and contribution to others,

= Continue to broaden our research programme beyond blodiversity, ecology and
conservation, to include the health, social and other benefits of people living in closer
connection to nature,

Key performance indicators for 2017/18
= Implementation of the agreed recommendations from the cultural audit
* Develop and agree plans for a long-term, integrated research programme.
= Engage with other VUW faculties to brdaden the interdisciplinary research focus.

4.7 Being a hub where people of all ages can learn, ireate new knowledge and share their insights
and understanding .

We actively engage with schools and communities by enabling them to experience forest and stream
ecosystemns in ZEALANDIA, and by helping them to understand the steps needed to start their own
backyard or community restorations. A resource has been developed for schools to use nationwide
that will enable children to learn about how to become Predator Free, and our outreach programme
supports Wellington schools in making Predator Free a reality for children’s own “special places’.

The ongoing development of the interdisciplinary research programme is increasingly supporting
learning through higher education, including universities and polytechnics (covered in section 4.6
above).

Current programmes

*  Carry out programmes through which students of all ages can experience ZEALANDIA,
whether that be through our guided school education programme, or providing the
facility for use by higher education programmes.

= Conduct outreach to schools to connect with students who cannct make it to
ZEALANDIA, and to support conservation efforts in their ‘special place’.

*  Provide schools with educational resources that enable them to become actively
involved in the study of nature and take action to improve native biodiversity.

Strategic Initiatives

= Develop a long-term education strategy to outline ZEALANDIA's 10-year plan for
engaging people in life-long learning.
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= Obtain funding to increase opportunities for children who rarely engage in
environmental education to either visit ZEALANDIA or experience our outreach
programme in their ‘special place’.

= Explore opportunities to engage ‘hard to reach’ age groups and demographic sectors,
particularly through partnerships with polytechnic institutions.

Key performance measures/indicators 2017/18

*  Education strategy 2027 developed, including specific actions and targets for reaching
learners of all ages.

= 50% of all schools within the Kapiti/Porirua/Hutt Valley/Wellington area to have tracking
and trapping as a normal part of their school programme, resulting in enhanced
biodiversity in their area by 2020 to support Predatar Free Wellington.

= Expand the internship programme to provide learning experiences to students across a
range of disciplines.

= Increased school visits; includes visits to the sanctuary and visits to schools or their
‘special places’ by education staff,

4.8 Equipping people with experience and skills for a nature-rich future.

A significant outcome of the conservation success of ZEALANDIA is demonstrateéd by the native
birdlife spilling over the sanctuary’s fence and into the city. Recognition of ZEALANDIA as a key site,
both as a wellspring of biodiversity and a focal point for environmental inspiration, is essential in
terms of the city's wider aspirations.

We work to educate our visitors on how to make their backyards a safe place for our native birds
and how to interact safely with them. We work with Wellington City Council and other community
groups to control animal pests, thereby creating safer areas for native wildlife. As a focal point for
community engagement, ZEALANDIA will continue to be a place where people learn about nature
and what can be achieved with a successful restoration programme. They will also learn how to
moenitor and manage threats from pest plants and animals, participate in research projects, grow
and plant native plants, monitor native wildiife and take this learning back out to their communities.
We see a growing coalition of citizen scientists who champion and celebrate New Zealand's natural

heritage.
Current programmes

* Provide educatian programmes that increase people’s understanding of New Zealand’s
natural heritage, and the conservation challenges and successes here and elsewhere.

*  Provide high quality volunteering experiences that increase our connections and
engagement with the community.

Strategic initiatives

* Enhance opportunities available through volunteer programmes to both enrich visitor
experience and strengthen our community.

* Enhance the learning possibilities associated with visiting ZEALANDIA through
improvement of the interpretation material within the sanctuary.

*  New ways to experience ZEALANDIA are provided, with a focus on cultural,
environmental and creative opportunities.
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Key performance indicators for 2017/18

*  Greater diversity of experiences offered for volunteers, and at least one new ‘upskilling”

opportunity offered.

* A new approach to interpretation is developed and implemented

= New ways for visitors to experience ZEALANDIA, for example through cultural or creative

means, have been implemented.

5. Performance Measurements

5.1 KPIScorecard 2017/18

Restoring Te Mira a Tane and its extending halo of biodiversity
(4.2)

Restoration Strategy 2027 updated and revised,

Biosecurity Strategy updated and revised.

Project based on the restoration of the lower valley streams,
wetland and lake established,

identify and draw-up initial plans for the next species
translocation consistent with the revised Restoration Strategy.

Creating Inspiring, accessible experiences and change through
example and shared passion for action (4.4)

Visitor numbers — 96,500 separate visitations with breakdown
of visitor demographics

8,650 education visitors

Visitor experience — ZEALANDIA achieves a satisfied visitor
rating of 92% or greater

Continue to improve accessibility and work to attain the
Be.Accessible Gold rating.

Maintain > 430 volunteers, with the establishment of new
avenues for people to volunteer

> 80% of volunteers are satisfied with their relationship with
ZEALANDIA

Embracing Matauranga Maori and other knowledge frameworks

(4.6)

Implementation of the agreed recommendations from the
cultural audit

Develop and agree plans for a long-term, integrated research
programme.

Engage with other VUW faculties to broaden the
interdisciplinary research focus.
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Building our organisation’s capacity to drive

transformation (4.3)

= Anet surplus before depreciation and tax of
$318,200

*  Commercial revenue equating to 50% of overall
budget

10,600 members
*  Mémbership subscriptions $306,000.
*  Full cost per visitor (including WCC costs) $16.51
= Average WCC subsidy per visitor $9.07

-« Average revenue per visit $26.22

* - Non-Council Donations/Funding $265,000

Fomlln_' strong and enduring local, national and

international partnerships based on shared goals {4.5)

*  Capabllity developed to enable closer partnerships
with iwi and integration of Matauranga Maori in
line with the cultural audit report

recommendations.

*  New researchers across multiple disciplines
engaged with the sanctuary.

*  Plans for future translocations into ZEALANDIA and
predator free suburbs advanced.

Being a hub where people of all ages can learn, create
new knowledge and share their insights and
understanding {4.7)

* Education strategy 2027 developed, induding
specific actions and targets for reaching learers of
all ages.

= 50% of all schools within the Kapiti/Porirua/Hutt
Valley/Wellington area to have tracking and
trapping as a normal part of their school
programme, resulting in enhanced bsodiversity in
their area by 2020 to support Predator Free
Wellington.
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Equipping people with experience and skills for a nature-rich

future (4.8)

= Greater diversity of experiences offered for volunteers, and at
least one new ‘upskilling” opportunity offered.

*  Anew approach to interpretation is developed and
implemented

*  New ways for visitors to experience ZEALANDIA, for example
through cultural or creative means, have been implemented

Page 22

Expand the internship programme to provide
learning experiences to students across a range of
disciplines,

Increased school visits; indudes visits to the
sanctuary and visits to schools or their “special
places’ by education staff.
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5.2 Non-financial Performance Measures

Measure 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Visitation 106,574 | 96,500 ‘ 99,300 102,200
Members | 11,110 | 10,600 | 10,800 11,000
(individuals) | B! -
Volunteers >400 j >430 ‘ >450 >470
Percentage >5% >5% ' >5% >5%
of Satisfied
Visitors
Above City
;Benchmark 7 | BE

201617 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 201718 201819 201920

Measure  forecast ! SO ] il ,
Visitation | 106,574 | 13914 | 31,295 | 31,801 = 19490 | 96500 = 99,300 = 102,200

“Education | 8,500 | 1,850 | 3409 | 1195 | 2,19 | 8650 | 8800 | 8800
visits'

K (LEOTC, terir‘ary, early ch)'!dhood, school holidayib?ogiamni;,-bhd oufreach)n

In response to the Council’s previous request for more detailed information regarding visitor
demographics and education related usage of the sanctuary, this data is collected by the Trust and
can readily be provided. Details such as where visitors reside are collected at the admissions desk.
Member visits are recorded daily and tracked on a weekly basis.

ZEALANDIA also uses GetSmart, an online visitor survey that is used by approximately 10 nature
based attractions across Wellington, which provides valuable benchmarking information. This survey
collects information on the reason for visiting, duration of visits, visitor demographics and
satisfaction ratings.

A summary and analysis of this information is provided to Council on a quarterly basis, along with
more detailed information on education visits, to offer a richer picture of visitation to the sanctuary.
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5.3 Financial Performance Measures

201617

Measure fore ‘ 2017-18 ' 2018-19 2019/20
Full cost per visitor (including
WCC costs) $1691 = $1651 $16.11 $15.79
Average subsidy per visit (total
WCC operating grant/all $9.35 $9.07 $8.80 $8.54
visitors) |
Average revenue per visit
(excludes Council & $25.96 $26.22 $26.48 $26.74

| Government grants)
Non-Council Donations/Funding = $250,000 $265,000 | §270,000 $275,000

|

5.4 Conservation Measures

M re

2016-17
forecast

2017-18  2018-19 2019-20 Explanation

Restore missing species to the wild in accordance with the Restoration Sttate'gyi

Number of new
animal species
transferred

# transferred
animal species
being actively
managed in the
wild

# anlnﬁal species in
the wild being
actively monitored

% transferred
animal species
regarded as self-
sustaining

mn

o.

10

79%

' 0* 1 o
1 11 11
11 12 12

79% 75%  75%
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| Transfers to be determined following

| review of Restoration Strategy

*Note: Tronsfers also undertaken in

these yeors to Cope Sanctuary (koka).

| Active management includes
supplementary feeding, nestbox &
roostbox management; Species: hihi,
kaka, takahe, pateke, bellbird, kakariki,
kiwi, MI frog, Long-fin eels, giant weta;
excludes species held in captivity.

| Includes species with ongoing active
data collection: hihi, takahe, bellbird,
kiwi, robins, tuatara, giant weta. MI
frogs, spotted skink. Saddleback from
2017/18; assumes no further active
monitoring of kaka and kakariki
Observations of other species eg

| pateke gathered in ad hoc manner.

| 14/18 species regarded as self-
sustaining (assuming ongoing current
management); 2 transfers failed
(tomtit, weka) and 2 (bellbird, Long-fin
eels) not regarded as self-sustaining;
Note: it usually takes several breeding
seasons before a transfer can be
regarded as self-sustaining (successful
breeding, population stable or
increasing) so % will reduce with new
transfers eg to 75% (15/20) after lizard

| transfer in 2018/19

Attachment 2 Karori Sanctuary Trust draft SOl 2017/18

Page 69

ltem 2.1 AHachment 2



COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS o G il

ltem 2.1 Atachment 2

12 APRIL 2017 Me Heke Ki Poneke

Measure 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 Explanation
, forecast

Maintain or improve the population status of nationally threatened species present
# threatened 4 4 4 4 Hihi, NI kaka, Maud Island frog, Pied
species present shag; excludes takahe held primarily or
and breeding temporarily for advocacy purposes
successfully

Manage species held for captive breeding purposes to ensure they remain healthy and
breed successfully

# species breeding 2 2 2 2 Maud Island frogs and Barking geckos
in captivity

Monitor animal pest status, control mice and successfully respond to any incursions

Mice maintained <10 <10 <10 <10 | The figure gives an abundance index
at levels similar to | based on the average abundance/100
previous years ‘ _ | corrected trap nights

% pest animal 100% 100% 100% “ 100%  Assumes any incursions successfully
incursions ‘ eradicated

successfully

eradicated

Monitor plan pest status and reduce distribution of environmental weeds (currently 123)
within and near the perimeter fence

# pest plant 44 a4 44 49 44 environmental weeds identified as
species actively | priorities

controlled or

surveyed . 3 ;

# pest plant 52 53 153 53 Control also undertaken outside the
species where 1 perimeter fence for key species to
control has improve feasibility of ongoing
achieved a decline suppression inside the fence

to low levels of
infestation in the
sanctuary

5.5 Conservation Activities

Activities 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Begin restoration of the lower valley streams, wetland and lake

- initiate development and agreement of an overarching Juk-17 update  update

multifaceted strategic plan

- Research underway according to a research plan Jun-17 ONgoing  ONgoing

- Develop a fish eradication operational plan " Jun-18 update

- Implementation of integrated plans ONgoing ONgoing  oONngoing
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6. The Karori Sanctuary Trust Board's Approach to Governance

6.1 The Trust Deed

The Karori Sanctuary Trust (the Trust) is an incorporated society that is governed by a Trust Deed,
first executed in 1995 and most recently updated in October 2016.

We operate as a not-for profit organisation, a social enterprise, seeking to do public good by
operating in a way that follows sound commercial disciplines.

As set out in our Trust Deed, the objects of the Trust are as follows:

* To carry out education and research into all matters pertaining to the conservation and
restaration of New Zealand’s natural heritage and in particular to restore representative
examples of New Zealand’s natural heritage.

* To establish and maintain a secure native wildlife sanctuary in the Karori Reservoir in the
City of Wellington.

* Torestore the reservoir area ecosystem as closely as practicable to its presumed pre-
human state but allowing for construction of specific habitats to enhance its diversity
and conservation values.

= To provide facilities for recreation and tourism activities,
* Toseek and foster community support and participation.

= Tomanage and manipulate such ecosystems as may be necessary to maintain requisite
populations.

The Trust operates as ZEALANDIA, under the guidance of a Trust Board.

6.2 Relationship with Wellington City Council

The Trust became a Council Controlled Organisation from October 2016 with the transfer of the
ZEALANDIA Visitors Centre to Wellington City Council and the repayment of the loan on the building.
The new Deed of Variation of Trust signed in Octaber 2016 sets out the new requirement for the
Trust Board to consist of a minimum of five persons and a maximum of up to seven persons, The
Council can appoint a maximum of six persons, with an option for the Trusts Board to appoint an
additional two persons following consultation with the Guardians and approval of the Council.

The Wellington City Council is a strategic partner, a trustee appointee, a major funder and the
landlord of the Trust

The Funding Deed between Council and the Trust sets out Council’s reporting and monitoring regime
and the conditions for major transactions requiring Council approval. The Trust will report quarterly
to the Council through the Environment Committee on the agreed measures, which will include a
Statement of Financial Performance, Statement of Financial Position and Cash Flow Statement.

The Trust’s audited accounts will be presented to the Council by due date. The Trust will continue to
recognise Council as a principal funder.

The principles governing the relationship between the Trust and Council are:

= Council will be provided with access to information it requests.
= A “nosurprises” approach.

*  Work in a collaborative and constructive manner recognising each other's viewpoints
and respecting differences.
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= Act towards each other honestly and always in good faith.
= Communicate with each other openly, promptly, and in a clear and timely manner.

* Recognise the accountabilities that each has to the other and to those for the benefit of
whom services are provided.

6.3 Board Membership

The members of the Karori Sanctuary Trust are:

Trustee Term Expires
Denise Church (Chair), appointed by the Council December 2018
Phillip Meyer, appointed by the Council December 2017
v Pam Fuller, appointed by the Guardians 7 . June 2017
WSteven Thompson, appointedAby the Guardi;rAl:'r s Y July 2018
v David Bibby, appointed by the Guardians l January 2019
Russell Spratt, co-opted by the Board 4 J>une 2018

*  The revised Karori Sanctuary Trust Deed signed in October 2016 outlines the roles of the
Trust and the Guardians. All trustees may receive an honorarium set by the Council and
Guardians.

= The Trust Board shall meet no less frequently than eight times a year.

= The Chief Executive attends all meetings accompanied by their management team as
required.

*  Under the terms of the Trust Deed, the Board is required to have an Audit and Risk
Committee. The terms of reference for this committee require that it meets at least four
times a year. Members of the Audit and Risk Committee are Denise Church, Phillip
Meyer and lain Craig (an independent member).

* The Board may choose to set-up any new committees as deemed necessary in order to
maintain an appropriate level of oversight.

*  Trustees will contribute knowledge and skills across a range of work areas during the
-2017/18 year and may from time to time contribute to working groups established by
the Chief Executive.

= In2016/17, Pam Fuller’s term as a trustee on the Board will expire.

6.4 Board Performance

The Chair and the Board as a whole will participate in an annual review of their performance as
follows:

* The Board as a whole by the Board.

= Individual Board members by the Board, through the Chair,

*  The Chair by the Board.

The method/standards used to assess the performance will be based on the standards issued by the
Institute of Directors in New Zealand, adapted for the Trust. From these reviews, development
needs and any other actions required to ensure best practice governance and performance
standards will be determined and implemented.
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The Board will undertake a review of the Chief Executive’s performance in July 2017.

6.5 Annual General Meeting

By established practice the Trust holds each year an Annual General Meeting (AGM) of members to
discuss the Annual Report and current strategies. The Board establishes a date for the AGM in
consultation with the Guardians.

The 2016 AGM was held on 16 October, and was well attended.

The next AGM will be held on 15 October 2017,

7. Organisational Health, Capability and Risk Assessment

7.1 Organisational Health and Capability

Our aim is deliver our work by attracting and retaining talented and capable staff and through
strategic partnerships. Critical to our success is having experienced and motivated staff. Training and
professional development for staff will continue to be a priority for 2017/18.

We will continue to work dosely with Victoria University, Council (e.g. shared services initiative) and
other partners to build the capability of the organisation.

7.2Executive Team
Paul Atkins Chief Executive Officer (appointed November 2015)
Danielle Shanahan Manager Conservation, Research, Learning and Experience
Chris Fitzgerald Manager Commercial Development
Russ Drewry Manager Sanctuary Care and Preservation

Mathew Valentine Manager Corporate Services
7.3 Environmental Practices
The Trust is committed to and incorporates sustainable practices.

ZEALANDIA has been awarded the Qualmark EnviroGold and the EnviroMark carboNZero
accreditation,

The Rata Café has been accredited with all Conscious Consumer badges and is in the process to
become organic certified as the kitchen garden extends to selling produce as well as providing it for
the café business.

8. Health and Safety

The Trust has robust Health and Safety systems in place and a detailed Emergency Procedure Action
Plan that complies with the Health and Safety at Work Act 2015,

Key actions taken or underway

e As part of their due diligence obligations, the organisation’s officers now regularly dedicate
time to focusing on a particular area of the operation and through consultation get a more
comprehensive understanding of the risks in that area and where improvements might be
made.

* Incident reports are now not only reviewed on a regular basis but a new procedure of sign
off that ensures the officers are happy with the investigations and outcomes has been
implemented.
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= The CEO is a member of the “Business Leaders Health and Safety Forum” and uses this to
inform and keep abreast of best practice models.

*  We continue to ensure employees and volunteers have an inclusive role in the
identification and management of health and safety matters; including using the Health
and Safety Committee to give a direct line of communication and ownership around
Health and Safety matter across all areas of the Organisation

= We maintain a training regime that ensures there is a good level of coverage of
personnel who can confidently deal with first responder medical and emergency
situations throughout the site at all times;.

*  We have instigated a Employee Support Programme through EAP Services which
provides free and confidential support to all employees

Initiatives planned
We will continue to:

» evolve our policies and processes as WorkSafe publishes new guidelines and
requirements become clearer,

» foster a collaborative and proactive approach within the organisation and with our
partners.,

* engage with the PCBUs of other organisations with which the Trust wiorks, partners, or
otherwise deals, or is considering dealing with, to require more robust evidence of their
suitability and pertinent gualifications before working with them.

= work with agencies such as the Wellington Regional Emergency Management office, the
Rural Fire Authority, Search and Rescue New Zealand, and other Wellington City Council
community controlled organisations, to develop relationships and review joint working
relationships.

= engage with WorkSafe with a view to reducing our ACC levy payments by undertaking
recommended programmes and assessments.

* identify and organise ongoing training ta reach or exceed best practice levels in all areas.

8.1 Asset Management Plan

In 2016 the Trust reviewed Its asset register and altered depreciation on a number of the assets to
more accurately reflect their expected Iife. In 2017/18 we will continue to improve our asset
management systems and explore if there are ways to integrate these with the systems used by
WCC.
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8.2 Risk Management

The Trust regularly reviews all known and potential risks. A robust risk management process, using
standard risk methodology, is monitored by the Audit and Risk Committee and reported to the
Board.

The Trust has robust fit-for-purpose systems and processes and financial delegations.

The Trust has insurance policies for Material Damage, Business Interruption, Combined Liability
{Public, Employer, Statutory, Fidelity Guarantee and Lawsafe) and Trustee Liability.

For medium and high risks, control systems and management strategies are established, as
appropriate. The objective is to reduce the residual risk to the point where all cost-effective
mitigations have been put in place. The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing these
strategies. The Trust’s management is responsible for their implementation. There are four
response types, depending on the risk assessment and cost effectiveness considerations. These are:

*  Avoidance: To eliminate the conditions that allow the risk to be present at all, often by
changing or stopping the activity.

= Acceptance: To acknowledge the risk’s existence, but to take no pre-emptive action to
resolve it, except for the possible development of contingency plans should the risk
event come to pass.

*  Mitigation: To minimise the probability of a risk’s occurrence or the impact of the risk
should it occur.

= Deflection: To transfer the risk (in whole or part to another organisation, individual, or
entity — such as through Insurance),

A process to review and update the framework for the risks register is currently underway and will
be completed and applied during the first quarter of the 2017/18 financial year. The new format will
employ a risk matrix similar to that indicated below, with likelthood and consequence tables
providing a greater degree of clarity in line with current best-practice. The revised framework will be
included in the first quarterly report to Council in 2017/18.

Probability Impact of Risk
of Risk

9. Additional Information

9.1 Response to other specific Letter of Expectation matters (if applicable)

None

9.2 Ratio of Shareholders’ Funds to Total Assets
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Please refer to the Balance Sheet included in the Accounting policies (Appendix A).

9.3 Estimate of Amount Intended for Distribution

The Karori Sanctuary Trust is a not-for-profit organisation and registered charity and does not make
a distribution to the Settler.

9.4 Acquisition Procedures

The Trustees have no intention of subscribing for, purchasing or otherwise acquiring shares in any
other company or any organisation.

9.5 Activities for which the Board seeks Compensation from a Local Authority

Total funding from Wellington City Council in 2017/18 is $875,000. The development of the Trust’s
10 year sustainable business plan anticipates as a baseline the continuation of the current level of
funding.

9.6 Estimate of Commercial Value of Shareholders’ Investment

Not applicable.
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Appendix A: Accounting Policies

i. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements presented here are for the reporting entity, the Karori Sanctuary Trust.
The Trust is a charitable trust registered under the Charities Act 2005 which requires compliance
with generally accepted accounting practice (GAAP) in New Zealand.

As the primary objective of the trust is to develop a secure native wildlife which benefits the
community, rather than making a financial return, the trust is a public benefit entity for the
purpose of financial reporting. The financial statements of the trust comply with Public Benefit
Entity standards Reduced Disclosure Regime (PBE RDR). The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Tier 2 PBE RDR. The trust is eligible to report in accordance with Tier 2
PBE Standards RDR because it does not have public accountability and it is not large.

Basis of preparation

“The financial statements have been prepared for the first time in accordance with PBE RDR for
not-for-profit organisations as required by the Financial Reporting Act

2013. The comparative financial information has been restated for consistency with the current
period. There are no material changes arising from first time adoption of PBE RDR.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and the accounting policies
have been applied consistently throughout the period.”

Measurement base :

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The financial report is
measured in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar {$) unless
otherwise stated.

iil.  Recognition of revenue

Grants are recognised as revenue when the requirements under the grant agreement have been met.
Any grants for which the requirements under the grant agreement have not been completed are
carried as liabilities until all the conditions have been fulfilled.

Revenue received from membership subscriptions is allocated proportionally over the period to which
they relate. The unearned portion of subscriptions is shown under current liabilities. Prepaid visits are
also treated as current liabilities. Sales of goods and admissions comprise the amounts received and
receivable for goods and services supplied to customers in the ordinary course of business. This
revenue is recognised when the goods or services are provided to the customer.

Interest income is accounted for as earned. In the financial statements, there is no financial recognition
of support given in the form of donated labour and materials.
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iiil.  Property, plant and equipment and finite life intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. The cost of an item is
recognised only when it is probable that future economic benefit or service potential associated with
the item will flow to the entity.

Subsequent costs that meet the recognition criteria above are recognised in the carrying value of the
property, plant and equipment or intangible asset. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
asset if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the asset are required to be replaced
at intervals, the entity recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying amount of the fixed asset as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in surplus or deficit as incurred.

Measurement subsequent to initial recognition: Subsequent to initial recognition, Property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are measured using the cost model.

iv. Depreciation

Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets is calculated on a
straightline basis so as to allocate the cost of the assets over their useful lives as follows:

Building/Infrastructure  10-100 years

Exhibitions 5-8 years
Leasehold 10-25 years
improvements

Predator fence 25-50 years
Fixtures, Plant and 5-75 years
Equipment

Vehicles 5-10 years
Other Assets 2.5-50 years

Computer Software 3 years

v.  Accounts receivables

Accounts receivable are stated at anticipated realisable value after providing against debt where
collection is doubtful.

vi.  Stock on hand

Stock on hand comprise of retail and food and beverages. They are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average cost basis.
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vii. Leased assets
As lessee:

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the periods the amounts are payable.

viii. Impairment

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets held at cost that have a finite useful life are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable service amount. The recoverable service amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service amount, the asset
is regarded as impaired and the carrying amount is written-down to the recoverable amount. The total
impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit. The reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the
surplus or deficit

ix. Employee entitiements

Employee entitlements to salaries and wages, annual leave and other benefits are recognised when
they accrue to employees.

The liability for employee entitlements is carried at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows.
Xx. Goods and services tax (GST)
The financial statements have been prepared so that all components are stated exclusive of GST with
the exception of receivables and payables that include GST invoiced.
xi.  Income tax

The Trust being a charitable arganisation is income tax exempt under the Income Tax Act 2007.

xii.  Financial instruments

Financial Instruments are comprised of trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, financial
assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, trade and other payables and loans at amortised cost. The
Trust held no derivative financial instruments in the years reported. The subsequent measurement of
financial assets depends on their classification at inception.

xiii.  Statement of cash flows

The following are the definitions of the terms used in the statement of cash flows:

{a) Operating activities include all transactions and other events that are not investing or financing
activities,

{b) Investing activities are those activities relating to acquisition, holding and disposal of property, plant

and equipment and of investments.

{c) Financing activities are those activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the
capital structure. This includes both equity and debt not falling within the definition of cash.

{d) Cash is considered to be cash on hand and current accounts in banks, net of bank overdrafts,

xiv. Changes in accounting policies
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There have been no changes in accounting policies in the year.
Appendix B: ZEALANDIA Budget for 201718

ZEALANDIA will continue to drive revenue and contain costs in 2017/18 and complete the year with a
healthy operating surplus.
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ZEALANDIA - KARORI SANCTUARY TRUST

Farecast STATEMENT OF COMPREMENSIVE INCOME

30-)Jun-17

Trading Revenue
675,561 Admissions
307,600 Membership Subscriptions
Other Operating Revenue
Sales of Goods
2375417  Other trading révenue
Other Operating Revenue
875,000 Sharehalder grants
43,461 Sponsarships, grants and donations
Other operating income
Non-operating Revenue
Sub-lease and other non-operating income
7 Interest income
Other income
T 4,304,595 Total Revenue

27,55

Operating Expenses (overheads)
2,111,971 Salaries and wages
516,285 Cost of goods sold
620,198 Other operating axpenses
96,211  Trustee expenses
412,386 Administration costs
3,757,011 Total Operating Expend|ture
547,984 Net Surplus/(Deficit) before Depreciation and Tax
14,546  Interest expense
Loss on Visitor Centre transfer to WCC

Depreciation

{303,720 Net Surplus/(Deficit)

Qtrto Qtrto Qtr to FYE FYE FYE
30-5ep-17 31-Mar-18 30-Jun-18 30-Jun-18 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-20
150,000 365,000 365,000 100,000 980,000 1,000,000 1,020,000
55,000 95,000 95,000 55,000 300,600 308,000 315,000
210,000 410,000 510,000 266,000 1,396,000 1,438,000 1,486,000
208,750 208,750 208,750 208,750 835,000
62,500 62,500 62,500 62,500 265,000
4,500 9,000 4,500 9,000 27,000 27,000 27,000
690,750 1,150,250 1,245,750 701,250 3,788,000 3,873,000 3,553,000
515,000 535,000 535,000 515,000 2,100,000 2,150,000 2,200,000
60,000 70,000 77,000 $0,000 267,000 272,000 278,000
135,000 145,000 145,000 135,000 560,000 $72,000 583,000
21,000 20,500 21,000 20,500 83,000 87000
115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 460,000 480,000
846,000 885,500 893,000 845,500 3,470,000 3,628,000
{155,250} 264,750 352,750 {144,250) 318,000 330,900
9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 36,000
155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 620,000 570,000 520,000
{319,250} 100,750 188,750 {308,250} {338,000} 1266,900) {189,100}
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We

ZEALANDIA - KARORI SANCTUARY TRUST

Farecast STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

30-Jun-17

Equity
5,881,143  Trust Funds

{303,720) Current year earnings
5,577,423 Total Shareholder/Trust Funds

Current Assets
705,000 Cash and cash eguivalents
40,000 Accounts recewable
Prepayments
60,000 Inventory
Other current assets
809,000 Total Current Assets

Investments
700,000 Term deposits
Other investments
700,000 Total Investments

Non-current Assets
4,575,543  Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Other non-current assets
4,975,543 Total Non-current Assets
6,484,543 Total Assets

Current Liabilities
222,000 Accounts payable
186,000 Income in advance
79,000 Employee entitiements
251,808 Provisions and accruals
108,333  Other current habilities
847,141 Total Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities
312 Shareholder advances
68,373 Other non-current liabsities
68,685 Total Non-current Liabilities
915,826 Total Liabilities
5,568,717 Net Assets

As at As at Asa As at
30-Sep-17 31-Mar-18 30-Jun- 30-Jun-20
5577423 5,258,173 5,358,923 5,547,673 5,577,423 5239423 4,972,523
{319,250} 100,750 188,750 {308,250} {338,000} {266,900) (189,100}
5,258,173 5,358,923 5,547,673 5,239,423 5,239,423 4,972,523 4,783,423
709,000 578,800 840,800 721,000 721,000 997,000 1,282,000
40,000 40,000 40,000 46,000 46,000 51,000 51,000
60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 55,000 &0,000
809,000 678,800 940,800 827,000 827,000 1,103,000 1,393,000
700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000
700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000
4,820,543 4,665,543 4,510,543 4,355,543 4,355,543 3,785,543 3,265,543
4,820,543 4,665,543 4,510,543 4,355,543 4,355,543 3,785,543 3,265,543
6,329,543 6,044,343 6,151,343 5,882,543 5,882,543 5,588,543 5,358,543
161,700 135,000 130,000 200,000 200,000 242,000 200,000
397,750 170,294 211,044 198,627 198,627 164,000 200,000
80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000
275,902 173,108 80,608 95,808 95,808 129,708 94 808
83333 58,3313 33,332 68,373 68,373
1,002 685 616,735 534,985 642,808 642 808 615,708 574,808
312 312 312 312 312 312 312
68,373 68,373 68,373
68,685 68,685 63,685 312 312 312 312
1,071,370 685,420 603,670 643,120 643,120 616,020 575,120
5,258,173 5,358,923 5,547,673 5,239,423 5,239,423 4,972,523 4,783,423
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Absolutely Positively
Wellington City Council

Me Heke Ki Poneke

ZEALANDIA - KARORI SANCTUARY TRUST

Faorecast STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

30-Jun-17

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

inflows

Qtrto
30-5ep-17

Qtrto

31-Mar-18

Qtrto
30-Jun-18

Total YE
30-Jun-18

Total Yt
30-Jun-19

Total YE
30-Jun-20

3,862,513 Trading Receipts 415,000 870,000 970,000 421,000 2,676,000 2,746,000 2,821,000
875,000 Shareholder grants 417,500 417,500 835,000 835,000 835,000
43,461 Sponsorships and donations 62,500 62,500 62,500 62,500 250,000 265,000 270,000
Other lncome 10,000 20,000 30,000
Outflows
2,111,971 Payments to Ernployees 515,000 535,000 535,000 515,000 2,100,000 2,150,000 2,200,000
1,507,588 Payments to Suppliers 315,500 452,700 613,50 35,300 1,426,000 1,205,000 1,293,000
206,046 Net GST Cashflow 45000 50,000 25,000 24,000 144,000 150,000 175,000
Other Operating Costs
555,369 Net Cash Flows From (Used In) Operating Activities 29,500 (£05,200) 291,500 (94,800) 121,000 337,000 258,000
Cash Flows From {Used In] Investing Activities
Inflows
Sale of fixed assets
Sale of ivestment assets
Other
Outflows
Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of investments
Other
Total Investing Cash Flow
Cash Fows From {Used In] Financing Activities
Inflows
Crawdown of loans
27,957  Investment income 4,500 3,000 4,500 9,000 27,000 27,000 27,000
Other
Outflows
100,000 Repayment of loans 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 100,000 66,700
14,946  Interest puid 9.000 9,000 9,000 9,000 36,600 21,300
Other
(85,989 Total Financing Cash Flow (29,500} {25,000) {29,500} (25,000} (109,000} (61,000} 27,000
454,381 Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash Held (130,200} 262,000 {119,800) 12,000 276,000 285,000
240,615 Opening Cash Equival 705,000 709,000 578,800 840,800 70%,000 721,000 997,000
Adjustments (romding)
709,000 Closing Cash Equivalents 709,000 578,800 840,800 721,000 721,000 997,000 1,282,000
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1. Introduction

Wellington Cable Car Limited (WCCL) is proud to present its Statement of Intent for
2017/18 as required by the Local Government Act, 2002 and WCCL's Shareholder,
Wellington City Council. WCCL comprises two operating divisions — the Cable Car and the
Trolley Bus Overhead Electrical Network, both of which are funded differently. As a Council
Controlled Organisation (CCQO), WCCL is accounted for as a Public Benefit Entity (PBE).

The Cable Car is funded by passenger revenue and occasional grants from Wellington City
Council (WCC) for specific projects (for example, the Electric Drive project in 2016 was
part-funded by WCC). The Cable Car carries approximately 1,000,000 passengers per
annum and its patronage is split between local residents and visitors to Wellington. The
Cable Car is regulated as a funicular railway under the Railways Act, 2005 by the New
Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA) Rail Safety Regulator. Despite the healthy number of
passengers, future revenue will be insufficient to fund the Cable Car's ongoing asset
management programme (in particular, large ticket items such as the replacement of rolling
stock) needed to maintain this service. WCCL is continuing to work closely with NZTA,
GWRC and WCC to investigate the potential provision of public transport subsidies to
support this service, If these are not forthcoming, an increase in fares will be required in the
near future to mitigate the gap between costs and income received (primarily, passenger
revenue).

The Trolley Bus network is grant funded by Greater Wellington Regional Council (GWRC).
Trolley Bus services will cease during 2017 and WCCL will commence decommissioning
the network and disposing of the overhead network assets shortly thereafter. This process
is expected to take approximately 12 months and is currently scheduled to commence in
November 2017, dependent upon (a) final confirmation of the date of cessation of Trolley
Bus services and (b} the outcome of the procurement process for the decommissioning
work. At the time of writing, both of these activities are a work-in-progress and whilst
assumptions can be made for planning purposes, these are not definite at this stage. As it
has for many years, WCCL continues to ensure that the network remains operationally
available for Trolley Bus services and that public safety is protected, whilst ensuring
compliance with all statutory legislation, regulations, codes and applicable standards.

Attachment 3 Wellington Cable Car Ltd draft SOI 2017/18 Page 86



COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS Pl Ao

12 APRIL 2017 Me Heke Ki Poneke

WCCL SOI 2017/18

Notwithstanding the proposed structural changes for the company, the core strategies and
activities outlined in this Statement of Intent continue the thrust of the previous Statement
of Intent for 2016/17. The company's principal activities relate to its long-term public
transport infrastructure assets -~ the Trolley Bus overhead electrical network and the
Wellington Cable Car.
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2. Strategic Direction
a) Core Purpose
The primary business activities of WCCL are:

1. Provision of the Cable Car passenger service, to meet the needs of local residents
(including commuters and students) and visitors to Wellington. This operation is
financed from passenger fare income and any additional revenue developed
from WCCL and other tourism-related activities. In 2016 the Company received
grant funding from WCC to assist in the replacement of the electric drive and
maintenance work on the Cable Cars. The company is planning to qualify for
central and local government Public Transport subsidies as part of the Metlink
network (similar to the ferries), and is working closely with NZTA, GWRC and
WCC on this proposal.

2. Provision of Trolley Bus traction services by means of the overhead electrical
network for use by Trolley Buses in Wellington under contract from GWRC, using
Broadspectrum as the maintenance services provider. This operation is financed
from payments by GWRC on a cost recovery basis, to cover planned
maintenance and reactive defect rectification of the overhead electrical network.

This also includes:

« |nfrastructure-retated activities undertaken within Wellington, In particular,
third-party projects requiring the overhead electrical network to be
relocated and/or modified (for example, construction projects within the
CBD);

* Maintaining WCCL’s pole network funded via pole user charges from
telecommunications companies using WCCL's poles to support their
communication networks.,

« The planning and commencement of the decommissioning process, which
will commence during the 2017/18 year. WCCL is also investigating the
potential sale of the poles to a utility company once the network has been
decommissioned.

b) Cable Car Passenger Operating Environment Update

The operating environment for 2016/17 year has continued to be strong and the whole
tourism industry in Wellington (including the Cable Car) has benefitted significantly from
this. Passenger figures and revenue increased in the 2015/16 year to 1,047,000 and
$2.7 Million respectively, even though the Cable Car shut down for a large upgrade in
June 2016. Further growth, particularly in the tourism sector is predicted. Local growth
is harder to predict, noting the projected relatively small increase in the Kelburn and
adjacent suburb populations.
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The Cable Car is the second most visited tourist attraction in Wellington after the
Museum of New Zealand Te Papa Tongarewa, and customer feedback indicates that it
is perceived as an iconic attraction for Wellingtonians and visitors alike. Ppatronage is
shared between local residents (including students at Victoria University of Wellington)
and tourists. In respect of the tourist market, WCCL is looking forward to the addition
of further tourist attractions in Wellington City, including the film museum.

Victoria University student numbers have declined in recent years due to changes in
the locations of student accommodation and this trend is continuing because of this
permanently changed demographic. There is clear evidence that the price of student
fares (which is much lower than an equivalent bus fare) is not the cause of this decline
in student numbers. In response, the company has become part of the Victoria
University of Wellington inter-campus travel scheme using the Snapper system and
while this has helped it has not completely arrested the trend of declining student
passengers.

c) Trolley Bus Network Decommissioning

At the time of writing, WCCL is in the closing stages of finalising the procurement
phase for the decommissioning of the Trolley Bus overhead electrical network, which
is scheduled to commence in November 2017 with a planned completion date 12
months from commencement. This will include removal of 80 Km of network,
associated electrical supply feeder pillars, the electrical fault protection system and
those poles not required to support critical infrastructure (including electricity supply
cables, telecommunications ultra-fast broadband networks, street lighting, road signs
and traffic lights). WCCL is also negotiating the potential sale of the remaining poles
and is in the final stages of completing the last of the pole user license agreements
with Telecommunications utility providers.

d) Strategic Change Initiatives

WCCL will need to change and evolve as the Traction Services side of the Company
winds down. There will be some restructuring costs associated with this but these
have not yet been fully scoped at this stage.

e) Health, Safety and Wellness

The Health and Safety at Work Act 2015 has now been enacted and this is already
driving positive behaviours and greater collaboration between key players in the
Wellington public transport sector, This includes regular meetings between PCBUs at
which learnings are shared and initiatives are discussed to promote safety and raise
awareness. WCCL's partners in this process include Broadspectrum, NZ Bus,
Wellington Electricity, WCC, GWRC and NZTA,

WCCL's staff and sub-contractors have a huge role to play in the success of the
Company. Looking after the most important asset WCCL possesses (its staff) and
giving them the health, safety and wellness support they need to carry on doing
excellent work is important to the Company and our customers, and is given a very
high priority in everything that we do.
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3. Natureand Scope of Activities
The activities that are undertaken and the outputs that WCCL seeks to deliver across both

operating divisions are as follows:

Core Strategies K ies and O Sought
a. Operation of Cable Car Key Generic Activities and Outcomes
Service

. Ensure all legal and statutory requirements are met,

. Safe operation of the Cable Car service with no

serious injuries or fatalities, by ensuring high
importance is placed on the safety of staff,
contractors and members of the public, and
meeting statutory requirements.

. Reliable operation of Cable Car service by

ensuring appropriate staffing levels and that
assets are managed in accordance with the
strategy and policies outlined in Cable Car Asset
Management Plan.

. High standard of customer service provided, with

convenience for regular users and a memorable
experience for visitors to Wellington.

. Stakeholder engagement with all relevant central

government departments, councils, organisations,
companies, suppliers and third parties whose
activities impinge upon or who could affect Cable
Car services.

. Cable Car marketing activities managed in

accordance with the company’ Marketing
Plan.

. Manage the operation of the Cable Car within the

timetable to maximise the throughput of
passengers, without detracting from the overall
experience of visitors to the facility.

. Train employees to ensure that they perform all

aspects of their work helpfully and in accordance
with safety and operational requirements.

. Set revenue targets for the Cable Car service to

contribute optimally to WCCL's net profit after tax.

10. Ensure appropriate insurance cover is held for

Cable Car assets and functions.

11.Cable Car Health and Safety Plan kept up to

date and appropriately managed.

12. Ensure the ongoing viability of the Cable Car

12
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Core Str. ies

Key Activities an t So

b. Operation and De-
Commissioning of
Trolley Bus Traction

Services

10.

Key Generic Activities and Outcomes

Ensure all legal and statutory requirements are met.

Safe operation of the Trolley Bus overhead
electrical network with no serious injuries or
fatalities, by ensuring high importance is placed
on the safety of staff, contractors and members
of the public, and meeting statutory
requirements.

Operate, maintain, repair and replace (where
required) the Trolley Bus overhead electrical
network assets in accordance with the Asset
Management Plan.

The Trolley Bus Overhead Electrical Network is
fully available for Trolley Bus services as
contracted for by GWRC, subject to damage
caused by extreme weather / third parties, or any
requirements to undertake reactive maintenance
or defect rectification.

Ensure the safe and efficient de-commissioning
of the Trolley Bus Overhead Network post the
cessation of Trolley Bus services (which is
planned to commence in November 2017).

Stakeholder engagement with all relevant central
government departments, councils, organisations,
companies, suppliers and third parties whose
activities impinge upon or who could affect Trolley
Bus services.

Train WCCL employees (and Broadspectrum
employees where necessary) to ensure that they
can perform all aspects of their work satisfactorily
and in accordance with safety and operational
requirements.

Ensure appropriate insurance cover is held for
Traction Services assets and vehicles, excluding
the overhead electrical network infrastructure.

Ensure the Trolley Bus Traction Services Heaith
and Safety Plan is kept up to date and
appropriately managed.

Liaise and negotiate with WCC, GWRC, utility
companies and broadband providers to manage
third party use of WCCL Poles for safety reasons
and to secure revenue,

13
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Core Strategies Key Activities and Outcomes Sought

11. Provide assistance to third parties who are
required to move high loads through the
overhead electrical network.

12. Provide assistance to organisations that need
to relocate overhead electrical network assets
for road building / modification purposes or
earthquake strengthening works.
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4. Performance Measurements

1. Cable Car Passenger Services Performance Measures

Performance Indicator Measure Target/Result
Cable Car vehicles, track, Approval by NZTA Rail Timely
tunnels, bridges, buildings Safety Regulator to be approval
and equipment are obtained each year received
maintained to required
safety standards
Cable Car Service —
Reliability Percentage reliability Greater than 99%
Cable Car User Local Residents:
Satisfaction Survey How often do you use the Cable | 50% travel on the
Car? Cable Car at least
once every year
Tourists:
How do you rate the visitor 90% of respondents
experience on the Cable Car? provide a rating of
great than 6 on a scale
of 110 10
Cable Car Service
maintains Qualmark g::;"r;2$ ant
endorsement to confirm Qualmark endorsement maintained wi
that the Cable Car Service maintained annual reaualification
meets established tourism pvebis.
standards eq
Asset Management
Cable Car Asset Asset Management Plan as El:n ;':rﬂew::':?d aann%
Management Plan (AMP) | approved by the Board is ﬂnfndal iﬂ‘: “caﬁ"gns
implemented and implemented with care and fed into W(?CL WCe
maintained efficiency. and GWRC plan ning
and financial systems
. Passenger trip
Cable Car Passenger Passenger trips as per the estimates achi o
Trips estimates below variances explained

15
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Estimated Cable Car Passenger Numbers and Revenue

1st Qtr znd atr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr Full Year
2016/17
(sol 149,815 293,325 354,332 200,039' | 997,511
Estimates)
(z::g 7 | qo7020t | 266,165 354422' | 200039' | 927,646°
f,‘,’:)’ 8 | 206367 293,010 375,962 216589 | 1,001,928
2017/18
(Revonue)| $490.792 | 808,556 $1,052,333 | $536.983 | $2,889,665
(zga‘f)’ 18| 210171 302,556 388,492 220198 | 1,421,417
2018/19
(Revonue)| $498.111 |  $889,891 $1,188,638 | $600,910 | $3,177,551
(2:::)120 213,107 312,457 401,492 223873 | 1,150,928
2019/20
(Revenue)|  $550.145 | $947,149 $1.235377| $612,637 | $3,345,308

1. Estimated figures for the remainder of the 2016/17 financial year.

2. The 2016/17 figures were affected by the shutdown for the replacement of the electric
drive and controls system June - August 2016. This impacted upon passenger numbers
for the year by approximately 30,000 — 40,000. There was also a transient negative
impact upon local passenger numbers following the November 2016 earthquake.
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2. Trolley Bus Services Performance Measures

Performance Indicator Measure Target/Result
Number of hazard notices
L issued to WCCL in respect of
Hazard Notices issued network issues caused by N
Nil notices

to WCCL in respect of

WCCL or a result of

Network Issues inadequate maintenance by

WCCL.

Trolley Bus Overhead Procurement process for

Network Decommissioning safe and efficient Trolley
Trolley Bus Overhead Plan and Schedule agreed Bus Overhead Network
Network with GWRC and procurs ement Decommlssioning
Decommissioning Project | process completed organised and ready to

commence at the

appropriate time.

GWRC funding and
performance agreement
compliance

Number of breaches of
agreement

Nil breaches by WCCL

Nil complaints from
GWRC

17
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3. WCCL Corporate Activities Performance Measures

Operational Risks are
proactively identified,

Operational Risks are
proactively identified, assessed

Performance Indicator Measure Target/Result
Compliance with Number of adverse comments Nil adverse comments
appropriate regulations from the relevant requlatory
and statues authorities
WCCL Corporate and WCCL Corporate and Nil Extreme Risks extant

assessed and managed to | and managed High Risks are
an As Low As Reasonably proactively managed
Practicable (ALARP) level and eliminated or
in accordance with the minimised.
principles contained in
AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009.
WCCL disaster recovery WCCL completes a detailed Completion of the update
plan update review and update of the of the WCCL disaster
existing disaster recovery plan recovery pian.
given the recent natural events
in Wellington and the inherent
nature of its business
4. Financial Performance Measures
Performance Indicator Measure Target/Result
Budgetary requirements Degree of variance from budget | Within 10% of
approved by the WCCL Board approved
Board are met variance
Board delegations are Board and leadership team All approvals of
adhered to approvals of financial and financial and
contractual commitments and contractual
expenditure commitments and
expenditure are in
accordance with the
delegations policy
WCCL can fund its long- Appropriate budgeted amount Sufficient financial
term Cable Car capital set aside each year for long- reserves are
expenditure programme term capital works programme maintained to permit
funding of capital
works programme as
included in the Asset
Management Plan,

through a combination
of cash, external
borrowing and grants /
external funding
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5. Board’s Approach to Governance

» The Board of Directors normally comprises two members. All are appointed by WCC
for varying terms, according to WCC practices.

s The Chairman and other Director are both appointed by WCC and are currently
senior Council Officers (City Engineer and Chief Financial Officer).

» The Board currently meets formally every two months (typically 5 meetings per
annum). Further detail on Board practices is outlined below at paragraph 5.(c).

a) Responsibility of the Directors

The Board supports the principles of good govemnance as set out in “The Four Pillars of
Governance Best Practice for New Zealand Directors” (incorporating the Code of Practice
for Directors), issued by the Institute of Directors in New Zealand (Inc.} in 2012.

The responsibilities of the Directors include:
« Exercising prudence and skill in their governance of the company, and to act in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1993 and all other
relevant legislation in the execution of their duties;
¢ Managing WCCL to meet:
- The objectives of WCCL's Board;
- General WCC objectives for WCCL as expressed from time to time;
- Monitoring and addressing policy, solvency and statutory matters of the company;

- Monitoring all of the company’s activities and ensuring the company
acts in accordance with its stated objectives.

b) Delegated Functions

The Board of Directors delegates the day-to-day management of the company to the CEO
and his leadership team, who are required to act in accordance with the Board's approved
delegations policy.

c) Board Practices
The Board's practices include:
i} The Chair meets with the CEQ weekly to discuss current issues

il) The Directors and the CEQ meet monthly for a formal catch-up to discuss governance
issues.

iii) The Board meets bi-monthly or more frequentty on an as-required basis.

Attachment 3 Wellington Cable Car Ltd draft SOl 2017/18 Page 97

ltem 2.1 AHachment 3



ltem 2.1 Atachment 3

COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS e R e A

12 APRIL 2017 Me Heke Ki Poneke

WCCL SOI 2017/18

6. Organisational Health, Capability and Risk Assessment

WCCL is committed to developing and maintaining an enduring and resilient approach
to health and safety that embeds a culture of zero harm within the company, adheres to
legislative requirements and ensures that staff, contractors and the general public are
not exposed to unnecessary risk or harm in their dealings with WCCL. The following
approaches and organisational procedures are in place or are being developed to
ensure that WCCL meets its obligations to the Council and the Wellington public as
required by the Health and Safety at Work Act 2015, the Railways Act 2005, Local
Government Act 2002 and other pertinent legislation:

a) Organisational Approach to Health and Safety:

Health and Safety legislation has been overhauled in New Zealand, and the old
Health and Safety in Employment Act 1992 has been replaced by the new Health
and Safety at Work Act 2015 (HASWA) modelled upon the Australian equivalent.
WCCL is working in conjunction with WCC to ensure that WCCL remains "ahead
of the curve” under the new regime that now exists in addition to the
continuing practices that are undertaken by the NZTA Rail Safety Regulator for the
Cable Car.

The Cable Car operates under a license granted by the NZTA Rail Safety
Regulator and follows well established procedures for the investigation and
reporting of any near misses or accidents, The vast majority of reported events
comprise of slips, trips or falls, or members of the general public who have
injured themselves elsewhere and ask for first aid assistance whilst travelling on
the Cable Car.

WCCL participated in the very successful WorkSafe New Zealand Safety Star
Rating Scheme pilot in the 2016/17 year, and is keen to participate in similar
schemes in the future.

At a governance level, Health and Safety reporting is a mandatory item at all
Board meetings, ensuring that Directors remain appraised of current statistics
and any developments ansing.

As a result, WCCL has in place appropriate Health and Safety policies,
practices and procedures to meet its responsibilities covering hazard
identification and management, emergency planning, accident reporting,
investigation management, contractor management and safe work procedures
(incorporating appropriate Safe Systems of Work).

b) Capital Investment and Asset Management Plans:

Sourcing adequate funding to meet the requirements of the long-term Cable Car
capital investment plan is a very high priority as several significant large equipment
replacement programmes will be needed over the next 10-12 years. WCCL will
continue to liaise with NZTA and GWRC in addition to WCC to identify appropriate
finance (which could be a combination of debt, grant, and external funding from both
local and central government funding streams).
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The two operating divisions of WCCL each have their own Asset Management Plans and
associated capital investment plans. The Cable Car Asset Management Plan, in
particular, was fundamentally rewritten and re-issued in February 2016 to cover the 50-
year period through to 2066.

Staff Engagement and Training:

The two operating divisions of WCCL each have staff engagement responsibilities
and conduct a variety of training to support their activities as well as continuing
professional development for employees. Some fraining is conducted in-house or
using services provided by others CCOs and Trusts, but WCCL also engages extemnal
training providers. These are essential for customer service (“front-of-house™) related
activities, first aid, HT driver training, IT and specialist technical training (noting the
unigue nature and design of the Trolley Bus network and the skills required for its
upkeep).

Emergency Planning and Business Continuity:

WCCL has an existing disaster recovery plan, however during the 2017/18 year the
Company has as a measure to complete a detailed review and update of this plan given
the recent natural events and the inherent nature of the WCCL business, The disaster
recovery plan focuses on effective communications with staff and the general public in
the event of an emergency event, as well as IT system and data recovery, bearing in
mind the importance of maintaining Cable Car and Trolley Bus passenger services for
the general public in the event of accidents, incidents and natural disasters.

Environmental Impact Assessment and Practices:

WCCL does not produce high levels of waste or contaminated materials, and therefore
does not have a highly developed environmental impact procedure for analysing its
carbon footprint. However, it does undertake sensible initiatives including separation and
recycling of waste paper products, plastics, aluminium tins, food waste, conventional
garbage and metals (ferrous and non-ferrous). It also endeavours to uses suppliers
which value the environment, such as the selection of its printing and photocopying
equipment.

Risk Management:

The company’s Risk Management Policy is to actively manage risk by assessing risks on
at least an annual basis, using the methodologies and practices laid down in ASINZS ISO
31000:2009 (Risk Management). These risks are identified and actively managed under
the following categories:

21
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a) Health and Safety

b) Environment

c) Asset Management

d) Financial and Commercial
e) Statutory and Legislation
f) Corporate

g) Project

h) Operational

i) HR

o

In each category, the effect of a risk on the business have been considered and the level of
risk assessed, taking into account any controls that have been put in place. Risk mitigation
actions and controls are determined such that the level of risk is considered to be As Low As
Reasonably Practicable (ALARP) using the principles of eliminate, substitute, isolate or
engineering controls.

WCCL has no risks that have an Extreme assessment.

The Risk Register currentiy contains 11 risks that have a High Assessment (9 Cable Car and 2
Trolley Bus).

WCCL regularly reviews and updates it's WCCL Risk Register (of which a major update was
completed in February 2016}, and the latest version containing all of the High risks as of
writing date is included in Appendix One.

NZ Bus, BroadSpectrum, and Wellington Electricity all have their own Risk Registers that
pertain to certain aspects of Trolley Bus operational services. Regular health and safety
meetings are held with all of these organisations (as required of PCBUs by the Health and
Safety at Work Act, 2015) where any significant hazards and risks arising are discussed and
actions agreed 1o eliminate or mitigate risk (where practicable).
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7. Additional Information

a)

b)

Ratio of Shareholders Funds to Total Assets
Definition of Terms

Shareholders’ funds: Represents the net equity the shareholder has contributed to
the Company since its incorporation.  This amount includes issued share capital,
revaluation reserves and retained eamings. For completeness, this amount would
also include any balances in the shareholder current account that exist but is not
applicable in the case of WCCL as the Company is self-sufficient financially (other
than specific grants received from WCC and GWRC) and pays all amounts in
respect of dividends when they are declared. As at 30 June 2016, the shareholders'
funds equated to $9.350m.

Total Assets: Represent the total assets, both intangible and tangible of the
Company, disclosed in accordance with applicable financial reporting standards.
For completeness, it is noted that any tax liabilities in respect of GST and deferred
tax are classified as liabilities irrespective of them being a debit or credit balance.
As at 30 June 2016, the Total Assets of the Company equated to $11.877m.

Ratio of Shareholders Funds to Total Assets as at 30 June 2015 - 78%

Estimate of Amount Intended for Distribution

The Board and Management of the Company are continuously investigating
additional revenue-earning streams, and the result of these activities may require
initial capital investment in order to provide increased revenue (and therefore
dividend) streams in future years subject to any agreement reached in relation to the
future funding of the Cable Car asset management plan, specifically by NZTA and
GWRC.

Cable Car passenger numbers and revenue have increased post the completion of
the new Cabile Car Kelburn terminus in 2013 as well as the other improvements
and strategic marketing initiatives the Company has been undertaking since 2014.
The Directors anticipate revenue will continue to increase given the recent work on
the Cable Car electric drive in June/July 2016 and continuing growth in tourist
numbers in Wellington.

However because of the planned capital investment programme detailed within this
Statement of Intent (specifically the Cable Car assets) plus the potential for company
restructuring costs after the Trolley Bus network is decommissioned; in addition to the
major project for the 2017/18 year being the decommissioning of the Trolley Bus
Overhead Network, the Company is not expecting to declare any dividends in respect
of the 2017/18 year and subsequent two financial years. Should aiternative funding
arrangements be secured in respect of the capital invesiment programme the
Company will re-assess its cash requirements and, as such, its dividend policy.
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As stated in this Statement of Intent, there is the long-term requirement to ensure that
the capital investment programme of the Company is adequately funded. In order to
determine these needs, the Company has produced a comprehensive 50-year Asset
Management Plan covering the period 2016 — 2066 (in respect of the Cable Car
operations only given the cessation of Trolley Bus services). In addition to the
additional maintenance required over the coming years, the most important project
within the capital investment programme is the replacement of the Cable Car
Passenger Vehicles and Bogies (currently planned for 2025/26). This is considered
the bare minimum to obtain a licence to operate from the NZTA rail safety regulator
and maintain the operation at an acceptable level of performance and customer
experience. In addition, the Cable Car is an iconic attraction and WCCL wishes to
maintain the highest levels of service and customer experience wherever possible.

Acquisition Procedures

The Company will only issue shares or acquire shares in other companies or become
a partner with any other business with the express prior permission of WCC.

The Company will fully investigate and report to WCC any proposal to enter into
partnerships or to sell any buildings or other significant assets before binding
commitments are entered into.

Activities for which the Board Seeks Compensation from a Local
Authority

The Company obtains funding from the following sources, noting that no significant
operational or capital funding has previously been provided by WCC for many years
prior to the Electric Drive replacement which commenced in the 2015/16 year which
was much appreciated by the Company:

* The company is funded by GWRC to operate and maintain the Trolley Bus
overhead electrical network until the planned cessation of Trolley Bus services, at
which time GWRC will partially fund the de-commissioning of the Trolley Bus
overhead electrical network and the company will fund the remainder for which
reserves have been retained in the recent years;

= The Cable Car operation will be funded from fares.

=  WCCL, in conjunclion with WCC, GWRC, NZTA and WREDA is undertaking an
NZTA Better Business Case to ascertain the feasibility and merits of the Cable
Car operation becoming part of the Metlink public transport network;

* Income from undertaking miscellaneous services for third parties relating to the
Trolley Bus overhead electrical network, including project management (for
example, the Victoria University Pipitea campus construction project); and

Utility companies that currently pay for the use of Trolley Bus poles (for example,
Telecommunications companies for UFB infrastructure).

Estimate of commercial value of shareholders investment

The estimate of commercial value is equal to the equity value of the company as at
30 June 2016, is $9.350m.
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The commercial value is reassessed annually, following completion of the audited
annual report of the Company.

At the time of completing this Statement of Intent, the Company believes that the
costs of decommissioning the Trolley Bus Overhead Network will be externally fully
funded, however should this not eventuate, this will have an impact on the
commercial value of the Company and be included in its next Statement of Intent.

Other matters (if applicable) e.g. Water supply services, LGA
requirements

Nil

Supplementary information the entity wishes to include

Insurance Programme
The insurance programme for the respective operating divisions is as follows:

(1) Cable Car Service

All assets related to the cable car service are covered by a policy with Lloyds of
London.

The amount of cover necessary has been calculated on the basis of Probable
Maximum Loss, as advised by the structure and earthquake engineering
consultant who surveyed the assets and reported to WCCL. The Company
maintains an investment fund which exceeds any excess payable under this
insurance policy to ensure sufficient business operations funds exist at any point
in time.

(2) Material Change

Following the Canterbury earthquakes, it was not possible to get continued cover
from the then insurer, or from any other NZ-based insurer. The placement was
made with Lioyds through and introduction by WCC on the best terms that could
be achieved, but not for full replacement. WCCL was able to get its cover only
on the strength of the consultant’s report and his assessment of Probable
Maximum Loss.

At the time of writing, WCCL has not completed its insurance renewal in respect
of the 2017/18 year, however given the Kaikoura earthquake in November 2016 it
is expected that insurance premiums will increase over those payable in respect
of the 2016/17 year.

(3) Cable Car Service

All assets related to the cable car service are covered by a policy with Lloyds of
London.

The amount of cover necessary has been calculated on the basis of Probable
Maximum Loss, as advised by the structure and earthquake engineering
consultant who surveyed the assets and reported to WCCL. The Company
maintains an investment fund which exceeds any excess payable under this
insurance policy to ensure sufficient business operations funds exist at any point
in time.
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(4) Trolley Bus Overhead Network

The trolley bus overhead network itself (poles, stays wires, contact wire and other
equipment) is self-insured.

The warehouse and contents, including inventory and equipment is insured with
a NZ-based insurer (Aon as broker).

Motor Vehicles are insured with a NZ-based insurer (Aon),
Liability covers are insured with a NZ-based insurer (Aon).
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Appendix 1: WCCL Risk Register (High Risks)
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Cable Car Risk Register (High Only) as at 15 February 2017
Risk 1D Hazard Title Risk Items Risk Causes Risk Effects Risk Controls Pre- Pre- Controls Pre- Pre- Post- Post- Post- Post- Categories
" Controls  Impact Controls Controls  [Controls Controls Controls  Controls
Probability Rizk Overall Risk |Probability Impact Overall  Risk
! Rl s = 2 < - - . Sy S Ay - oo 5 5o _ Rating  Score par . Risk Score ! -
0034  Defective Systems: Braking 1 - Loss of Cable Car service 11« Breakdown or failure 1 - Loss of Cable Car service 1+ Multiph hods of dancy designed into the system, Almost Catastrophic 25 ‘Catastrophic 20 Operational
! Certain | | impact
2 - Financiai Risk 1o the Company 1 - Rigorous p thy int Including weekly checks, and an annual Almost Major 2 Catastrophic 20 Plant and
| shutdown, Certain Equipment
3-Damageto P &E | ‘!-Omboc&isaveﬂ\auie&ndchn;tdwtnnnm. | |
0031 Damage and or physical ‘I-Mmalmdphnkdllhomd '1- Public under the inflence of drugs or 1 - Stress and possible physical violence to 1 - Drivers have right to refuse entry on cars and lower station Uikely Modarate 7 Moderate 16 Health &
violence caused by intoaicated employees alcobol driver and passengers Safety
public/students | |
:2 - Loss of Cable Car service ! ‘2 - Loss of Cable Car service |2 - Drivers have radio communications and access to WCC security staff
3 - Minor damage to Cable Car and property 3 - Security guards on site during events which may attract intoxicated behaviour
0007 Earthquake [Small] - {setsoff 1 - injuries, unconsciousness, cuts and 11 - Senalt Earthquabke 1 - Damage to infrastructore and equipment 1 - Cars automatically show to creep speed and stop at the next station function tripped by ‘Pombh Major 19 Moderate 16 Health &
EG monitor in Control room) abrasions or loss of fife due to falling EQ monitor. The monitar has a trigger Jevel of 0.01g Safety
debris,
2 - Loss of aguipmant i 2 - Injury 1o employee/ contractor 2 - Evacuation signs fitted at Lambton and Kelburn Terminals Possible Moderate 16 Minor 9 Medium |Plart ana
ji - Damage to structure t ‘3. Employees are trained In evacuation procedures
4 - Loss of cable car service, 4 All exits are clearly identified with iluminated signs
S« Car evacuation procedures taught and practised regularly s detailed in Drivers and
Health & Safety Manuasks
6 - Telephone interconnects with radio in both Cars, programmed with emergency
numbers
3 ] —m 7 - Tunnels, bridges, visual inspaction before service recommences - .
£ - Tunnel convergence monitored !
0021  After hours Interference with a 1 - Loss of Coble Car service ‘)1 - Unauthorised entry to Cable Car 1 - Vandalism/damage to Cable Car property 1 - Lower Car locked inside terminal at night Almost Major 23 Possible Moderate 16 Plant and
Cable Car by general public 'premises by public . Likely to be elevated at Certain Equipment
cortain times of the year (season and large
(events).
2 < Damage to property 2 « Loss of Cable Car Service 2-M d cameca it and alarms inside both Kelburn and Lambton Terminals
3. Both Kelburn and Lambton Terminals locked at night |
4 Isolating transformer used to supply mains power o strip.
| |5« Driver’s pre-test run Inspection conducted. |
6 - Sprinkler system at Kelburn to deter trespassers.
0022  Workers around the cars during 1 - Vehicle strike causing injury, broken f2 - Pegple trespassing on the track 1< Injury 1o Worker 1 - Workers and s wear the appropriate PPE for task with high viz and sturdy  Likely Major 2 Moderate 15 Heahh &
operation bones and or brulsing footwear 3 minkmum and given HES training, including hazard identification Safety
2 - Loss of Cable Car Service ‘\2 ~ Workers undertaking work without prior 2 - Loss of Cable Car service 2 - Portable RT can be used by workers to communicate with drivers Likely Moderate w Moderate 16 Plant and
|briefing or authorisation { Equipment
3. Appropriate icaffolding, signage, barriers and netting used a3 required
& . Drivers notifled of any such work
5 - Drivers notify each othee when workers are in the proximity of the track :
6 - Drivers use Cable Car befl from a distance of no less than 4 sets of track rollers a5 2
waming to workers. ¥ no ack dedg fwed, Cars must be stopped
0039 Passengers on Station 1 - Injury to passenger ?l-iunduvﬁmlhoubhcueodd 1 - Injuty to passenger 1 - Signs and markings on platf 1o nd| risk to T Likely Moderate 17 ‘Moderate 16 Health &
Platforms strike them. Safety
: 12 - Loss of Cable Car service | 2 - Loss of Cable Car services 2+ Drivers trained to be observant and look out for potential accidents. : !
0041 Workers injured by mechanical |1 - Injury to worker |1 - Dropping/mishandling of mechanical 1 < Injury to personnel caused by impact 1 - Authorised employee use only. Likety Moderate 17 'Moderate 16 Health &
handling equipment handling equipment and equipment being Safety
lifred
i 2 - Damage to equipment 2 Danger areas are fenced off.
| 3 - Regular checks to ansure lifting equipment is serviceable. |
| 4. Register kept of ropes, dlings and lifting equipment.
| S - PPE gear worn,
| 6 - Safety strops used where applicable.
28
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Traction Services Risk Register (High Only) as at 15 February 2017

WCCL SOI 2017/18
Risk 1D Hazard Title Risk Items Risk Causes Risk Effects
#
0005  Earthguake (Large 5.5¢4) 1 -Injuries due to falling 1 - Earthquake - (Large} 1 - Damage to Glover Street building,
debris overhead network, stock and
equipment, public property and
roading infrastructure.
2 - Damage and loss of plant 2 - Injury to employees
and equipment (i.e. Truck,
_Van, Tooling, Stock} !
3. f)amage 1o overhead
network infrastructure
0023  Extreme Weather Events 1 - Injuries to ‘l -E weather conditi 1 - Injury/illoess to
employees/contractors, (wind, rain, flooding} employee/contractor, and or general
‘damage to property | _public
2 - Loss of trolley bus 2 - Debris flying around 2 - Damage to overhead infrastructure
~operations

3 - Loss of DC power supply ‘3~$lippervsur1xes

3. Damage to plant and equipment
4 - Damage to property

'S Loss of DC power supply to trolley
bus network,

Risk Controls

1 - Structural inspection of building to be completed by an independent

qualified person, building to be above 33% of code.

2 - A Civil defence cabinet with first aid, food and other supplies are located by
the Warehouse entrance. The water containers are changed every six months.

"3 Staff are Trained first aiders

4 - Evacuation/emergency signs are fitted within the Glover Street building.

5 - Overhead network inspection to be completed by staff/contractor.
6 - The overhead network has been designed, constructed and is maintained
by competent persons,

1 - WCCL vehicles are fuelled, equipment/stock at Glover Street Warehouse
ready to use/distribute. Stock is also replenished at WCCL's contractor
warehouse.

2 - Materials and rubbish securely stored/disposed of at WCCL Glover Street
building and the Kilbirnie pole yard.

3 - Contractors undertake field operations. They make safe or repair any
damage to the overhead network,

4 - Reports sent to media if the trolley buses have been affected by the

‘weather and are not operating.

S - Work in canjunction with Wellington Electricity to restore DC supply safely,

:6 - Observe and look after each other in the work party.
7+ 1f not safe and conditions are dangerous, work is stopped.

8 - PPE/Wet weather gear worn,

Uikely

Possible

“Passibie

Possible

Possible

Possible

Possible

Moderate

Major

Major

‘Moderate
Major

Moderate

Post- Post- Post- Categories
C Is C Is  C it
Overall Risk
Risk Score Rating
Health & Safety
16
‘Minor ‘Medium |[Plant and Equipment
9
"Minor . TMedium  |Financial
Moderate
16
Minor 5
! —
Moderate 15
Mino!
d 5
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Appendix 2: Accounting Policies

1. STATEMENT OF
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

These are the financial statements of Wellington Cable Car Limited. Wellington Cable Car
Limited is a company wholly owned by Wellington City Council and is registered under the
Companies Act 1993. It is a Council-controlled Organisation as defined by Section 6 of the
Local Government Act 2002 and is domiciled in New Zealand

The primary objective of the Wellington Cable Car Limited is to provide goods or services
for the community or social benefit rather than making a financial return. Accordingly,
Wellington Cable Car Limited has designated itself as a public benefit entity for Financial
Reporting Purposes.

The financial statements are for the year ended 30 June 2016 and were approved by the
Board of Directors on 09 December 2016.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the company is a going
concern and has the continuing support of its shareholders. Based on the continuing
financial support of its shareholders, the company would satisfy the solvency requirements
of the Companies Act 1993,

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of Wellington Cable Car Limited have been prepared in
accordance with the reporting requirements of the Companies Act 1993 and the Local
Government Act 2002.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Tier 2 PBE accounting
standards. The company is eligible to report as a Tier 2 reporting entity with reduced
disclosures on the basis that it does not have public accountability and is not large

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand (NZ GAAP) and they comply with PBE accounting
standards.

Other accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements.

These financial statements are the first financial statements that have been presented in
accordance with the new PBE Accounting Standards.

Measurement Base

The financial statements of Wellington Cable Car Limited have been prepared on an
historical cost basis, except where modified by the revaluation of trolley bus overhead
lines.

The information is presented in New Zealand dollars.

Changes in Accounting Policies
There have been no changes in accounting policies during the current financial year.
30
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Specific Accounting Policies
In the preparation of these financial statements, the specific accounting policies are as
follows:
(a) Judgements and Estimations
The preparation of financial statements requires judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
revenue and expenses.
Where material, information on the major assumptions is provided in the relevant
accounting policy or will be provided in the relevant note.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised when
the revision affects only that period. If the revision affects both current and future periods,
it is reflected in the current and future periods.

Judgements that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in the relevant notes.

(b) Property, Plant & Equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment consist of operational assets. Expenditure is capitalised as
property, plant and equipment when it creates a new asset or increases the economic
benefits over the total life of an existing asset and can be measured reliably. Costs that do
not meet the criteria for capitalisation are expensed.

Property, plant and equipment is shown at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Measurement

Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment includes the purchase consideration and
those costs that are directly attributable to bringing the asset into the location and
condition necessary for its intended purpose. Subsequent expenditure that extends or
expands the asset's service potential and that can be measured reliably is capitalised. In
accordance with IPSAS 17, borrowing costs are capitalised if they are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or production of a qualifying asset.

Trolley Bus Overhead and Poles

The Traction network is valued at cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with
IPSAS 17, and annually reviewed for impairment to ensure its carrying value is accurately
reflected. Please refer to Note 24 for further explanation.

Cable Car Assets

The Cable Car assets comprising the Cable Car Tracks & Wires and Cable Car Equipment
are valued at cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with IPSAS 17, and
annually reviewed for impairment to ensure its carrying value is accurately reflected.

Impairment

N
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The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at least annually to
determine if there is any indication of impairment in accordance with PBE IPSAS 21 and
PBE IPSAS 26. Where an asset's recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, it
will be reported at its recoverable amount and an impairment loss will be recognised. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an item's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Losses resulting from impairment are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue and Expense.

Disposal

Realised gains and losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense in the period in which the transaction
occurs. Any balance attributable to the disposed asset in the asset revaluation reserve is
transferred to Accumulated Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment, except for assets under
construction (work in progress). Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis, to
allocate the cost or value of the asset (less any residual value) over its useful life. The
depreciation rates of the major classes of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Cable Car Tracks & Wires

Cable Car Equipment

Cable Car Equipment

Computer Equipment

Motor Vehicles

Furniture & Fittings

Trolley Bus Overhead Wire System & Fittings
Trolley Bus Overhead Wire System Equipment
Trolley Bus Overhead Protection System

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each balance date.

Work-in-progress

The cost of projects within work in progress is transferred to the relevant asset class when
the project is completed. It is transferred to the relevant asset class only if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Wellington Cable Car
Limited and the cost of the item can be reliably measured.

(c) Foreign Currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies that are settled in the accounting period are translated
into NZD (the functional currency) using the spot exchange rates at the dates of the
transaction. Transactions in foreign currency that are not settled in the accounting period,
resulting in monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
Statement of Financial Position date are translated to NZD at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on their translation are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

(d) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets comprise computer software which has a finite life and is initially
recorded at cost less any amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is charged to
the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense on a straight-line basis over the
useful life of the asset.
Typically, the estimated useful lives of these assets are as follows:

32
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Computer Software

Realised gains and losses arising from disposal of intangible assets are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense in the period in which the transaction
occurs. Intangible assets are reviewed at least annually to determine if there is any
indication of impairment, Where an intangible asset's recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, it will be reported at its recoverable amount and an impairment loss will
be recognised. Losses resulting from impairment are reported in the Statement of
Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

(e) Goods & Services Tax

These financial statements have been prepared on a GST exclusive basis with the
exception of accounts receivable and accounts payable which are shown inclusive of
GST. Where GST is not recoverable as an input tax, it is recognised as part of the related
asset or expense.

(f) Income Tax

Income tax expense is charged in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and
Expense in respect of the current year's results. Income tax on the surplus or deficit for
the year comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable revenue for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous periods.

Deferred tax is the amount of income tax payable or recoverable in future periods in
respect of temporary differences and unused tax losses.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided
is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at balance date.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable surplus will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

(g) Inventories

Wellington Cable Car Limited's inventory comprises of items held in respect of maintaining
and operating the Overhead Trolley Bus network. Any inventory items utilised in providing
this service is reimbursed by Greater Wellington Regional Council at its cost to Wellington
Cable Car Limited. In accordance with PBE IPSAS 12, all inventory has been valued at the
lower of cost using the weighted average cost formula or net realisable value. Any
inventory items that are reclaimed from the existing Overhead Network are entered into
inventory at a nil cost value, and where subsequently refurbished, the refurbishment costs
are included in calculaing the weighted average cost of that item.

(h) Leases

Finance Leases
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Assets purchased under finance leases which effectively transfer to the lessee
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the property are included
as non-current assets in the Statement of Financial Position. Finance Leases will be
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments. A corresponding
liability is also disclosed with lease payments being apportioned between the liability and
interest payments.

The depreciation policy for depreciable assets, that are the subject of a finance
lease, will be consistent with that for assets that are owned, unless there is no certainty
that the lessee will take ownership by the end of the lease term, in which case the assets
will be depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease
term.

Operating Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased items are classified as operating leases. Payments made under
these leases are expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense in
the period in which they are incurred. Payments made under operating leases are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense as an integral part of the total lease
payment.

(i) Statement of Cash Flow

The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared using the direct approach.

Operating activities include cash received from all revenue sources of the company and
record the cash payments made for the supply of goods and services. Investing activities
relate to the acquisition and disposal of assets. Financing activities relate to activities that
change the equity and debt capital structure of the company.

(j) Related Parties

Related parties arise where one entity has the ability to affect the financial and operating
policies of another through the presence of control or significant influence. Related parties
also include key management personnel or a close member of the family of any key
management personnel.

Directors’' remuneration is any money, consideration or benefit received, receivable or
otherwise made available, directly or indirectly, to a Director during the reporting period.
Directors' remuneration does not include reimbursement of legitimate work expenses or
the provision of work-related equipment such as cell phones and laptops.

(k) Financial Instruments

Wellington Cable Car Limited classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities
according to the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

Trade and other receivables
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Trade and other receivables are recorded at their fair value, less any provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment is established where there is objective evidence
that the company will not be able to collect all amounts according to the original terms of
receivable. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash fiows discounted using effective
interest method. Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with up to three
months maturity from the date of acquisition. These are recorded at their fair value.

Short Term Investments
Short term investments comprise an ANZ term deposit that is invested for a period of less
than 12 months. This is recorded at its fair value.

Trade and other payables
Short term payables are recorded at face value.

() Revenue

Wellington Cable Car Limited derives revenue from the cable car passenger service with
fares being the sole source of income.

Additional revenue is received from projects in relation to the Traction Network to modify
the network at the request of outside parties and there are also pole occupancy licences in
place.

Revenue is recognised when billed or earned on an accrual basis.

(m)Grants

The trolley bus overhead wiring system funding is from contract payments by the Greater
Wellington Regional Council.

Grants are recognised as revenue when received, unless conditions apply. Any grants for
which conditions apply under the grant agreement are carried as liabilities until all the
conditions have been fulfilled.

(n) Expenses
Expenses are recognised when the goods or services have been received on an accrual
basis.

(o) Employee Benefit liabilities

A provision for employee benefits (holiday leave) is recognised as a liability when benefits
are earned but not paid.

Holiday leave is calculated on an actual entittement basis at the greater of the average or
current hourly earnings in accordance with sections 16(2) and 16(4) of the Holidays Act
2003.
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Wellington Cable Car Limited - Business Plan
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the years ending 30 June 2018, 2019 and 2020
2017 2008-Qtr1l 2018-Qtr2 2018-Qtr3 2018-Qtr4 | 2018 - Total 2019 2020
Forecast S000 S000 $000 $000 S000 SO00 S000
OVERHEAD DIVISION
Income 4350 1497 1,407 1,497 1,497 5.965 2,213 0
Contractor Operations Costs 1,802 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Wellington Cable Car Operations Costs 1,303 269 269 265 269 1,075 jie 0
Reactive Mamtenance 551 i3 13 13 13! 50 0 0
Total Operating Expenses 3,656 281 281 281 281 L125 316 0
Operating Surphus/Loss before Replacements 703 1216 1216 1,216 1,216 4,840 1,896 0
Pole Replacements in 0 ¢ ] o 0 0 0
Feeder Pillar Replacements 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Special Works Replacement 62 6 6 6 6 0 0 0
Contact Wire Replacements / Rentensions 140 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
AMP Expenditure 0 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0 0
Total Replacements 593 3 6 6 6 0 ] 0
Total 3rd Party Jobs Completed 0 0 0 0 0| 0 0 0
Overhead Division Items Subject to Business Case to GWRC
Investigation Funding / Decommussiong 110 1210 1210 1,210 1,210 4,840 1,896 0
Contact Wire Replacements / Rentensions 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Network Upgrade Expenditure 00 0 0 Q 0 0 0 0
Total Maintenance cost 703 1,216 1,216 1,216 1216 4,540 1.896 0
Depreciation 225 56 36 56 225 0 0
Total Expenses 4554 1,55 1,553 1,553 1,553 6,190 2,213 0
|
Overhead Overall Surphus/ (Loss) (225) (36) (56) (36) (561 (228) 0 0
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2017 2008-Qtrl 2018-Qfr2 2018-Qtr3 2018-Qtr4 | 2018 - Total 2019 2020
Forecast $000 5000 5000 $000 S000 S000 $000

COMPANY ACTIVITIES DIVISION
Cable Car Income 2,509 491 §09 1,053 537 2,890 3178 3,345
Cable Car Operations 942 262 262 262 262 1,048 1,086 1,126
Cable Car Maintenance 782 03 203 203 203 811 91 746
Degpreciation 168 50 50 50 50 200 215 204
Cabie Car Expenses Subtotal 1,852 515 515 515 518 2,059 1,992 2,076
Cable Car Operating Surphus/ (Loss) 618 (24) 204 539 22 830 1,185 1,269
EXTERNAL ACTIVITIES
3rd Party Services Net Comnbution 8 0 0 0 0) 0 o 0
Sundry External Income 680 4 54 34 54 217 74 75
External Activities Operating Surplus / (Loss) 687 54 54 54 54 217 74 75
Adnumstration Expenses 536 108 108 108 108] 433 586 600
External Activities Division Surplus’ (Loss) 769 (78) 240 485 (3] 614 673 734
WELLINGTON CABLE CAR - TOTAL SURPLUS/ (LOSS) BEFORE TAX L4 (134) 183 428 (88) 389 673 734
Income Tax Expense 95 (36) 53 122 (23} 116 149 216
WELLINGTON CABLE CAR - TOTAL SURPLUS/ (LOSS) AFTER TAX 448 (98) 130 307 (65)) 273 24 528
The Total Surphus / (Loss) After Tax Consists of:
Total Income 7.606 2,042 2360 2,604 2,088 9,094 5464 3420
Total Expenditure (7.157) (2,140) {2.229) (2,298) (2,153) (8.820) (4,540) (2.893)

448 (98) 130 307 (65) 274 524 528
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Wellington Cable Car Limited - Business Plan
Statemsent of Movements in Equity for the years ending 30 June 2015, 2019 and 2020

Notes mr 2018 2019 2020
$000 $000 $0600 $000

Opening Equity - 1 Taly 8,350 $.798 10,072 10,593
Nt Swrplus(lows) for the period 443 273 524 528
Total Recognised Revenues and Expenses 448 273 524 328
Disartburion to Owners - - - .
Cloving Balance 30 June 9,798 10,072 10,593 11,123

Wellington Cable Car Limited - Business Flan
Statement of Financial Position for the years ending 30 June 2017, 20185 and 2019

Notes 017 2018 2019 2020
$000 $000 $000 $000
CURRENT ASSETS
Bank 1 1,748 2,940 1815 4091
Inventory 450 100 - -
Werk In Progres: - - - -
Accounts Receivable 750 150 150 150
2048 3,190 3,765 4241
FIXED ASSETS 2 8,500 $,248 8.2 8317
TOTAL ASSETS 11,448 11,438 11564 12,558
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Pavable Accruals 600 31¢ E) e 385
Current Portios of Tenn Loazn - - - -
600 3lé 319 385
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
ANZ Bazk Loan - . - -
Deferred Tax Lishality 1,050 1,050 1,052 1,050
Employee Retiremant Gratusty - - - .
1,050 1,050 1,050 1,050
NET ASSETS 2,798 10072 10,585 11,123
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Rapresentad by:
Autbonised Capital
Ordinary Shares at §1 fully pasd TAIS TA35 7435 TAIS
Retaned Earnings 2363 163652 3,160 3,688
9.708 10,072 10,593 11,123
Notes sad Assumptions:

1 Bank balance has been taken 2 the balancing figure and includes azy short term daposits aod the Cable Car self invurance fund,

2 The 2017 balance sheet is the forecast position 23 2t the time of completing this Statemnent of Intent.

No diazribution to onners based on the Compazy sccumulating funds for further capital replacements required however will be assessad on an annual
Bauis.

“

41
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Wellington Cable Car Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended 30 June 2018, 2019 and 2020

Year Ended 30 June Year Ended 30 Year Ended 30  Year Ended 30

2017 - Forecast June 2018 June 2019 June 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash was received from:
Operating receipts 8,534 9.606 5,398 3,355
Interest received 66 66 66 86
Cash was dishursed to:
Payments to suppliers and emplovees {7.870) (8,191) (4,473) (2,406)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities 729 1,480 991 1,015
Cash flows from investing activites
Cash was received from:
Investments " . - -
Sale of Fixed Assets - - . .
Cash was applied to:
Purchase of fixed assets (1,254) (173 (167 (322)
Net cash nflow / (outflow) from investing activities {1,258) (173) (167) (322)
Cash flows from financing activites
Cash was received from:
Term Loan - B -
Cash svas applied to:
Payment of Dividend . . - .
Term Loan - . . .
Payment of Tax - . - .
Subvention Payment 173 (116) (149) {216)
Net cash inflow {cutflow) from financing activities 173 (116) (149) (216)
Net Increase/(decrease) in Cash held (352 1,192 878 476
Opening Cash Balance 2,100 1,748 2940 3,615
Closing Cash Balance 1,748 2,940 3,615 4,081

42
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INTRODUCTION

Wellington Museums Trust Incorperated, trading as Experience Wellington, is a Council Controfied Organisation and is
a registered charity. Using Wellington Gty Council (Council) owned facilities we bring arts, culture, science and
creative experiences to audiences directly contributing to Wellington's liveability and prosperity, We draw upon the
strengths, skills and experiences of our talented team to deliver our vision of providing excellent experiences that
Wellingtonians proudly share with the world. Central to this is our aim to be a high performing organisation that
encourages staff to strive for excellence and financial sustainability.

Experience Wellington Is responsible for Capital E, Space Place at Carter Observatary, City Gallery Wellington, Narn
Street Cottage, Cable Car Museum, Wellington Museum including the Pimmer’s Ark display in the Old Bank Arcade,
the recavered Plimmer’s Ark timbers in storage and Wellington city’s heritage collections in storage. We also operate
the Hannah Playhouse as part of the Cagital E operation on behalf of the Hannah Playhouse Trust {HPT) and Coundil,
and we have a management agreement with the New Zealand Cricket Museumn Trust 1o provide In-kind support
including financial management.

This Statement of Intent (SOI) reflects the relationship and interest that Coundl has in Experience Wellington and our
contribution to the Council’s vision for the future of Wellington. Specifically it outlines our intentions for the next
three years with detailed focus on the financial period to 30 June 2018,

Council contributes around 70% of the revenue we require to operate with the other 30% coming from fundraising,
contracts and trading revenues. We have a contract with Creative New Zealand {CNZ) that supports the delivery of the
Capital E Natlonal Theatre for Children and the biennial National Arts Festival for Children; the learning experiences we
offer are supported through Mimestry of Education (MOE] Learning Experiences Qutside the Classroom (LEOTC)
contracts and we regularly receive support from the City Gallery Wellington Foundation for Gity Gallery's programme.
The HPT supports the operation of the Hannah Playhouse and the Carter Observatory Trust supports our fundraising
activities for Space Place.

experience

Wellington

wellington museums trust

Te Whare Toi
Wellington Cable Car Nairn Street
Museum =~ Museum™. Cottage <

HANNAH

PLAYHOUSE
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OVERVIEW

OUR FOCUS IN 2017-18 is to continue to add to Wellington's vibrancy as a city that Wellingtonians are proud to call
home and share with the world by building on our strengths and, to make Wellington an even better place to live,
work and play. We will:

* Build on the success of the Cindy Sherman exhibition by developing a strategy with partners to bring more of the
world’s great contemporary art to Wellington at City Gallery.

=  With Council, complete the remodelling of City Gallery’s foyer and entrance to link it seamlessly with Civic
Square.

* Present our plans to complete the development of Wellington Museum which includes earthquake strengthening
and new visitor experiences,

* Scope the concept of a technology and science hub within the Cable Car Precinct as part of the review of the
Cable Car Museum and Space Place experiences.

* Refine plans for Capital E's future.
= Work with stakeholders on the dty’s plan for Wellington to be recognised as a child friendly city.

= Pursue more effectively our Treaty of Waitangl obligations at both governance and management level within our
organisation by ensuring that there is a Maori dimension in all plans and activities, and in what our visitors see,
feel and experience.

These strategic objectives reflect our desire to make a compelling contribution to Wellington’s future as a vibrant and
prosperous city.

We continue to work closely with the Council to ensure that our objectives align with its strategic direction for the city
and that we are adequately resourced. The alignment of these initiatives with Council's Long-Term Plan and vision is
covered in the section on COUNCIL'S EXPECTATIONS page 6.

Our performance, in the Key Result Indicators (KRI) of visitation and revenue generation, will continue to improve
during this planning period and in 2017-18 we expect to:

= Attract over 660,000 visitors to our experiences, one-third of which will be international towrists, In addition,
over 290,000 people will connect via our thriving online community; and

* Raise over $3 million towards our operating costs from commercial trading initiatives as well as fundraising. We
are projecting that we will fund at least 30% of our operating revenue this year and, subject to Council's support
with capital investment, leverage further funding to develop the city’s cultural assets.

We intend to continue our focus on ensuring that children and young people feel welcomed, included and important
throughout our visitor experiences and we expect to provide learning experiences to over 69,000 school students.
Again we will deliver over 400 visitor experiences, including exhibitions, public programmes and events in 2017-18,

As part of our objective to be a high performing organisation we intend to begin the roll-out of a planned IT
infrastructure upgrade; a long overdue project that will significantly improve productivity. We will continue our
programme of business systems improvement, having fully implermented a new Accounting Systermn we plan to update
our payroll and human resources information systems.

4 Experionce Wellington - Statemsent of latent 2017.18
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Council’s 2015-25 Long-Term Plan included an annual 2% increase in the base-line funding of Experience Wellington
and Space Place together with a $100,000 contribution to enable us to align with Council's Living Wage initiative, This
level of support has been forecast to continue over the planning period. The main assumptions for the planning period
are:

Experience Wellington excluding Space Place s forecasting a break-even budget for the three years to 30 June
2020. The financial forecasts are based on the assumption that we need to ensure our liquidity and maintain
sufficlent deposits to cover current obligations over adequately maintaining our asset base. Visitor experience
projects outside the scope of the current financial forecast will be subject to further stakeholder Investment and
fundraising.

Creating a sustainable financial model for Space Place remains a challenge. The new operating model has
increased visitor numbers in line with expectations; however, the yield per visitor has been less than anticipated
and this is reflected in admissions revenue, In line with our agreement with Council the effectiveness of the new
operating model will be fully assessed during the year In time for further discussions regarding the adequacy of the
baseline funding for Space Place. In the meantime we continue to rely on Council’s cash underwrite of the Space
Place operating budget.

Taking Into consideration our typical operating cyde which includes the biennlal Capital E Natlonal Arts Festival
which boosts revenue In the year in which it is held, trading Revenue in 2017-18 s forecast to increase by 10% over
the base achieved in 2015-16.

Sponsorships and donations is an area of focus for Experience Wellington and we are forecasting modest
sustainable growth during the planning period. However, it should be noted that grants and sporsorships are
essential for programme delivery and this revenue is generally not available to support fixed costs.

CNZ funds for distribution continue to be under pressure; however the full impact of this on the funding received
for creative performance outputs at Capital € is still being assessed. MOE contracts are secure but the funding
levels continue to be static and increases are not expected.

Over the forecast period it is expected that salaries will increase by 1% per annum and other costs by between 1-
2%.

Although the Cable Car Museum has seen increases in visitor numbers and retail sales, the building’s capacity is a
limiting factor to future growth, Visitation and trading revenue are yulnerable to outside factors such as cruise ship
cancelations or Cable Car stoppages.

We will continue to operate Hannah Playhouse on behalf of the HPT and the Council until 30 June 2019. The terms
and conditions of our agreement Includes the continuation of the existing lease with HPT with all covenants
continuing to apply except rent and the benefit of a $60,000 per annum Council underwrite of the operating
budget.

The Forecast Financial Statements are provided in Appendix 1. Accounting policies are provided in Appendix 2.
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COUNCIL’'S EXPECTATIONS

Allgnment with Council

Our year-round delivery of exhibitions, public programmers and events contribute to Wellington’s status as the
cultural capital of New Zealand and ensures that there is always an art, adtural, science or creative experience to
enjoy in Wellington on every day of the year,

Our 2017-18 strategic projects build on this success with each designed to add to the city’s value proposition as set
out in Wellington Towards 2040: Smart Capital which aims to grow and sustain the city as an inclusive place where
talent wants to live and to ensure Wellington has a prosperous future and a quality of life to match.,

To achieve the best results for Wellington we will continue to work with Coundil and others including the Wellington
Regional Economic Development Agency (WREDA), other visitor experiences including Te Papa, Wellington Zoo and
Zealandia, tertiary education partners and relevant national organisations including the Department of Conservation
and the Met Service.

The Cultural Heart of Wellington

We tell Wellington's stories through the city’s amazing cultural assets and through every exhibition, public event, or
children’s live or film production that we produce and present. Qur reach and professional standing within New
Zealand and overseas contributes to Wellington's reputation and enables us to access the best the world has to offer.

The investigation and development of a long-range intemational contemporary art exhibition programme at City
Gallery will evaluate benefits {reputation and economic) and costs of bringing the work of high profile contemporary
artists to the city potentially as Council’s flagship project for Wellington’s decade of culture.

The completion of the Wellington Museum development, already among the top 50 museums in the world, is a high
priority because it includes the completion of earthquake strengthening of one of Wellington’s heritage buildings and
its primary role of teller of Wellington's stories.

Children and Young People

We have made a significant commitment to realise our vision that children and young people feel welcomed, induded
and important at all of our visitor experiences and that through our leadership we continue to make Wellington a
home for confident, creative young citizens. In 2016-17 we appointed a Director Children and Young People who will
lead this work which includes the delivery of a strategy for the future shape of Wellington's dedicated provision for
children and young people at Capital E.

We are also committed to working with Council and other partners to help shape the city’s commitment to be a Child
Friendly City.

These initiatives are in addition to our on-going commitment to deliver education programmes which contribute to
Wellington being a top destination for school children. Cur focus on improving access to Wellington's attractions for
children from low decile schools will continue but it is dependent on successful fundraising to fund transport costs
which is the most significant barrier for these children,

Cable Car Precinct - Technoiogy and Science Nub

We will investigate the viability of establishing within the Cable Car precinct a technology and science hub as we
develop options for the upgrade and potential expansion of the Cable Car Museum and the continual updating of the
Space Place experience. We will start by reviewing how we can improve on this under-developed part of the
Wellington story.

The Cable Car Precinct includes Wellington’s earliest observatories, the story of time in New Zealand, the weather
instruments and transport technology as well as the Botanic Gardens and Zealandia; each extracrdinary city assets
which can contribute to this project.

We envisage the technology and science hub to be a partnership driven initiative to deepen the engagement with
visitors {local, national and international) that feads them to spend more time in the Precinct visiting all the available
experiences.

6 Sxperionce Wellington - Statement of Intent 201718
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Treaty of Waltangi

Our organisation Is committed to honouring the Treaty of Waitangi and we bave commenced a programme to more
effectively acknowledge and implement our Treaty obligations at both governance and management level. Part of this
will be to ensure that there is a Maori dimension in all plans and activities, and in what our wisitors see, feel and
experience.

Space Place

We have operated Space Place at Carter Observatory since Apell 2010 under a management agreement with Council
where Council retains ownership of all the assets including exhibitions and related equipment including the digital
planetarium. The original business model was based on the proposition that Space Place would generate sufficient
revenue to cover its operating costs Including depreciation with the ald of a modest contribution from Council.

It has never achieved a break-even budget and Experience Wellingten continues Lo rely on Courxil's cash underwrite
to ensure that its operation does not have a negative impact on the overall financial position.

As noted in the FINANCIAL OVERVIEW, the new cperating model introduced at Space Place on 1 July 2015 will be fully
evaluated during the year. The new business model was developed to increase access for Wellingtonians and to
encourage repeat visitation, and the main tactics were reduding the entry price and moving opening hours to
maximise telescope viewing times and use of the planetarium whilst keeping operating costs fow.

Visitation has Increased and revenue Is improving but has not supported a break-even budget. The review will provide
Council with an opportunity to assess its level of baseline funding and the capital investment in a staged renewal
programme, both of which were signalled in our 2015 Long-Term Plan submission.

Council Relationship Principles

Effective communication is the foundation of our working relationship with Coundl and we are committed to ensuring
that Councll is well informed about our plans and performance. We look forward to continuing to work cosely with
Council during the planning period to achieve the best visitor experience outcomes for Wellington. See also COUNCIL
RELATIONSHIP PRINCIPLES on page 16.

Leglslutive Compllance

Our legisiative complance schedule is reviewed annually by the Board and our compliance is closely monitored
through a rolling audit programme., Our health and safety goal is a zero harm culture and our Key Result Indicator is no
notifiable incidents, which we achieved in 2015-16.

Governance Performance

The Board aspires to be a leading governance group and s confident that it will comply with Council’s expectations.

Exporience Wellington - Statement of intont 201748 7
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT UPDATE

Counxil's 2015-25 Long-Term Plan confirmed an additional $100,000 to enable Experience Wellington to align with
Counxil’s Living Wage initiative and an annual 2% increase in our baseline funding. These adjustments are welcome.

Contributing to Wellington's vibrancy as a ity that Wellingtonians are proud to call home through world class
exhibitions and public programmes is an expensive business and our on-going challenge is to increase our revenue
from sources other than Council to ensure that visitor experiences meet, and ideally, exceed expectations. Our 2017-
18 revenue target of just over $3 million represents an increase of 10% over the base achieved in 2016. Our two
principal sources of revenue are trading revenues {admission, retail and venue hire) and fundralising (grants, personal
giving and sponsorship), both of which are vulnerable to changes in market conditions. For example the 14 November
2016 earthquake had an immediate and permanent impact on revenues with the cancellation of 102 school visits
{approximately $18,000 in lost revenue) to Capital E, City Gallery, Wellington Museum and Space Place; the non-
running of the Cable Car for several months in 2016 meant that both Cable Car Museum and Space Place revenues
declined during that period.

Wellington’s “free-entry” market for most cultural and art exhibitions ensure that Wellingtonians have exceptional
access. The flip side, however, is that introducing an entry charge, even temporarily for a special event such as Cindy
Sherman, is a significant marketing challenge and increases the financial risks for our organisation. At the same time
the reputational and economic value to Wellington of these events is such, that pursuing other similar exhibitions with
partners is a key strategy to support Council’s ambition for Wellington.

Projects such as the Film Museum and Te Papa’s new Learning Lab Hindtore, and planned new art gallery space are
exciting developments for the city, The earthquake strengthening of the Town Hall and the development of Gvic
Square as a cultural hub are projects we are particularly keen to be part of with City Gallery, and potentially Capital E,
sharing the space and contributing to its success,

The film and digital growth agenda for the city is providing opportunities for partnership. Working with industry and
regional development partners is opening up opportunities for Capital E. It has established itself as a channel for other
organisations to reach families and young audiences, and helps to inspire Wellington's young people to see the digital
creative and media sector as a viable career option — an area where the region expects to see substantial growth, but
where the number of emerging graduates does not fill industry need.

Experience Wellington’s visitor experiences are an important part of Wellington's tourism offering and we are looking
forward to the Lion’s Tour which we expect will make a significant contribution to our trading revenues,

OUR PURPOSE, VISION AND VALUES 1

Purpose: Our business opens the doors to remarkable experiences that set Wellington apart
Vision: Excellent experiences that Wellingtonians proudly share with the world

Values: We:

= Value our visitors; giving them excellent experiences that are safe, welcoming and accessible,

«  Prize our staff, supporters and extraordinary assets.

«  Lead in our fields: individually and as a coflective.

= Use the power of our diverse group of institutions to make a difference to Wellington.

*  Are agile. We respond to changes in our audience’s needs, stakeholder expectations and operating
environment.

= Don't stand still. We learn and improve together.

«  Strive to grow a robust, sustainable business.

1 Our Vision, Purpose and Value statements are under review as part of the development of our new Strategic Plan.
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NATURE AND SCOPE OF EXPERIENCE WELLINGTON'S ACTIVITIES

Capital E

Capital £ ignites and fuels the creative spark in children and young people. It nurtures confident, creative, capable
cltizens. Capital E engages audiences in the innovation and production of high quality, inspirational experiences in live
performance, digital technology and applied creativity. It provides enwironments where creative encounters can take
place for, with, by and between children. It Is New Zealand’s leading centre for creativity for young people, and has a
leadership role for Experience Wellington and beyond — leading In and advocating for — high quality provision of
creative experiences relevant to children and young people.

City Gallery Wellington Te Whare Tol

From the heart of Wellington in Givic Square, City Gallery provides locals and visitors with a meaningful and accessibie
experience of art. It presents a dynamic programme of changing exhibitions dedicated to the most current thinking,
creativity and innovation in contemporary visual art practice in the broadest sense. It is a hub for artistic and cultural
activity in Wellington that reinforces the city’s commitment to art and creativity,

City Gallery works collaboratively with artists, galleries, collectors and educators to realise programmes of activity that
are relevant, push and test art’s boundaries and both transform and provide insight into our understandeng of our
world,

Museums Wellington Te Waka Hula O Nga Taonga Tuhku Ihe

Museums Wellington experiences showcase Te Upoko o te |ka @ Maui (the Head of Maui's Fish), the greater
Wellington Region ~ Wellington, Porirua and the Kapiti Coast, the Hutt Valley and the Wairarapa.

We reflect on Te Upoko o te Ika's natural and social history emphasising a post-colonial perspective through sharing
stories and objects of Importance to Tangata Whenua, Mana Whenua and Tangata Tiriti from time past, present and
into the future,

As the guardian of the Trust's collections, Museums Wellington develops them so that visitors experience and
appreciate the Wellington region's unique identity, its history, art and creativity.

Wellington Museum

Wellington Museum shares the stories and objects of Wellington.

Space Place At Carter Observatory Te Ara A Whanu! Ki Te Rangi

Space Place transports visitors from Wellington 1o outer space.

Cable Car Museum

The Cable Car Museum explores how technology and commerce shaped the aty.

Nairn Street Cottage

Nairn Street Cottage fllustrates the story of Wellington through the Wallis family,

Exporience Wellington - Statement of intont 201748 9
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PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT
We have or are in the process of making changes to what and how we record and report performance. The changes

are:

We refer to resuits as Key Result Indicators (KRi) rather than Key Performance Indicators (KPI). The targets set
in the Statement of Intent and reported in the Statement of Service Performance (SSP) are results focused
rather than performance driven. KPI is 2 management tool which is applied through business plans and
performance agreements to shape behaviours required to achieve results.

Performance is presented by institution. Previously all results were aggregated including those recorded as
percentages. In 2017-18 aggregated results will only be shown where individual results can be added such as
for visitation.

We have introduced a new KR to record Learning Experience Visits which are mainly students attending in
school groups. We would like to be in a position to report the number of children and young people visiting in
the future, however, this will depend on our ability to accurately record this information.

We propose to introduce a new KRI in 2018-19 reporting the number of first time visitors to our Institutions
by Wellington dity residents and to phase cut the repeat visitation KRI. Recording first-time visitors will help
us measure our performance in attracting new audiences; repeat visitation is important in terms of building
loyalty but it is difficult to measure accurately and results can therefore be misleading. We will continue to
use it as a management tool.

We have also revamped the KR relating to the development of Heritage Collections. The new KRI will report
the number of new items added to the Collections; the number of items that are assessed against our
Collections policy during the year and either retained or disposed of; and the percentage of the Collections
accessible to the public whether on display or available online,

Our City

Key Result Indicators

City Residents’ Awareness: The number of Wellingtonians who know about our institutions as assessed through the
Annual Residents’ Survey conducted by Council,

City Gallery Wellington 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%
Wellington Museum 9% 95% 7% 97% 9%
Capital £ 0% 90% 0% 90% °0%
Cable Car Museum 9T 95% 9% 97% 97%
Space Place 9T 95% 7% 97% 97%
Nasirn Street Cottage sen 60% §0% 60% 60%

10 Experience Wellingtoa — Statement of intent 2031718
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Qur Visitors

Key Result Indicators

Physical Visitation: The total number of wsits to institutions including general public, education and function
attendees. The annual target is reviewed each year and benchmarked against the average visitation for the institution
during the previous three years,

City Gallery Wellington 178,228 | 150,000 | 143000 | 45000 | 20000 | 35000| 43,000 | 170,000 | 175,000
Wellington Museum 133,470 | 134000 | 137,000 | 30000 40,000 two 25000 | 140,000 | 143,000
Capital E 79120 | 105000 | 90000 | 27500 | 2s500| @000 | 26000 | 110000 | 95000
Cable Car Museum 241,638 | 220000 | 237,000 | 55,200 | 59800 | 79000 | 43,000 | 237,000 | 237,000
Space Place 52,838 | 46800 | 52,000 | 11,500 | 13500 | 13500 | 13500 54,000
Experience Wallington Total | 688,169 | 659,000 | 661,500 | 169,600 | 162,100 | 175,000 706,700

mywuwmmtmmazmasoymiu s that the E fFoyet devei will gy

may bw affectad from mrmwmoummm

CMIIIC‘! Notional Arty Festival for Children boosts winitation in J027 and 2019

Copitay £°5 Physical Wsitotion figures include the Maonah Plaphouse.

Virtual Visitation: The total number of unique user visits to institutional web/mobile sites.

City Gallery Wellington | 126,804 | 110,000 | 112,000 | 120,000 | 125,000

Museums Wellington ‘ 88,000 | 96,000

Capital E ; 66,000 | 67,500

Experience Wellington Total | 293,810 274,000 | 288,500

Social Media Profile: A snapshot of Facebook friends and Twitter followers.

City Gatlery Wellington 24266 | 22000 | 23000 | 26000 | 27,000

Museums Wellington . 5887 | 655 | 14500 | 17,000 | 15,500

Capital E ¢os9 | 4500| s5000| 5500 5750

Space Place 7359 | 8800 | 165000 | 18500 | 21000

Experience Wellington Total | 41,601 | 41,890 | 58,500 | 67,000 | 73,250

Experience Wellington — Statement of intent 201718 11
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First Time Wellington City Visitors: the number of visiters who are residents of Wellington visiting the institution for
the first time. Data will be collected during 2017-18 to provide a benchmark for KRI in 2018-19 and 2019-20.

Repeat Visitation: the number of visitors who have visited the institution at least once in the previous twelve months,
This KRI will not be included in the 2018-19 SOI but we will continue to monitor repeat visitation as 3 management
tool.

City Gallery Wellington  a% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Wellington Museum 8% | 2% 25% 25% 27.5%
Capital € SaN | a0 50% 50% S0%
Cable Car Museum | % 25% 25% 25%
Space Place 15% 22% 2% 25% 25%

Copital £'s Repeat Visitation figures include the Hoanoh Playhouse.

Quality of Visit: Visitor feedback based on comfort, access, experience, knowledge gained, the friendliness of staff,
the length of visit and overall enjoyment.

City Gallery Weliington I 90% %0% 90% 0%
Museum of Wellington 0% 90% 9% 90%
Capital E 90% 0% %0% 90%
Cable Car Museum 90% 9% 0% 90%
space Place 90% %0% %0% 90%
Nairn Street Cottage o 9% 90% 90% 90%

Copital E's Quatity of Visit figures inciudes the Hannah Piay

Children & Young People Visiting for a Learming Experience: The number of students as part of 3 booked group
visiting institutions for learning experiences. The defivery of LEOTC is part-funded by the MOE.

City Gallery Wellington 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500
Museum Welington 7.000 7,000 7,000 7,000
Cagital E 49,348 20,500 50,000 20,500
Space Place 8,250 8,250 8,250 8,250
Experience Wellington Total 69,098 40,250 69,750 40,250

City Gallery’s forecast tavget for 2056- 17matlmnm¢m15 16 year in line with the MOE contract.
Museurs WeMngton inchades the Welling ton Mt Cable Cor and Nairn Street Cottage.

Copitai £ halds the Natlonol Arts Festhval for Chidven in 2017 and 2019.
Copital € Learning Experience figures inciude Honnah Playhouse,

12 Experience Wellingroa - Statement of intent X0317-18
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Qur Sustainablility

Key Result Indicators

Financial Performance: A break-even budget and fully-funded depreciation.

Non-Council Revenue: The total amount of revenue generated from non-Council sources.

City Gadlery Wellington 610 1284 545 650
Musaums Wellington 672 573 656 580 630
Capital E m 1534 1279 1,658 1,285
Space Place 540 588 600 620 637
Experience Wollington Total 3088 a8 3152 | 3603 | 3262

City Gallery's revenue i 2016-17 increased due 1o the Cindy Sharman exhibition and the reduced tavget in 2017-18 anticipates that the

Entrance/Foyer development will progeed.

Musewnes Walingeon inchudes the Wellingron Musewm, Cable Car AMfuseam and Noirn Street Cottoge.
Copitor E holas the National Arts Festhvod for Childven in 2017 and 2019,

Coptal E Non-Councl Revenue figures jaclude Hannah Ployfrowse,

Spend per Visitor: Visitor related revenue (admissions and sales).

_w
197

Clty Gallery Wellington a67 157 153 1.53

Museums Wellington 130 141 136 142

Capital £ 320 5.48 384 514 3.90

Space Place 839 1038 10.12 10.10 10.14

City Gollery's increased spend in 2016-17 relotes to the inclusion of an admission charge for the Ondy Sherman exhibition. Oty Gollery's Spend per
Vigiter in 2017-18 that the [Fayer dewwiopment will pi

M Wl mchades Weflingean s , Coble Car M and Naun Street Cottoge.

mwwmmm Notionol Avts Festival for Chifdren in 2016-17 ond 2018-19.
Copvtal £ Spevd per Vil figaves includdes Hannah Playhouse,

Subsidy per Visit: The Council subsidy per (physical) visitor is calculated by dividing the number of visits into the

Council operating grant.

12.87

City Gaflery Welllngton 15 1250 1265 12.80

Museums Wellington 429 534 518 5.00 495

Cagital € 1602 | 1436 | 145 | 1491 | 1461

Space Place 889 | 1059 9,89 9,69 9.60

Mmmuammnm«wwumqmﬂmmmmw

M chickes Wetlingtan Museum, Coble Cor Musenm and Nairn Street Cottoge

Copital £ is hosting the Notional Arty Festival for Chiidren in 2016-17 and 2018-19

Copital t Subsidy per Wit figures includes Monroh Playhouse.

Experience Wellington — Statement of Intent 204718 13
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Our People

Key Result Indicators

= Health and Safety: No notifiable incidents involving workers or visitors as defined by the Health and Safety at
Work Act 2015,

= Staff Satisfaction: At least 75% of staff are engaged with the organisation as Indicated through the annual Staff
Engagement Survey.,

Our Heritage

Key Result Indicators

Collection Development: Our Heritage Collections contribute to our understanding of Wellington's Identity; its
history, art and creativity which include visitors to some of Wellington's most important heritage sites (see visitor

number KRI).
LI N eSO L 1A =0 e
New to the Colaction 30 45 60

Callection Assessmant 1,250 1,875 3,650

Collection Accassiilty 5% 10% 20%
New to the Colfection: C Q! or donations of on item or @ collection of items (e.g. Kirkcaldie & Stains Cofiection) that hove been
cocessioned into the colfection.
Collechion A The ber of items (indiidua! or type €.g. Jifeb ) that are for or
Collection Accessibality: The % aof the Callection that /s on display, an loan, used for research purpases or occessed through other mediums such os
onfine,

Council’s Ownership Interest

At Council’s request we will include Council’s direct ownership costs which relate to the assets we manage on its
behalf in monitoring reports to Coundl. These are costs incurred by Council over which Experience Wellington has no
control and the information will be supplied by Coundl in a form that meets Experience Wellington's audit
requirements,
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BOARD'S APPROACH TO GOVERNANCE

Governance

Trustees are appointed by Coundl and are standard-bearers for our vision. They are responsible for setting the
strategic direction and approving the Statement of Intent and the Strategic Plan. The Board monitors organisational
performance, the crganisation’s on-godng viability and the maintenance of its competitiveness. It delegates the day-
to-day operation to the Chief Executive, who reports to the Board.

The Board meets no fewer than nine times per year and operates three committees which review relevant matters
prior to consideration by the full Board. These are the Audit and Risk [AZR) Committee, the Chief Executive
Performance and Remuneration {CEP&R) Committee, and the People Performance and Safety (PPS) Committee. In
addition, the Board will convene od hoc working groups to consider specific issues. Guidance in specialist areas is also
provided as appropriate,

Board Caommitiees
Audit and Risk (A&R) Committee assists the Board in carrying out its duties In regard to financial reporting, risk
management and legislative compliance.

Chief Executive Performance and Remuneration (CEP&R) Committee 10 advise the Chair In connection with the
performance and remuneration of Experience Wellington's Chief Executive,

People, Performance and Safety (PPS) Committee provides guidance and support to the Chief Executive in a Human
Resources context and assists the Board to meet Its due diligence responsibilities regarding Experience Wellington's
compliance with Health and Safety legislation.

Board Membership

Jackie Lioyd, Chair | 30 June 2017 Chair CEP&R and ex officio of PPS and A&R
Diane Calvert 31 October 2019 A&R

Rachel Farrant 30 June 2019 Chair A&R and member of CEP&R

)il wilson 30 June 2018 PPS

Jane Wrightson 31 December 2018 Chair PPS and member of CEP&R

Board Performance

The Board strives to meet best practice governance standards and will undertake an annual review of the overall
Board, individua! Trustees and the Chair’s performance and report to the Chief Executive of Coundl by 30 September
2017,
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COUNCIL RELATIONSHIP PRINCIPLES

The principles governing the relationship with Coundl as our primary stakeholder include:

16 Expevience Wellingtoa - Statement of intent 2017-18

Operating on a “no surprises” basis so that any significant event that may impact on either party is brought to their
attention as scon as it can be reasonably done.

Open and frank communication will occur between Experience Wellington and Council.

Full disclosure of information will be provided to Council from Experience Wellington as deemed necessary by
Council to ensure its interests are upheld.

Early advice to Council in the event of any situation that may be potentially contentious in nature,
Disclosing within the Experience Wellington's Strategic Plan any significant transactions that are planned.
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ORGANISATIONAL HEALTH, CAPABILITY, STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND RISK ASSESSMENT

Introduction

Experience Wellington provides centralised management and accountability for visitor experiences provided through
institutions. Reparting to the Chief Executive are three Directors who have responsibility for our visitor experience
outputs, the Finance Manager with responsibility for our financial management, the Executive Services Manager who
covers most corporate services and our Bullding Manager/Health and Safety Cooedinator, The crganisation chart
follows:

PatStwart

Director City Gallery Wellington
Bﬁfmm

_ Director Children & Young People
Dr Sarah Rusholme

= Finance Manager
James Unwin

Executive Services Manager
Zofia Miliszewska

Organisational Health and Wellbeing

Critical to achieving our vision and supporting Council’s vision is the talent and experience of our staff,

Staff induction, training, regular communication and celebrations of success reinforce our team spirit. We seek
feedback annually on key factors relating to organisation performance including vision and values, sense of
community, leadership, communication, learning and development, performance and rewards, working relationships
and health and safety,

Capability

Our staff bring leadership; knowtedge of audiences; networks and contacts; professional standards of presentation;
access to our portfolio of facilities and collections and our commitment to presenting thought -pravoking and
entertaining visitor experiences to our work.

We are a highly motivated organisation and rely on our workforce to be flexible and to go the extra mile. Qur
Executive Team Is highly experienced in their respective fields.

Training and professional development is a priority and a small annual resource is set aside for this purpose,

We are committed to the principle of collaboration and shared services and will explore all reasonable opportunities
to work with sector partners and with Council and its assodiated organisations for Wellington and Wellingtonians,
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Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder management continues to be a focus. As we improve the coordination of fundraising efforts we are in the
process of developing a stakeholder engagement plan for key individuals and groups. We will set communication
objectives based on our strategic objectives, and prioritise stakeholders according to impact and influence.

Risk Management and Business Continuity

Our Risk Profile is reviewed regularty and identifies events and or circumstances and the impact that these have on
our operation using a system that ranks the probability and level of impact of the event. It includes risk management
strategies such as recovery plans for specific events which carry high risk values,

Qur ability to continue to operate following a major event will depend on factors outside of our control such as the
extent of material damage to buildings and the continuation of Coundil funding.

We acknowiedge that under the Health and Safety at Work Act 2015 we share Person Conducting a Business or
Undertaking (PCBU) responsibilities with Council with regard to Council buildings we manage and occupy.

Assessed risks which carry a lower risk value tend to be within our operational purview with the exception of risks
associated with buildings maintenance and plant performance Issues which are Council’s responsibility. Building and
plant issues that are likely to impact on business continuity or present a risk to health and safety of workers and
visitors are immediately brought to Coundl’s attention,

A business continuity plan is in development.

Insurance

We have adequate insurance cover to meet specific business needs and deductibles are in line with generally
accepted risk management principles and affordability.

Attachment 4 Wellington Museums Trust draft SOI 2017/18 Page 138



COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS e A e A
12 APRIL 2017 Me Heke Ki Paneke

APPENDIX 1: FORECAST FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCY
Forecast i ORMANCE Budget Budget Budget Total YE Total YE Total YE
30-Jun-17 (5°000) Space Place 31-Dec-17 | 31-Mar-18 | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-19 | 30-Jun-20
Revenue
417 Trading Income 125 124 124 124 497 509 520
347  Council Operating Grant 89 89 89 89 356 366 376
0 Councll Rental Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
82 Other Gramts 25 26 25 26 102 110 115
20 Sponsorships and Donatlors 0 1 0 ¥ 1 2
0 Investment Income 0 Q
€9 Otherincome 0 0
934  Total Revenue 239 240 238 239 956 985 1,013
Expenditure
683 Employee Costs 175 175 175 176 701 715 727
0 Council Rent 0 o 0 0 0 0 0
47  Exhibitions & Programmes 24 24 24 24 56 98 100
100 Marketing & Promotions 23 23 23 24 23 95 97
95 Occupancy Costs (excluding Council Rent) 18 18 13 19 73 74 76
11 Communication Costs 3 3 2 10 10 10
0 Trustee Fees & Expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 a
0 Technology Costs 1 1 1 5 5 5
0 Professional Fees 19 19 19 18 75 83 87
127  Administration Expenses 5 6 6 S 2 19 20
11  Depreciation 2 1n 1n 1
0  Interest 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1,083 Total Expenditure 27 272 n 271 1086 1111 1,133
-149  Net Surplus/{Deficit) before Taxation -32 -32 -34 -2 -130 -125 -120
Taxation Expense
143 Net Surplus/(Deficit) 32 32 -34 32 130 125 120
15.90%  Operating Margin 13.39% 13.33% -14.29% 1339% -13.60% 12.63% -11.86%
[ K 1 19
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
Forecast [[VURRINRABORRRIIINN  ©.:cc. | Budget | Budget | Budget | TotalYE | TowalYE | TotalYE
30-Jun-17 Space Place 30-Sep-17 | 31-Dec-17 | 31-Mar-18 | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-19 | 30-Jun-20
Revenue
1,620 Trading Income 285 212 184 220 201 1,224 g6
6,471 Council Operating Grant 1,658 1,658 1,658 1,658 6,632 §,777 §,932
1,769 Council Rental Grant 443 443 442 443 1,771 1,806 1,843
762 Other Grants 282 237 208 219 943 962 800
896 Sponsorships and Donations 44 85 43 172 344 588 370
50 Investment Income 21 12 21 11 65 66 80
188 Other income 139 41 41 78 299 305 325
11,756 Total Revenuve 2,872 2,688 2594 2,801 10,955 11,729 11,336
Expenditure
4849 Employee Costs 1260 1,258 1,245 1279 5,043 5144 5,247
1,433 Council Rent 338 334 335 335 1339 1,366 1393
2488 Exhibitions & Programmes 813 337 325 3% 1,865 2,395 1,880
740 Marketing & Promations 156 108 104 162 530 598 540
1,012  Occupancy Costs [excluding Council Rent) 274 252 251 281 1,058 1,079 1,101
108 Communication Costs 28 27 28 27 110 112 114
84 Trustee Fees & Expenses 21 21 21 21 84 86 90
154 Technology Costs 438 49 50 51 198 202 206
41 Professional Fees 56 28 27 28 139 148 144
461 Administration Expenses 43 51 a3 43 1%0 200 205
425 Deprecation 100 100 100 99 399 399 415
0 Interest 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11,795  Total Expenditure 3,134 2,565 2,535 2,721 10,955 11,729 11,335
1 Net Surplus/{Deficit) before Taxation -262 123 59 80 0 0 0
Taxation Expense
1 Net Surplus/{Deficit) -262 123 59 80 0 0 0
0.01% Operating Margin Q12% 4.58% 2.27% 2.86% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

20 Experience Wel
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

Forecast PERFORMANCE Budget Budget Budget Budget Total YE Total YE Total YE
30-Jun-17 ' 30-Sep-17 | 31-Dec-17 | 31-Mar-18 | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-19 | 30-Jun-20

Revenue
2,037 Trading Income 410 335 308 344 1,398 1,733 1506
6,817 Council Operating Grant 1,747 1,747 1,747 1,747 6,988 7143 7,308
1,763 Council Rental Grant 443 443 232 443 1,771 1,806 1,843
B44  Other Grants 307 263 230 245 1,045 1,072 915
916  Sponsorshigs and Danations 44 85 43 172 345 589 mn
90 Investmant Income 21 12 21 n 65 66 80
257 Other Income 139 41 a1 78 299 305 325
12,730 Total Revenue 311 2,928 28312 3,040 1,911 12,715 12,349
Expenditure
5531 Employee Costs 1,435 1,433 1,421 1,455 5,744 5,859 5974
1,433 Council Rent 3315 3 335 335 1,339 1,366 1393
2,534 Exhibitions & Programmes 837 361 349 414 1,961 2493 1,980
840  Marketing & Promotions 179 131 127 186 623 693 837
1,107 Occupancy Costs {excluding Council Rent) 292 270 269 300 1,131 1,154 1177
119 Communication Costs 31 30 30 29 120 122 125
84  Trustee Fees & Expenses 21 21 21 21 &4 85 50
154 Technology Costs L] 50 52 52 203 207 211
41  Professional Fees 75 a7 a6 a6 214 231 231
477 Administration Expenses a8 57 54 S3 212 219 225
436 Deprecation 103 103 103 101 410 410 427
0 Interest 0 o o 0 0 0 o
12879 Total Expenditure 3,405 2,837 2,807 2,992 12,041 12,340 12,469
-142  Net Surplus/{Deficit) before Taxation -294 9 25 a8 130 125 -120
Taxation Expense
-143  Net Surplus/{Deficit) -294 91 5 a8 -130 -125 -120
-1.17% Operating Margin 9.45% 311% 0.88% 1.58% 1.09% 0.98% D97M%

Attachment 4 Wellington Museums Trust draft SOl 2017/18 Page 141

ltem 2.1 AHachment 4



COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS e R e A
12 APRIL 2017 Me Heke Ki Paneke

ltem 2.1 AHachment 4

Forecast STATEMENT OF ‘ NANCIAL POSITION w W w w Total YE Total YE Total YE
30-Jun-17 30-Sep-17 | 31-Dec-17 | 31-Mar-18 | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-19 | 30-Jun-20
Shareholder/Trust Funds
2,298 Share Capital/Settled Funds 2,298 2,298 2,298 2,298 2,298 2,298 2,298
0 Revaluation Reserves 0 o 0 0 0 0 0
425 Restricted Funds 425 425 43 425 425 425 a5
2,014 Retained Earnings 1,720 1811 1,836 1,884 1,884 1,759 1,639
4,737 Total Shareholder/Trust Funds 4,443 4,534 4,559 4,607 4,607 4,482 4,362
Current Assats
40 Cash and Bank A a0 a0 40 a0 40 4
270 Accounts Receivable 250 250 250 250 250 260 270
138 Other Current Assets 150 150 150 150 150 160 170
448 Total Current Assets 440 440 440 440 440 460 480
Investments
1025 Deposits on Call 600 800 600 840 840 790 700
0 Other investments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1025 Total investments o600 800 600 840 840 790 700
Non-Current Assets
4,476  Fixed Assets 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,400 4,400 4,220 4,150
8 Other Non-current Assets 7 4 2 0 0 0 0
4,484  Total Non-current Assats 4,507 4,504 4,502 4,400 4,400 4,220 4,150
5957 Total Assets 5,547 5,744 5,542 5,680 5,680 5470 5,330
Current Liabilities
441 Accounts Payable and Accruals 324 430 433 523 523 438 418
730  Other Current Liabilities 730 730 500 500 500 500 500
1,171 Total Current Liabilities 1,054 1,160 933 1,023 1,023 938 918
Non-Current Uabllities
Loans - WCC 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Loans - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
49 Other Non-Current Liabilities S0 50 S0 S0 S0 S0 50
49 Total Non-Current Liabilities S0 50 50 50 S0 50 50
4,737  Net Assets 4,443 4534 4,559 4,607 4,607 4,482 4,362
1.26  Current Ratio 0.99 107 111 1.25 1.25 133 1.2%
0.80 Equity Ratio 0.80 0.7% 0.82 0.81 0.81 0.82 0.82
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Forecast STATEMENT OF:{ Budg Budg Budg Total YE | TotalYE | Total YE
30-Jun-17 Vo OOV 31-Dec-17 | 31-Mar-18 | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-19 | 30-Jun-20
Cosh provided from:
2,457 Trading Receipts 430 263 230 245 1,168 1,723 1,49
8586 WCCGrants 2,150 2,150 2,189 2,150 8,759 8949 9,151
Ba4  Other Gramts 307 263 230 245 1,045 1072 a15
916 Spomsorships and Donations 44 86 43 172 345 589 372
50  Investment Income 21 12 21 11 65 66 80
257 Other Income 139 a1 a1 78 299 305 325
13,150 3,131 2855 2,754 2,941 11,681 12,205 12,339
Cash applied to;
5531 Payments to Employees 1,435 1,413 1,421 1,455 5,744 5,859 5974
7,234  Paymants to Suppiers 1,837 893 1,259 1,005 4,954 5831 5218
748 Net GST Cashflow 159 29 173 242 803 8235 880
0 Interest Paid 0 0 0 4] 0 4] Q
13513 3,431 2,555 2,853 2,702 11541 12,525 12072
-323  Total Operating Cash Flow -300 300 -99 239 140 180 267
Investing Cash Flow
Cosh provided from:
0  Sale of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 [ 0 0 0
0 Other 0 0 o 4] ¢ 0 o
Cash opplied to:
334 Purchase of Fixed Assets 127 103 103 1 334 230 357
0 Other 1 3 2 2 8 0 0
334 126 100 101 4 326 230 ELY
-334  Total Investing Cash Flow -126 100 -101 1 326 230 -357
Financing Cash Flow
Caosh provided from:
0 Drawdown of Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 Other 1 0 o 0 1 0 o
Cash opplled to:
0 Repayment of Loans 0 0 0 0 o 0 0
0 Dther 0 0
a 1 0 0 0 1 0
0 Total Financing Cash Flow 1 0 o 0 1 o )
657 Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash Held 425 200 -200 240 185 S0 90
1,722 Opening Cash Equivalents 1,065 640 840 640 1,065 380 330
1,065 Closing Cash Equivalents 640 840 640 880 880 830 740
I ¥ 1 23
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Forecast FLOW RECONCILIATION Budget Budget Budget Budgaet Total YE Total YE Total YE
|_30-Jun-17 30-Sep-17 | 31-Dec-17 | 31-Mar-18 | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-19 | 30-Jun-20
-149  Operating Surplus/{Deficit) for the Year -294 91 25 438 -130 -128 -120
Add Non Cash Items
436 Deprectation 103 103 103 101 410 410 a7
0 Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
287 -191 194 128 149 280 285 307
Movements in Working Capital
609 ([Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 20 0 0 0 20 -10 -10
3 {Increase)/Decrease in Other Current 12 0 0 0 12 10 10
Assets
-1,651  Increase/{Decrease) in Accounts Payable -117 106 3 °0 82 -85 -20
435 Ir?crf-?fefioecrcnw) in Other Current 0 0 230 0 230 o 0
Liabilities
-610 -109 106 -227 S0 -140 -105 -40
Net Gain/{Loss) on Sale:
0 Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 o 0 0
0  Investments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
-323  Net Cash Flow from Operations -300 300 -99 239 140 180 267
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APPENDIX 2: ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Significant Accounting Policies

The following accounting policies which have a material effect on the measurement of results have been adopted by
the Trust.

1 Reporting entity

The Wellington Museums Trust Incorporated, trading as Experience Wellington, Is registered as a charitable entity
under the Charities Act 2005. It s 2 Council Controfied Organisation (CCO) in terms of the Local Government Act 2002,

The financial statements of Experience Wellington includes the activities of the following business units - the
Wellington Museums Trust Incorporated, Wellington Museum, Gty Gallery Wellington, Capital € including Hannah
Playhouse, Nairn Street Cottage, the Wellington Cable Car Museum, and Space Place at Carter Observatory as from 1
June 2010,

The principal activity of Experience Wellington is to develop and manage Institutions and to operate them for the
benefit of the residents of Wellington and the public generally. For the purposes of financial reporting, the Trust is a
public benefit entity (public sector).

Experience Wellington has no Intention of subscribing for, purchasing or otherwise acquiring shares in any other
comparny or other organisation.

2. Basis of preparation
a) Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (N2ZGAAP). They comply with Tier 2 PBE Accounting Standards (Public Sector} and disclosure concessions have
been applied.

Experience Wellington has elected to report in accordance with Tier 2 PBE Accounting Standards (Public Sector) on the
basis that it does not have public accountabllity and has total annual expenses of equal to or less than $30 million.

b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis,

<) Presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars {5).

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policles set out below will be applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements,
a)  Property, plant and equipment

items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and Impairment losses,

{i) Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are added to the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment when that cost is
incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the Trust and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs are recognised in surplus/ (deficit) as an expense as incurred.
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(il Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to surplus/ (deficit) using the straight line method. Deprediation is set at rates that will write
off the cost or fair value of the assets, less their estimated residual values, over their useful lives, The estimated useful
lives of major classes of assets and resulting rates are as follows:

. Computer equipment 33% SL

. Office and equipment 25% SL

. Motar vehicles 20% SL

. Building Fittings 5%-25% SL

. Collections & artefacts Not depreciated

The residual value of assets is reassessed annually.
b) Collections and artefacts

Collections are artefacts that are of cultural or historical importance. A substantial amount of the Experience
Wellington’s Collections were acquired on 29 February 1996 from the Wellington Maritime Museum Trust {WMMT)
with others added either as gifts or purchases since 1996, Collections are carried at historic cost as assessed at the
time of transfer from the WMMT. All subsequent acquisitions to the collections are recorded at cost if purchased.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost Is measured at its fair value as at the date of
acquisition, Where the fair value of the assets is not able to be reliably measured, they are recorded at nil. Because
the useful life of the collections is indeterminate they are not depreciated.

An external valuation of the Collections from an independent valuer is obtained on a periodic basis to ensure that the
carrying value of the Collections that are held at cost does not exceed their fair value.

The Trustees obtained a valuation at 30 June 2014 and have confirmed that the carrying value at 30 June 2016 is
appropriate and that no impairment has occurred.

c) Intangible assets
Computer software

Software applications that are acquired by Experience Wellington are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses.

Amortisation is recognised in surplus/ (deficit) on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

. Computer software 33%SL

d) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are measured at their cost less impairment losses,
e} Inventories

Inventories (merchandise) are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Cost is based on the first-in first-out principle and indudes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and
bringing them to their existing location and condition.

f) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits,

26 Expevience Wellingron - Statement of intent 2017-18
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g) Impairment

The carrying amounts of Experience Wellington’s assets other than inventories are reviewed at each balance date to
determine whether there is any indication of impalrment. If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable amount
is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service
amount. The recoverable service amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use,

Value in use is determined using an approach based on either a depredated replacement cost approach, restoration
cost approach, or a service units approach. The most appropriate approach used to measure value in use depends on
the nature of the impairment and availability of information,

If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service amount, the asset Is regarded as impaired and the
carrying amount is written-down to the recoverable amount, The total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or
defiat. The reversal of an impairment loss is also recognised in the surplus or deficit.

h) Employee benefits

Long service leave: Experience Wellington’s net obligation in respect of long service leave s the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for thelr service in the cwrrent and prior periods, The cbligation is
calcudated using the projected unit credit method and is discounted to its present value, The discount rate is the
market yleld on relevant New Zealand government bonds at the Balance Sheet date,

] Provisions

A provision is recognised when Experience Wellington has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 3
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, If the
effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market rates and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

)] Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at cost,
k) Revenue

(i) Funding

Experience Wellington's activities are supported by grants, sponsorship, admissions and other trading
activities. Grants received that have an abligation in substance to return the funds if conditions of the grant
are not met are initially recognised as a labiity and revenue I5 recognised only when the services are
performed or conditions are fulfilled.

Funds received that have no such cbligation attached and merely a restriction iImposed on the use of funds,
are recognised as revenue when they become avallable.
(i} Services provided

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting date. Incame is recognized as the service is provided (e.g. exhibition run), Where
exhibitions are not scheduled to run until the following fiscal year, revenue is deferred and amortized to
income throughout the period of the exhibition.

(1) Donations

Cash donations from the community are recognized In the Income Statement at the point at which they are
receipted into Experience Wellington's bank account.
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{iv) Sale of merchandise

Revenue from the sale of merchandise is recognised in surplus/ (deficit) when the significant risks and
rewards of awnership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if there are significant
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of the
merchandise, or where there is continuing management involvement with the merchandise.

] Expenses
0] Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in surplus/ (deficit) on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in surplus/ (deficit) over the lease term as an
integral part of the total lease expense,

(ii) Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income. Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective
interest method.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings. All borrowing costs are recognised In surplus/
{deficit) using the effective interest method.

m) Availability of future funding

Experience Wellington is refiant on the Wellington City Council for a large part of its income and operates under a
Funding Deed with the Council. The Funding Deed is for a period of three years and is extended annually for a further
year subsequent to the initial 3 year term.

If Experience Wellington was unable to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, adjustments may
have to be made to reflect the fact that assets may need to be realized other than at the amounts stated in the
balance sheet. In addition, Experience Wellington may have to provide for further liabilities that might arise, and to
reclassify property, plant and equipment as current assets.

n) Income tax

Experience Wellington is registered as a Charitable Trust and is exempt from income tax, Experience Wellington is not
exempt from indirect tax legislation such as Goods and Services Tax, Fringe Benefit Tax, PAYE or ACC and accordingly it
is required to comply with these regulations.

o) Goods and services tax

All amounts are shown exclusive of Goods and Services Tax (GST), except for receivables and payables that are stated
inclusive of GST.

4. Ratio of Total Assets: Liabilities

«  Experience Wellington prefers to remain debt-free,

«  Debt may not be raised to finance operating expenses.

«  Experience Wellington has a policy ratio of total assets to total liabilities of 3:1.
5. Activities for which compensation from Council is sought

Experience Wellington seeks funding of $6.987 million for the core operation including Space Place at Carter
Observatory and an accommodation rental subsidy of $1.769 million for the 2017-18 finandial year and an extension
of the Wellington Museums Trust Funding Deed executed on 28 October 1999 in accordance with clause 5.2 of the
Deed.

28 Eupevience Wellingron - Statement of intent 2017-18
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6. Ratlo of Shareholders' funds to total assets

Based on the forecasted Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2017 the ratio of shareholders’ funds to total
assets is 0.79 and this moves to 0.77 in the forecasted Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018.

7. Significant Obligations/Contingent Liabilities

Experience Wellington currently holds no cash reserves to meet operational requirements and to mitigate risks.
Experience Wellington has no contingent liabilities.

8. Distribution to Settlor

Experience Wellington does not make a distribution to the Settlor,
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DIRECTORY Naim Street
Experience Wellington Executive Office 68 Nairn Street

Level 8, AMI Plaza, 342 Lambton Quay :90':"; ;9:;;;"";"_’&‘; 202
PO Box 893, Wellington ’ e

. i i LOME.
P: 04 4710919 E cotlage@emrewellmggo; ogg. nz
- . - WWW. !Blo ¢ o - -
E: experience @experiencewellington.org.nz MsEUme el 0-Ofg. nz/nairn-street cottage
www.experiencewellington.org.nz

Plimmer’s Ark Galleries
City Gallery Wellington Old Bank Arcade (timbers in situ)
Civic Square
101 Wakefield Street ;';""'bﬂ'. """““T
PO Box 893, Wellington oo 8:“89:‘;;““
P: 04 913 9032 % 833, Wellington
P: 04 894 7412

E: dtygallery@experiencewellington.org.nz

E: hannahplayhouse @experiencewellington.org.nz
www.citygallery.org.nz

www.hannahplayhouse.org.nz

Capital E New Zealand Cricket Museum

4 Queens Wharf The Old Grandstand, Basin Reserve
PO Box 893, Wellington PO Box 578, Wellington

P:04 9133740, F- 04 913 3735 P: 04 385 6602

E: capitale@experiencewellington.org.nz E: cricket@experiencewellington.crg.nz
www.capitale.org.nz http://nzcricketmuseum.co.nz/
Space Place at Carter Observatory

Botanic Gardens

PO Box 893, Wellington

P: 04 910 3140

E: spaceplace@experiencewellington.org.nz

www.museumnswellington.org nz/space-place

Wellington Museum

The Bond Store, Queens Wharf
PO Box 893, Wellington

P:04 472 8904, F: 04 496 1949

£: museumswellington@experiencewellington.org.nz
.mu. S | n. n i n-museum

Cable Car Museum

1 Upland Road

PO Box 893, Wellington
P:04 4753578, F: 04 475 3594
E: cablecar; riencewellington.org.nz

www.museumswellington.org. nz/cable-car-museum
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Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan
2017-18
Wellington Zoo Trust

Pursuant to Schedule 8 of the Local Government Act (2002)
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1. INTRODUCTION

Wellington Zoo is a purpose inspired social enterprise which exists to create community good and fo
solve important social and environmental problems ~ people disconnected from nature in an urbanised
world and the loss of species worldwide. We strive to ignite a Zoo revolution through leading the way in
connecting people and animals and saving animals in the wild by having our community love and
support their Zoo. We have local and global influence as behaviour change agents for the environment
and as a conservation agency with sustainability at its heart.

Wellington Zoo contributes to the vibrancy and forward thinking of our city through our support for
Council strategies and initiatives. The Zoo alms to be a reflection of our city and contribute to the
thriving cultural and natural heritage of Wellington as an accessible and livable city.

We have consistently met or outperformed almost all of our performance targets in the last ten years.
The ZCP is now complete with the opening of the Kea Walkthrough Aviary and we are now
concentrating on ensuring the asset is well maintained over the coming years.

We still believe that further capital investment in the future is required to ensure the Zoo remains leading
edge and we believe acquisition of animals such as Snow Leopards allow us to fell a global
conservation story which will drive action for the environment. As our visitation and desire for the Zoo's
function venues grows we know that the front entrance will not cope. The CAPEX plan we submitted in
last year's SOI remains an ongoing priority for us over the coming ten years. Not only is this CAPEX
plan due to changes in community expectations of zoos, but it also to create ongoing resilience for
one of the city’s iconic organisations. We have included the proposed CAPEX projects again in this SOI.

The Zoo's potential for large-scale social impact, with close alignment with our intention to build brighter
futures for children, families, communities and the planet, means we must continually increase the
volume on the issues we care about the most. Research and experience both show that we must have a
world leading Zoo to accomplish our bold and brave objectives. A reputation as a word leading and
respected Zoo allows us to define achievable calls to action through our storytelling that will lead
people fo take meaningful action for our planet,

We agree to the financial and nonfinancial expectations of the Zoo and the SOI outlines how we will
implement these expectations.

Welkington Zoo Trust Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan 2017.18 3
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2, CONTRIBUTION TO OUR CITY

The Zoo is a strong contributor to our city, focusing on knowledge, collaboration, innovation and positive
action. It contributes to the vibrancy and forward thinking of our city. We aim to be a reflection of our city
and confribute as a cutting edge business with talented people to the thriving cultural and natural
henitage of Wellington as a liveable city. The Zoo contributes strongly to liveability outcomes and by
being part of the well-being of people that Wellington is renowned for amongst New Zealand cities.

We feel very positively about working with WREDA to ensure economic growth and tourism for our city.
As winners of Green Gold and Vibrant Gold, Wellington Gold Awards and the supreme winner of the
Wellington Region Business Awards 2015 we believe we are perfectly placed to add value to the

economy of our region.
Wellington Zoo will be seen as:

A leader in the city in shaping the community’s views on and action for conservation and sustainable
living.

A valued and valuable member of the Weflington regional community that adds to the prosperity of our
city through business activity, events, connections, inclusivity and engagement for children and their
families and other members of our society.

A substantial player in the dnve to position Wellington as a centre for leaming about and expertise in
conservation and sustainability.

A key contributor to helping the city become intemationally competitive, entrepreneurial and innovative
by attracting investment in education, research, tounsm and employment and contributing to the
provision of a vibrant city attracting a creative working population.

An imporiant part of Wellington's history as New Zealand's first zoo and the most visited paid cultural
atiraction in Wellington.

Wellington Zoo is an important part of the regional fabric that stimulates overall wealth creation and
social stability and connects people to conservation and environmental issues. As our region's only 200
we are a unique asset for our city.

Welkington Zoo Trust Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan 2017.18 4
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3. STRATEGIC DIRECTION

Purpose

Wellington Zoo Trust Incorporated is incorporated under the Charitable Trust Act 1957 and is a not for
profit organisation.

Wellington Zoo exists to ignite a zoo revolution. We lead the way in connecting people to animals and
saving animals in the wild by our community loving and supporting their Zoo.

Core Business

The Trust will continue to provide the core business services that the Zoo has histerically delivered to Wellington.

These can be summansed as follows:

Strategic direction and operational management of the Zoo

Development and maintenance of animal habitats which offer high quality experiences to
visitors and high quality living environments to the resident animals

Provision of engaging leaming experiences for visitors and community involvement with the
Zoo as a community asset

Educational curriculum delivery to develop children as democratic citizens
A safe and inspiring place for family engagement and community leaming

Care of the Zoo's animals to achieve excellent levels of health and emoticnal/psychological weil-being
according to the Five Domains of Animal Welfare

Contribution to conservation through advocacy, support for conservation programmes, and
sustainable management practices

Participation in collaborative inter-zoo programmes

Contribution to conservation, scientific, leaming and management research projects in the field and on
site

Fundraising for the organisation's future sustainabiity, develcpment and conservation projects.

Wellington Zoo Trust Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan 2017.18
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Trust Deed

Wellington Zoo Trust Deed states the objects of the Trust as follows:

71

The objects for which the Trust is established, to the extent that they are a charitable
purpose within New Zealand, are as follows:

7.1.1 To manage, administer, plan, develop, maintain, operate and promote

Wellington Zoo as a zoological park for the benefit of the Wellington community and as
an attraction for visitors to Weflingfon:

7.1.2  To educate the community by building an awareness of plant and animal
species and the actions required fo promote conservation;

7.1.3  To promote species conservation;

714  To support and complement the conservation and Jeaming activities
undertaken by other organisations;

7.1.5  Todevelop, manage and plan animal species management programmes,

7.1.6  To promote and coordinate the raising of funds to assist the management,
administration, maintenance, planning, promotion and further development of

Wellington Zoo;
7.1.7  To acquire additional plant and animal species;

7.1.8  Generally to do all acts, matters and things that the Trustees think necessary
or conducive to further or atfain the objects of the Trust set out above for the benefit of

the Wellington community.”

Wellington Zoo Trust Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan 2017.18 6

Attachment 5 Wellington Zoo Trust draft SOl 2017/18

Page 156



COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS e A e A
12 APRIL 2017 Me Heke Ki Paneke

Operating Environment

We are well aware of the need to confinually improve our experience offering so that the
community feels they're getting value for money and leading edge zoo experiences. As the capital
city zoo we believe we should be providing a uniquely Wellington Zoo expenence for families,
school groups and other visitor groups - innovative, fun, creative and personal.

We face challenges as a fixed cost organisation, especially in areas such as annual salary
increases, cost increases from suppliers and the increasing need for commitment to conservation
projects nationally and globally.

We want to create a resilient and well maintained city asset in line with Council's approach across
our city. The operating environment has changed substantially in this area since the November
2016 earthquake and we want to support the Counail in ensuring resilience across the city.

Strategic Framework

Waellington City Council's Strategy for our city, towards 2040, aligns seamlessly with the goals of
Wellington Zoo Trust in that it is about inspiring each other to see the possibilities for the future.
The work of the Zoo supports the four pillars of the Towards 2040 Strategy: eco city, people
centred city, connected city and dynamic city centre. The Zoo is an iconic asset for our city and as
our city population grows there will be an even greater desire for the Zoo to be a sophisticated and
accessible attraction which delivers 21st century conservation programmes and actions.

Wellington Zoo's strategy is about the Wellington Zoo of the 21st century and seeks to take us into
a new realm which builds on our success of the past few years, using the rebuilt Zoo physical
platform and setting the stage for Wellington Zoo fo be seen as a leader and trusted voice in the
conservation of species and sustainability outcomes. The loss of biodiversity is a major global issue
facing us all so our strategy seeks to put accelerant on the fire of change. Wellington Zoo
distinguishes itself as a ‘good zoo' in global terms and we want to continue this reputation across
our strategic goals. (See below)

Our values underpin our strategy and structure and they resound with our approach to being a
welcoming, happy place. Our iwi alignment is reflected in the iwi interpretation of the values and we
have worked with Taranaki Whanui fo ensure the correct concepts reflect our intentions. {See
below).

Wellington Zoo Trust Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan 2017.18 7
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As a sustainable organisation we also consider the UN Sustainable Development Goals in our
approach. {See below) These 17 global goals set the framework for global prosperity- the very things
we all want for our city. While we would aspire o address all 17 goals we are realistic and feel that we
are in the position to address many but not all. Over time we will be integrating the SDGs into the work
of the Zoo and how the Zoo is positioned in our community. Sustainability is more than environmental
initiatives and the SDGs frame that bigger picture.

The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), officially known as “Transforming our worid: the 2030
Agenda for Sustainable Development” is a set of 17 aspirational Global Goals with 169 targets between
them.

In September 2015, all 193 Member States of the United Nations adopted a plan for achieving a better
future for all — laying out a path over the next 15 years to end extreme poverty, fight inequality and
injustice, and protect our planet. At the heart of Agenda 2030 are these 17 Sustainable Development
Goals {SDGs) which clearly define the worid we should all want - applying to all nations and leaving no
one behind. This Agenda is a plan of action for people, planet and prospenity.

The Sustainable Development Goals provide a powerful aspiration for improving our world. The
Sustainable Business Council NZ (SBC) has adopted the SDGs and as an active member of the SBC
we are also working to do our part to create a better world.

1 WK

1 LrEeciow
I
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Wellington Zoo Trust’s strategic elements are to:

Connected City, Eco City, Peaple Centred City

The Zoo is perfectly positioned, as a multi award winner in visitor experience, business leadership,
vibrancy, sustainability and conservation, 1o take an active role in delivering conservation and
sustainability messages to a large audience of approximately 250,000 visitors on-site and many more
online. We create compelling stories with clear calls to action and we craft community campaigns that
move beyond simply raising awareness of an issue to getting people and organizations to drive lasting
change and buiid a better world.

Wellington Zoo will continue 1o build its reputation as a unique and intimate Zoo by including more
opportunities for our visitors to experience mulii layered and multisensory learning experiences. We
have rich content for storytelling and engagement with communities. We design creative and profound
visitor experiences which connect people and animals in ways which inspire communities to take
positive action for the environment.

Our commitment is to ensure continual improvement in visitor experience to achieve wider
engagement within the community. We offer a range of events, discount days and other visitor
programmes which ensure we engage our whole community in the work of the Zoo. Accessibility is
important to us as we believe that the Zoo belongs to everyone.

Programmes such as The Warehouse Wellington Zoofari for low decile schools, LEOTC discounted
entry, Neighbour's Night for our Newtown and Melrose locals, discounted entry on Winter Wednesdays
and $2 Open Weekend ensure accessibility for a wider segment of the community. Zoo Crew
membership is continually increasing and this is a strategic aim for us as Zoo Crew provides an
excellent value proposition for Wellington city rate payers and residents who visit the Zoo often
throughout the year.

Our refreshed website is broadening the reach of cur message based experience, the visitor
experience starts at home, with our updated website more accurately reflecting the experience within
the Zoo, and showcasing our new Zoo for the community. Last year our Stanford University MBA
Student reviewed our social media communications strategies and changes we have made since this
project has encouraged audience members to use their voice through social media to influence friends,
family, and community. Tying our communications strategy to a theory of change helps ensure that our
storytelling efforts are tied to overarching goals, not simply focused on promotion or awareness.

As a child friendly city it's important for Wellington to cater for young people and their families, and for
the Council this means providing safe, accessible and enjoyable places for recreation and play, and
offering community events and activities that are suitable for all. The CCOs fit this bill perfectly and
Zealandia, Experience Wellington and Wellington Zoo Trust have agreed to work together this year to
implement joint programmes for children and families as well as delivering our independentiy successful
programmes.
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SAV Lh

ANIMALS
INTHEWILD
Eco city

Our end game is to save animals in the wild, locally and globally. We have a global conservation remit.
Wild Ideas symposium in April 2017 highlights all the conservation partners of Wellington Zoo both local
and global. Our Conservation partners’ discussion of their innovative approaches to significant
biodiversity issues restores faith that we can win this battle together with Wellington Zoo as a major
voice to be heard for the conservation of species. We strive to show thought leadership in global
conservation and sustainability.

In the Social Retum on Investment research we completed in 2015-16, 75-89% of visitors leamt that
zoos play a vital role in conservation and have leamt ways that they can also confribute to conservation
after their visit to Wellington Zoo. After visiting Wellington Zoo 80% said they plan to change their
behaviour to benefit the environment. Our key challenge is to convert those good intentions into solid
actions.

We are a key stakeholder in collaborative conservation breeding as well as science and veterinary
research programmes within the zoo community, with other conservation agencies and higher leaming
organisations in Wellington, across New Zealand and beyond.

Our Species Plan focuses on the number of critically endangered and endangered species we have in
human care at the Zoo and those we support through our conservation programmes in the animal's
range state. The field conservation programmes for critically endangered and endangered species in
their range state that we support are: Sumatran Tigers through 21# Century Tiger, Tasmanian Devils
through Save the Devil Program, Malayan Sun bears through Free the Bears South East Asia , Cotton
Top Tamarins through Proyecto Titi, Black and White Ruffed Lemurs through Madagascar Fauna and
Flora Group, Chimpanzees through the Jane Goodall Insfitute, White Cheeked Gibbons through Flora
and Fauna Intemational, Kea through Kea Conservation Trust, North Island Kaka through breed for
restoration programmes, Grand and Otago Skinks with DOC and Golden Lion Tamarins through
Associagdo Mico-Ledo Dourado. The planned acquisition of Snow Leopards in the future and Ring
Tailed Lemurs more quickly will provide further opportunities for our community fo engage with global
conservation issues for endangered species.

The Nest Te Kohanga works with a variety of native species. Native wildlife cases now make up 70% of
the veterinary medicine case load - including many who are critically endangered and endangered. Our
success in this area, of successfully releasing injured native wildiife back to the wild, is above world
standard for zoo veterinary hospitals and we take great pride in this achievement.

Wellington Zoo Trust Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan 201718 12
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PEOPLELOVE

AND SUPPORT

THEZOO
Peopie Centred City, Connected City, Dynamic Central City

The Zoo's contribution to the economic development of our city is through its financial results, creating a
place Wellingtonians can feel proud of, by the employment of over 90 people (73 FTE) and by being one
of the largest businesses in Newtown.

The Trust will continue to drive for results in its commercial imperatives this year to ensure financial
sustainability. As a social enterprise we seek 1o ensure our financial sustainability so that our social and
environmental goals can be achieved.

Wellington Zoo is inclusive for all sectors of our community — our visitor mix is diverse and we ensure
that all visitors feel safe and respected. Our visitor numbers continue to grow. The SROI research
project measured the economic significance of Wellington Zoo to the City from visitors to the Zoo.
During the 2014-15 year visitors to Wellington Zoo contributed $7,224,158 of economic significance
from non-local and local visitor spend to Wellington City's economy. This result was conservative,
excluding any ovemight accommodation and indirect spend.

Our visitor feedback is positive and people are enjoying the continual change in the Zoo. Our Animal
Close Encounters continue to attract visitors and venue hire and functions bookings are increasing as
more people come to realise how beautiful the Zoo is and how much it has changed over the past ten
years. We continue fo build on this success year on year.
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LEAD
THEWAY
People Centred City, Eco city, Connected City, Dynamic Central City

Wellington Zoo has been recognised in a multitude of awards over the past few years, from holistic
sustainability to business and environmental leadership. We will continue to strive for excellence across
our organisation. To achieve our strategy we will be ensuring our commitment to sustainability and our
carboNZero certification continues with projects such as the solar power installation on the roof of the
Zoo entry building.

In early 2018 Wellington Zoo will host the Joint Conference of the Zoo and Aquarium Association
Australasia and the South East Asian Zoo Association. This conference will be attended by nearly
300 delegates from across Asia and Australasia and will highlight the impressive conservation work
being done in Wellington and New Zealand. Best practice learning at Wellington Zoo includes evolving
to meet the diverse leaming and leisure styles of the 215! century child. Our Learning Experience Team
provides unique experiences for 18 months to 18 year olds by creating and delivering participatory
leaming sessions and engaging animal encounters that support local and global conservation efforts
and partnerships.

A recent study prepared by Wellington Region Environmental Educators Forum (WREEF) database
highlighted that every school in Wellington has been engaged by an environmental education provider in
the past year, and on average, each school is connecting with around three different environmental
education providers per year. Wellington Zoo is a significant provider in the Environmental Education
sector.

Consequently, as one of the key environmental education providers in Wellington, the Zoo has a
Leaming Experience Outside the Classroom (LEOTC) confract with the Ministry of Education. Last year
over 11,000 school children connected with animals at Wellington Zoo during a leaming session. This
current contract will expire in December 2017, and we will be negotiating with the Ministry this year to
provide further LEOTC experiences for the coming years.

The MOE measures the success of the leaming programmes at Wellington Zco and we continue to
receive positive feedback on our educator led leaming sessions and our innovative programmes that
align with the Ministry’s target areas including improving education outcomes for Maori and Pasifika
leamers, special education learners and those from low socio-economic backgrounds.

Our partnership with The Warehouse continues to bring low decile schools from across the Wellington
and Tasman regions to the Zoo for learning sessions as part of The Warehouse Wellington Zoofan
(Zoofan). Around 1,600 children per year from low decile schools, along with their parents and teachers,
are visiting the Zoo as a result of Zoofari so the Zoo continues to build links to communities around the
region. This successful programme has had international recognition this year with publication
of an article on Zoofari in the peer reviewed International Zoo Yearbook,

Wellington Zoo's Bush Builders is a unique environmental literacy programme that helps urban students
discover for themselves the wonder of the worid around them, in their own schools and homes, and to
empower them to take positive acfion in their own communities. This successful programme has
influenced over 4000 students in our region and recently, South Wellington Intermediate School (SWIS)
and Wellington Zoo signed an MOU to formalise the schools” ongoing involvement in our Bush Builders
programme. This will comprise of a two year programme of hands-on leaming, with full school
participation one year and an advanced science class taking on a leadership role altemate years. This is
particularly important for young people to be given leadership opportunities within their school
community.
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Furthermore, SWIS and Wellington Zoo have formed a parinership to support intemational students
coming to Wellington, with the Zoo providing these students with opportunities to connect with animals,
participate in Bush Builders and to leam about saving animais in the wild. SWIS has intemational
student programmes as a sirateqic area for them so this programme aligns with that strategy. We
envision this partnership will create long term economic and environmental benefits for our South
Wellington community and the wider city.
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4. PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS

For the next three years the following table indicates the measures for WCC to monitor. These are linked to cur strategic areas.

Measura

Connect people with animals

Measure

201819

Target

Conlact animals meeting visitors in Zoo Quartery 1,100 hours 1,100 hours 1,100 hours

' People participating in Animal Clase Encounlers Quartery 4,000 4,000 4,000

| Number of students participeting in LEOTC Our annugl target is 5,500 stucents for owr LEQTC contract 5o this is a
sossions Quartery 10,500 10,750 11,000 rge

People love and support the Zoo

stretch target

Increase total visitation Annually 242,000 244,420 246,864
| Ralio of Trust generated income as percentage of ,
| WCC grant Annugity 116% 118% 116%
| Zwerage ncome per isilor fram Trest ganasaied Anualy $15.79 $15.98 $16.22

revenue

WCC full subsidy per visitor Annualy TBCby WCC | TBCbyWCC | TBCbywee |  This KPI is generated by WCC. it includes depraciation, shared senvices
; costs, CCO team costs, Insurance, CAPEX Interest and the OPEX grant
| Volunloer engagement survey Anrwally 1 1
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Save animals in the wild
Number of vuinerable, endangered or critically

endangered species (JUCN Red List ard DOC Aanually 22 22 27
_Nalional lsqn the Zoo's collection _ i i
Parcentage of native patients successful release to Aanually 255 255 255

| the wild afer treatment in The Nest Te Kéhanga

t
Number of Field Conservation Projects supported

| for threatened (NZ) endangered or critically Aanually 25 26 28
[ endangered (global) species o —
| ) ) This measure uses the American Zoo Association Framework (now
% of OPaE'xRm directly contributed to fiekd Aanually 4% 5% 5% adopled by the Zoo Aquarium Association Australasia) to measure direct
cansen contributions (o field conservation
| Participade in animal based scientific projects and Aanually 25 26 26
paper publication
| oy Zoo 20 Mpuerun Associaton Avinal Annually Achieved | Achieved | Achieved
§ Vol @ Accredila
Maintain carboNZero certification Anually Achieved Achieved Achieved
| 5 ' These measures are culined n the H&S Strategy and nclude lead and lag
Health & Safety targets met Annually Achieved Achiaved Achieved ndicators, H&S slaff indiatives, process improvement for reporiing and
| analysis of H&S data
i ) ) ) This measure will include such targets as staff tumover, leaming and
.Peopie&cmnxehrgmmet Aanualty A Achigved Achieved Achieved vl ¢ plans and other HR measures
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5. APPROACH TO GOVERNANCE

Wellington Zoo Trust is a Council Controlied Organisation having been established in 2003 by the
Wellington City Council fo develop and manage Weilington Zoo.

Relationship with Council

The Trust ensures the ongoing viability of the organisation is maintained through the monitoring of Key
Performance Measures, Goveming policies have been developed by Trustees to ensure the business of
the Trust is managed consistently with its Deed and stated direction.

As part of the ongoing relationship with the Wellington City Council, the Chair and Chief Executive meet
with the Mayor and Wellington City Council Chief Executive on a regular basis. The Wellington Zoo
Chief Executive meets regularly with Council officers for CCOs and other Counail management when
appropriate. The Chair and Chief Executive attend the CCO Performance Committee meetings as
required.

The Trust's Statement of Financial Performance and audited accounts will be presented to Council
within 60 days of financial year end. These statements include the budget from the SOI for the
same period as per the Letter of Expectation and our usual approach to the accounts.

The Trust will disclose any material or potentially contentious transactions that are planned within its
annual business plan. Where this is not possible, the earliest practicable notice will be given to Council
of such transactions.

The Trust will publicly acknowledge Council’s contribution to the Zoo wherever appropriate.

The principles governing the relationship between the Trust and Council will include:

. A “no surprises” approach, particularly in regard to branding changes

. Open communications which acknowledge each partner’s objectives and constraints

. Mutually respectful negotiation of resolution of differences

. Reciprocal recognition of the requirements of each other's processes

. Provision of quarterty reports against agreed KPMs and an annual report within three months of
balance date.

Wellington Zoo Trust Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan 201718 18
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Board Membership
Nams Term Expires
Craig Ellison (Chair} 30 November 2017
Raewyn Bleakley 30 November 2017
Sarah Free October 2019
Michael Potts 30 June 2019
Sue Paterson 31 August 2019
All Board members are non-executive.
Board Committees

The Board operates one commitiee- the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee

Board Development

The Board conducts an annual review of overall Board performance and individual and chair
performance and from this determines development needs and any other actions required to ensure
best practice governance and performance standards are met. The Trust promotes Board development
for corporate govemance and spends at least 10 hours a year on this at Board meetings and additional
workshops and discussions. A report will be tabled to the WCC Chief Executive on the Board
review and outcomes by 30 September 2018,

Wellington Zoo Trust Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan 2017.18 19

Attachment 5 Wellington Zoo Trust draft SOI 2017/18

Page 169

ltem 2.1 AHachment 5



COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS e R e A
12 APRIL 2017 Me Heke Ki Paneke

ltem 2.1 AHachment 5

6. ORGANISATIONAL RESILIENCE AND RISK ASSESSMENT

Wellington Zoo Trust has a Finance, Audit and Risk Commitiee which meets quartery throughout the
year. The Board monitors cur Risk Analysis and Mitigation Plan (RAMP) at least annually and this
document is updated as required. The RAMP had a major update in February 2017 to reflect the
changing operating environment.

Health and Safety is currently managed via the Health and Safety Manager who is a direct report to the
Chief Executive. The H&S Manager works with our Safety Improvement Team to ensure safe practices
in the Zoo for animals, staff and visitors. All Health and Safety incidents are monitored weekly by the
SMT and by the Board at their requiar meetings. We have employed a specialist consultant to help
guide our H&S strategy so that we ensure our cultural and management approach towards H&S is
continually improving.

As with all our H&S responsibilities the Board (and other officers of the Trust) acknowledges
and understands its accountability. We have made the appropriate improvements to ensure the
new H&S legislation (effective April 2016) is well managed and that the Trust meets the required
reporting, monitoring and reviewing of H&S objectives.

The renewals budget allows us to maintain a resilient asset for the city. Future CAPEX investment will

ensure the Zoo continues fo meet expected zoo standards of animal care, visitor experience and staff
welfare.
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Risk Analysis & Mitigation Plan for Wellington Zoo Trust
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Risk Analysis Scale
Score Probabllity that the Event will Occur
1 Almost Certain and ! or could occur frequenty
¢ Very likely & ocour and { or could ocour more fian once
1 Moderalely likely 1o oocur and / or could occur ot leastonce
2 Uniikely Ib ocour and / or mght occur once
3 Very uniikely © ocour
Scoro Level of In of the Event
Catasyophic

Damage value greater than 50% ofhe project value, or

Major delay b he project complelon, or

Major impacton this and obier busness opportundies

Very High Impact

Damage value about 20% - 50% of he progectvalue, or

Signibcant delay b project compieson, or

Signibcant impact on his and other business opporuniias

Major

Damage value about 5% - 20% of he project value, or

Projgect compleon afiecked, or

Some mmpacton tis or oher busnass opporunides

|Mince

Damage veiue less han 5% of e propctvalue, or

Project compleson notimpaced (slhough & phase of he prajectmay be), or
This business opporiunity could be impacied

Neglgbie

3 Damage value covered by contngency, any delays barely nolceable and dient
unafecked

2 IM‘n‘maI

o

These Wwo soores are added bgeher b give a "Risk Value". This will be in he range zero b eight.

-M risks with @ Risk Value of 5 - 8 must have a mifgaton plan developed and agreed wih he Board,

Al risks wilh a Risk Vaiue of 3 or 4 shall have a mifgaton plan so hey can be
|managed by SMT.

Al risks wilh a Risk Vaiue of 0 - 2 can just be recorded and accepied as such unll such ime as
they produce a higher score.

y risk fhat has a Probabity Vakue of one (1) or an Impact Vaiue of fve (5) or more must s§l
have a milgaton plan even # he overal Risk Value is less han fve.
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Wellington City Council

1.

a)

b)

d)

€)

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Response to other specific Letter of Expectation matters (if applicable)
Not Applicable

Ratio of shareholders' funds to total assets
Please refer to the Balance Sheet included and Accounting Policies.

Estimate of amount intended for distribution
Wellington Zoo Trust does not make a distribution to the Setlor.

Acquisition procedures

The Trustees currently have no intention of subscribing for, purchasing or otherwise acquiring
shares in any other company or other organisation.

Activities for which the Board seeks compensation from a local authority

The Board acknowledges the $3,283,126 for 2017-18 operational funding in the Long Term
Plan,

The Board acknowledges the $838,391 in the Long Term Plan for CX125 (Zoo assat
renewals) for 2017-18. However we note that in the full cost of the Zoo measure calculated by
WCC, depreciation for the Zoo asset is running at $1.5m p.a. This is considerably more than the
renewals funding we receive. We will be discussing this issue with Officers during 2017-18.

We note that CAPEX investment for the Zoo is not included in the Annual Plan. The CAPEX
projects submitted in the SOI 2016-17 are still required for the ongoing resilience of the Zoo’s
assets. These projects are listed in the following table:
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Proposed Spend for New Capital Projects

Snow Leopards

Snow Leopards are endangered in the wild, with a poputation of kess than 7,000 thought
10 exist in their mountainous range state. Inernational research shows thal big cals are
the biggest draw card for visitors atiending 2005, As the only 200 in New Zeafand with
Snow Leopards, we would be part of the international commitmen to prosect this
species via home range conservation action. The preliminary design is complete for this
project. This project has been priontisad by WZT for some years now.

Ring tailed Lemur Experience

WZT is reducing the number of baboons we hold (we only have six males curently as
all females have been translocated to Australia) and we will eventually remove that
species from our collection. We plan to repace this common species with an
endangered species ~ Ring laded Lemurs. We already suppor lemur conservation in
Madagascar through the Madagascar Fauna and Flora Group so these animals woukd
support our conservation work. The Ring tailed Lemurs experienca wil be in the existing
baboon habitat but we propose to create a lemur walkthrough habitat to create a
Madagascar conciusion 10 the Africa precinct. This design for these animals has proved
successful at Tarenga Zoo and Melboume Zoo and we know our visiiors enjoy being
dose to the animals in the same space. We would be the only zoo in NZ with a
walkthrough Lemur experience. To compiete this project we will need to radesign a
completely new animal habitat fo allow visitors to acoess this space. This project will be
completed within one year.

Welcome Plaza

1819 | 19/20 | 20/21 | 21/22 | 22123 @ 23/24 | 24/25 | 25/26 @ TOTAL

This area of the Zoo is currently unsuitable for growth in vistor numbers. It is confusing
and congested for staff and visitors with marny functicnal activiies laking place in a
small space. Admissions, retail, calering and vigitor amenies all compete for space and
visitor Slow, On busy days the space is so crowded that long queues form cutside the
Zoo. The auditors have mentioned the confusion in this area for the past three years as
part of their audit process. Year one cost is for planning as this is a complex project,
The design wil include a new learning/discovery space as well as admissions, relail,
cafe and new staff offices.
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Proposed Spend for New Capital Projects

Tropica! River Trail Aviaries

The existing aviaries and visitor pathways along the Tropical River Trail need 1o be
replaced and improved, The aviary walts are an earthquake risk and the islands need %o
be redesigned for the animals we now hold. The earthquaka risk is currently being
assessed with WCC and some minor improvements may need % occur to manage this
before we have the CAPEX to completely upgrade. The upgrade plan Is for a large
aviary struchure housing small monkeys.

Australia (Including Australian Birds)

Keghbours has been successful as a visitor walkthrough experience and to complete
this we want o move all our Australian birds 10 that space as well as acquire wombats.
This will require an upgrade of the exsting space and the creabion of new viewing for
those animals. This project will also include fhe demoition of the old chimp day reom and
improvements 10 the existing chimp park containment wall. This wall is being assessecd
against earthquake slandards and may reguire addressing earker in the ten year
programme depending on the assessment resulls. Removal of the old chimp day room
will create a much more exciting enfry to the Africa precinct with wewing into the chimp
park and visitor learning opportunies in that space,

Sustainability initiatives
To future proof the Zoo as a leader in sustainadiity we must implement large carbon
emissions reduction projects over tme. Projects such as wind power and more solar
panels will part of these sustainability initiatives, This work is part of the ethas of the Zoo
as a conservation agency and bulds on our success fo date in this area. As the word's
first carboNZero certified Zoo we are a leader in sustainability globally. As the capital city
Zoo we feel this should be continued as the Zoo contribules more &nd mare to ghobal
|_conservation culcomes.

Archibald Centre - multi use visitor space
The Archibald Centre is an oid multi use buikding which will need replacing by 2023/24.
This venue is used for corporate hire, functions and meetings. it is a crifical part of our
reverue growth and will need o meet acceplable standards. This building was builtin
the 1950s and while it is accaptable it is not a space that suits modem venue hire
expectations. As the Zoo strives to reduce the burden on the ratepayer having a suitable
venues assist us with much needed revenue,

18119 | 19/20 | 20/21 | 21/22 | 2223 | 23/24 = 24125 | 2526 | TOTAL
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Proposed Spend for New Capital Projects

Savannah Survival (Cheetah and Lions)

The current cheetah and fon habitats and dens are old. Chestah are an iconic spacies
for Welington Zoo and we support Cheetah Outreach in South Africa as part of our suite
of range stale conservation programmes. Cheetah also a major factor in our Close
Encounters which provide a more in depth leaming opportunity for visdors, We would also
like 10 be able to have both male and female licns on display together which wa cannat
with the current arangemant. These iconic cats need better housing and viewing
arrangements. As part of the Africa precinct visitor engagement strategy we believe
glamping opticns in this area would be successful.

Kiwi and Tuatara House Te Ao Mahina

The position of Te Ao Mahina is less than ideal from both visitor flow and storylelling
perspectives. In fen years’ time it would be prudent 1o rebuild the kiwi house as it will be
aver 25 years old. We plan io relocate it doser to Meet the Locats He Tuku Aroha and
impeove visitor flow throughout the Zoo.

f) Estimate of commerclal value of shareholders investment
Not Applicable

g) Other matters (if applicable) e.g. water supply services LGA requirements
Not Applicable

h) Supplementary information the entity wishes to include
Not Applicable
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8. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The Wellington Zoo Trust (the Trust) is a charitable frust registered under the Charitable Trusts Act
1957 domiciled in New Zealand and is also a council-controlled organisation as defined under Section 6,
Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2002, by virtue of the Council's right to appoint the Board of
Trustees. The Trust was established on 1 July 2003 by the Wellington City Council.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charitable
Trusts Act 1957 and section 69 of the Local Government Act 2002.

The Trust is reliant on the Wellington City Council {the Council) for the majority of its income and
operates under a Contract for Services with the Council, The Contract for Services was negotiated for a
period of five years to 30 June 2021. Ongoing funding for the Trust has been approved in the 20152025
Long Term Plan.

The primary objective of the Trust is to manage, administer, plan, develop, maintain, operate and
promote the Wellington Zoo for the benefits of the inhabitants of Wellington and as an attraction to
visitors to Wellington, not to make a financial retum. Accordingly, the Trust has designated itself as a
public benefit entity for the purposes of New Zealand PBE IPSAS

Under this framework, the Trust is eligible to apply the reduced disclosure regime (Tier 2 entity) of the
Public Benefit Entity Accounting Standards.

The reporting period for these financial statements is for the year ended 30 June 2016. The financial
statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 5 August 2016.

Statement of Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand generally accepted
accounting practice. They comply with New Zealand equivalents to PBE IPSAS and other applicable
Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for Tier 2 public benefit entities.

Measurement Base
The measurement base applied is historical cost. The accrual basis of accounting has been used.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in New Zealand doflars rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise stated. As a result of rounding there may be slight discrepancies in subtotals.
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Significant Accounting Policies

Critical Accounting estimates and assumptions

In preparing these financial statements, the Trust has made estimates and assumptions conceming the
future. The Trust has assessed the financial records and there are no significant critical accounting
estimates. These esfimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates
and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future evenis that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Grants

Grants received from the Wellington City Council are the primary source of funding to the Trust and are
restricted for the purposes of the Trust meeting it's objectives as specified in the trust deed. The Trust
also receives other assistance for specific purposes, and these grants usually contain restrictions on
their use.

Grants are recognised as revenue when they become receivable unless there is an obligation to retumn
the funds if the conditions of the grant are not met. If there is such an obligation the grants are initially
recorded as grants received in advance, and recognised as revenue when the conditions of the grant
are satisfied.

Revenue

Revenue comprises revenue from operating activities, investment revenue, grants and donations and
other revenue and is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Revenue may be derived from either exchange or non-exchange transactions.

Most of the services that the Trust provides for a fee are subsidised by grants therefore do not constitute
an approximately equal exchange. Accordingly most of the Trust's revenue is categorised as non-
exchange.

Donated, subsidised or vested assets

Where a physical asset is acquired for nil or nominal consideration, the fair value of the asset received
is recognised as revenue, Such revenue is recognised when control over the asset is obtained.

Interest
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Volunteer Services Recognition

The Trust benefits from the service of dedicated volunteers in the delivery of its activities. Due to the
difficulty in determining the value of these donated services with sufficient reliability, donated services
are not recognised in these financial statements.
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Taxation

The Trust is registered as a Charitable Trust and is exempt from income tax under the Income Tax Act
2007. The Trust is not exempt from indirect tax legistation such as Goods and Services Tax and
accordingly is required to comply with these regulations.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

All items in the financial statements are exclusive of GST, with the exception of receivables and
payables, which are stated as GST inclusive. Where GST is not recoverable as an input tax, it is
recognised as part of the related asset or expense.

Debtors and other receivables

Debtor and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of less than three months.

Investments
Term deposits are initially measured at the amount invested.

Creditors and other payables

Creditors and other payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Inventory

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost {determined on a first-in first-out basis) or net realisable
value. This valuation includes allowances for slow moving and obsolete stock. Net realisable value is
the estimated sefling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment consist primarily of operational assets. Expenditure is capitalised when it
creates a new assel or increases the economic benefits over the total life of an existing asset. Costs
that do not meet criteria for capitalisation are expensed.

The Trust also manages the construction and development of buildings, structures and enclosures on
behalf of the Council. These assets are not recorded in the Trust's financial statements as ownership
vests in the Council,
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Measurement

Property, plant and equipment are valued at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The initial cost of property, plant and equipment includes the purchase
consideration, and those costs that are directly attributable o bringing the asset into the location and
condition necessary for its intended purpose. Subsequent expenditure that extends or expands the
asset’s service potential is capitalised.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at least annually to determine if
there is any indication of impairment. Where an asset's recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, it will be reported at its recoverable amount and an impairment loss will be recognised. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an item’s fair value less costs fo sell and value in use.

Disposal

Realised gains and losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense in the period in which the transaction occurs.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on all assets owned by the Trust excluding assets under construction (work in
progress). Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis, fo allocate the cost or value of the asset
(less any residual value) over its useful life. The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Plant

Audio Visual Equipment 3 years

Projector 5 years

Shade Sail 10 years

Hospital Equipment 10 years

Garden Fumiture 10 years

Living Room Fumiture 15 years

Endoscope 8 years

Furniture and Equipment

Composter 10 years

CcCTv 3 years

Incubators 12.5 years

Work in Progress

The cost of projects within work in progress is transferred to the relevant asset class when the project is
completed and then depreciated.
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Employee Benefits

A provision for employee benefits (holiday leave, long service leave, and retirement gratuities) is
recognised as a liability when benefits are eamed but not paid. The Trust recognises a liability and an
expense for a one off payment where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Short Term Employee Benefits

Holiday leave (annual leave, long service leave qualified for and time off in lieu) is calculated on an
actual entitlement basis at the greater of the average or cumrent hourly eamings in accordance with
sections 16(2) & 16(4) of the Holidays Act 2003.

Long service leave (not yet qualified for) and retirement gratuities have been calculated on an actuarial
basis based on the likely future entitiements accruing to staff, after taking into account years of service,
years to entilement, the likelihood that staff will reach the point of entitlement, and other contractual
entilements information. The present value of the estimated future cash flows has been calculated by
using an inflation factor and a discount rate. The inflation rate used is the annual Consumer Price Index
to 31 March prior to year-end.

Other Contractual Entitlements

Other confractual entitlements include termination benefits. Termination benefits are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance only when there is a demonstrable commitment to either terminate
employment prior to normal retirement date or to provide such benefits as a result of an offer to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits settied within 12 months are reported at the
amount expected to be paid, otherwise they are reported as the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows.

Provisions

The Trust recognises a provision for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when there is a
present obligation (either legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
expenditures will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected fo be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that
refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Other Liabilities and Provisions

Other liabilities and provisions are recorded at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed if the possibility that they will crystallise is not remote. Contingent
assets are disclosed if it is probable that the benefits will be realised.
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Species Plan

In accordance with customary practice among Zoological organisations, animals are not recorded as
there is no objective basis for establishing value. Additionally, animals have numerous attributes,
including species, age, sex, relationship and value to other animals, endangered status and breeding
potential whereby it is impracticable to assign value. Expenditure related to animal acquisitions is
expensed in the period of acquisition,

Equity

Equity is the residual interest in the Trust and is measured as the difference between total assets and
total labilities. The components of equity are accumulated surpluses and deficits and restricted funds
(special funds, trusts and bequests).

Restricted funds are those reserves that are subject to specific conditions of use whether under statute
or accepted as binding by the Trust because of the specific reason for which the funds were provided.

Transfers from these reserves may be made only for specified purposes or when certain specified
conditions are met.

Statement of Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows is prepared using the direct approach. Operating activities include cash
received from all revenue sources of the Trust and record the cash payments made for the supply of
goods and services. Investing activities relate to the acquisition and disposal of assets. Financing
activities relate to transactions that change the equity and debt capital structure of the Trust.

Related Parties

Related parties arise where one entity has the ability to affect the financial and operating policies of
another through the presence of control or significant influence. Related parties inciude Wellington City
Council, key management personnel and the governing body (Trust Board).

Trustees’ remuneration is any money, consideration or benefit received receivable or otherwise made
available, directly or indirectly, to a trustee during the reporting period. The disclosures for the Trust
include the remuneration of the Trustee board as they occupy the position of a member of the governing
body of the Trust.

Changes to Accounting Policies
There have been no changes in accounting policies this year.

Wellington Zoo Trust Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan 201718 24

Attachment 5 Wellington Zoo Trust draft SOl 2017/18 Page 184



COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS

12 APRIL 2017

Absolutely Positively
Wellington City Council

Me Heke Ki POoneke
CCO: Wellington Zoo Trust
Business Plan 2017/18 SNZO00's
Fasinuic Qur te Qer o Qe to O | Totd YE Totad Y1 Total YE
30 dun-1? 19Sepd? | 30Deead? | 31-Marcd$ | 30-Jun-1¥ | 30Jun-t8 | | 30Jun19 [ | 300we20
| 30-Jun-17 ey (=T =
Rewnue
64| Trading Income 60 o8 928 waf b 3.34% 3415
S8 W OC Grsats 21 1 821 sa0f 3,283 3508 1452
2 fOer Geanty 2 2 20 wl © 52 82
132Bpoansoaships and Dozations Openational s 7% 78 e 300 Lv. o] st
277 [Sponsosships and Dosations -Capital r 0 . o
77 fevestment Income ) 10 10| wf 0 4s &
9 0xber Income pai 27 paj ol 108 110 110
7256] Teeal Revemwe 1,636, 1932 1551 1656, 7105 7200 7455
Expemditure
319 fnplovee Costs 1200 1,29 1200 12290 1916 sma| T 13
f 2,130 jOeher Operating Epenses s S 544 saff 2,175 2296 [ 2,225
2 [Pepreciation 3 4 3 o 14 0 0
Oftsserest 9 0 0 0 0 of I o)
277 Vested Assets r of [ 0 B
725 Tetal Expenditure 1.7, 1,777 1776 1776 7,108 7220, 7438,
OINet Surplus A Deflchn) befure Taation (18% 155 105 {1200 0 [ {
OfTaxaton Expense " 0 0 D
r 0fOpeniting Serples (Defiot) (1) I8¢ el i 0 w T (
0]Net Surglus{Deficity (1% 15¢ 168 {1300 0 1) 0
G0 [Operatiog Margin Sa% 0% SE% 7.2% 0 0% 0%
Wellington Zoo Trust Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan 2017.18 kLY

Attachment 5 Wellington Zoo Trust draft SOI 2017/18

Page 185

ltem 2.1 AHachment 5



ltem 2.1 AHachment 5

COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS

Absolutely Positively

Wellington City Council
12 APRIL 2017 Me Heke Ki Poneke
As o As ot As at As ot As at
3-Dee1? | 31-Nae-18 | 30-Jun-18 MJun-19 A-Juo-29
0 0 0 0 0
0 | 0 0 o
1022 1022 622 622 6
313 438 318 318 314
1540 Tt Sharcholder Trust Fands 1,200/ 1,355 148 ) oK) -
(Crromt Assets
265 [Cash omd Bank M 2418 1080 144 1244 1,766
MpAcvomess Roconvabic ) 0 ) ) ) Ly
| M) fCeher Camvent Assets 1% 1% 130 1.4 ) 0
25306 Total Current Avvets 1257 2628 3290 1,954 [ 1558/
hmes becaes
OfDepaosits on Csl 0 0 o 0 0 0
OfCeber Iy estments 1 a 0 1) 9 0
0 Tl Tnvestomenty 0 0 0 [ 0| 0
Noo-Current Assets
13]Fied Assess ] 7 4 0 0 o)
0 Oeber Noo-curment Assets 8 4 0 0 0| [,
14] Tetal No-current Aswets 1] ? 4| 0) 0 0
2350 Toeal Assety 320K/ 2432 I 1,954 L34 1,556
[Carreot Liabibities
A0 A coomts Payable smd Accruak %0 0 40 50 S0 20
[Proveons 0 o
G40 fCOxber Cyrment Linhilities 1. 2t8 77 .29 4 a4 426
1,540 | Toeal Curvent Lishilities 20698 1,277] 1434 1084 924 4]
Nan-Curreot Lishiligies
Oftoens - WOC 0 ! 0) 0 0
OfLowss - Oher 0 0 0 0
OJOeber Non-Cuarent Liabileies 0 0 0| 0) 0 o
U ol Noo-Currest LiabiNties o 0 0| i 0 R
1340 [Net Assets 1,200/ 13581 1,450 G40 Oy 940
| 9jCerrent Ratlo 16 21 2 1.9 2 20
6.5 [Fauity Ratio 4% 51.8% .15 48 1% 4% A
Wellington Zoo Trust Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan 201718 386
Attachment 5 Wellington Zoo Trust draft SOl 2017/18 Page 186



COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS e A e A
12 APRIL 2017 Me Heke Ki Paneke

Qr o Qi o er o Qerio | Tomsl VE Totd YE Towal \E
30-Sep 17 | 3-Dec-17 | 31-Vor-1% | 30-Jun-18 | M-Jun-18 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-28
Flasmcing Cash Flow
Cash provided from:
Dranckona of Loans o 0 o
Other O 0 [
0 ( 0 0 0 O 0 L
Cash applied so:
Repaymest of Losns o 0
Oxher 1) 0 L
0 0 ) 0 o o) 0 o
0| Totd Fiancisg Conh Flow 0 0 0) 0) 0 0 [
800 [Nt Increas e {Decrvase) in Cash Held 421 (662) 055 (1,336 917y i 2
3,256 |Openbng Cush Eguhalents 2 8% 3077 2418 30 2.656) 1,744 1,784
2456 |Cloning Cavh Eigsnalvats l'}”?l 2415 3080 1.4 1,744 1.4 1,766

e S RTETITM v o | Or | Gre | Owe | i [ [ e | | et

M-dun-17 30-Sep17 | 31-Dee-17 | I1-Mour-18 | 30-Jun-18 | Me-Jun-18 30-Jun-19 J0-Jun-29
0| Oporating Swarphe (Doficit) for the Yoar (14 155 1668 1200 o o) [
Add Non Cash Hems
21| Dxpeccaenn 3 4 3 4 14 0 o
Other iGatted Hospiral Aseets) 0 0 O 0)
2 U 19 108! 16 14 ) [

Manements in YWorkiog Cagpitd

(crense )y Decreaie in Reosivahles ( 0 0 0 0 ) o
{Bacrease ) Decrease i Orber Cunent Assets 0 0 0 o o) 0 [
Incease (Decvsse ) in Accounts Payahle 210 {32 120 (hcl) (3N 0 o
[ncreases{Decrease ) io Oiber Curvent Liabilines bt} (301) 577) 800 (148) {90, 2
0 8 (821) §57) (K| (526 2
Nt Gain/(Lans) 0o Sades
Frwd Assety [ 0
Investmests 0 o
0 [ 0 0 0) o 0 o
21{Net Cos Flow Troms Operatioe 1 (082 0685 )l (512 [ 2
Wellington Zoo Trust Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan 2017.18 a7

Attachment 5 Wellington Zoo Trust draft SOI 2017/18 Page 187

ltem 2.1 AHachment 5



ltem 2.1 AHachment 5

COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS e R e A

12 APRIL 2017 Me Heke Ki Poneke

e SR - | Orio | Owe | Qe | TwaE | Tew e | | TenE
M0-Jun17 $Sop 17 | S-Dec-) 7 | 31 Mar-18 | 30-Jun-18 | $0-Jun-t% W-Jue-19 10-Jun-20
|Cash provided from:
A6 Toed ng Reveipds 2 978| b o8 axaz 13 1418
2125 WOC Gt 1379 0 N’ 0 a2l I sl 1482
N2 §Other Grants 21 n .l 20 X2 0 K2
@fSponsoehips and Donitons 75 75| 75 75 00 5 151
Tr{bvestrment Incume 0 1 0 W o [ o [ &
970het Income r 27 b3l 27 n w [ e [ 104
7,29 2194 Lol 14N %30 6% 2% TASS
Carsly wppliod to:
A%19|Puyments 1w Enployees 1229 1229 1,229 1229 49164 g S0
2139 Payments to Supphers a4 44 “ - 2178 12%) 3,40
Net (ST Cashflow o e o
27T Mbey Operuting Costs (VESTING 0 0 L [ o
totevest Pasd 0 o L o
7.258. 1,77 1,713 1,773 172 T 7270 TAR
21 ITotal Osperating Cash Flow 421 {662 65 (936)] (512) (U) 22
rvestiog Conh Flow
Cash provided from:
Sale of Fued Assets o 0 o
Mber o i 0
0 0 [ B O ™ [R [T
[Casde opyplivd 10:
MPeschase of Fised Adsets [ [ o
K2) K xber westing Cash for Capaal Projects 0 M M 0 o
Lo 0 Y o 40| A0 3 of
(21)| Total Investing Cash Flow ) o 9 0 ) oy [ o [ o
\ i~ N
Craig Ellison
Board Chair, Wellington Zoo Trust
Welkington Zoo Trust Draft Statement of Intent and Business Plan 2017.18 38

Attachment 5 Wellington Zoo Trust draft SOl 2017/18 Page 188



